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Consolidated Results

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
FFBBEHE

mERE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t+—-HLEE

For the year ended 31 December #%+—=H=+—HIF/E

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—EEF —N5F =—\F —E—+F —E—XF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHT FHT FET FET
Continuing operations BRECEER
REVENUE BHEE 6,785,385 9,767,512 1,873,968 191,519 155,207
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX %ﬁmﬁﬁpﬁﬁu (810,877) 1,000,740 286,419 (53,425) (769,653)
INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE  FT#3Hi (%), /Fx 20,255 (532,545) (106,344) (3,541) (2,950)
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE R E BT 2R

YEAR FROM CONTINUING REFE(BE), & F

OPERATIONS (790,622) 468,195 180,075 (56,966) (772,603)
Discontinued operation BRIEREER
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE REBLRFEEEBH

YEAR FROM DISCONTINUED REEHFM, (BB)

OPERATION - 30,830 (18,238) 158,813 (147,568)
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR KEE(EE)/HF (790,622) 499,025 161,837 101,847 (920,171)
(LOSS)/PROFIT AT AL RES

ATTRIBUTABLE TO: (B18),/%F

OWNERS OF THE COMPANY ARAEEA (735,144) 385,850 103,138 87,940 (861,582)

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS  JEiZ &l 1 igs (55,478) 113,175 58,699 13,907 (58,589)

(790,622) 499,025 161,837 101,847 (920,171)
(LOSS/EARNINGS PER SHARE &k (E18) /&FI
FROM CONTINUING AND RERBENELKE (represented) (represented)  (represented)

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS IR (/&%) (rz&7) (r&&71))
Basic (cents) EARCBAL) (16.16) 8.90 2.83 0.05 (1.13)
FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 7 [543 84 4 2 7%

Basic (cents) EARCGE) (16.16) 8.19 3.33 (0.04) (0.93)
. . A 2 A S
Consolidated Assets and Liabilities FEEERAE
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+t—-HLEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
23 —NF —N\F —tF —E—REF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHT FHT FHET FET
TOTAL ASSETS BERE 23,666,615 20,175,573 12,636,662 5,966,028 2,398,312
TOTAL LIABILITIES BERE (19,589,259) (15,527,018 (8,646,900) (3,586,070) (961,300)
4,077,356 4,648,555 3,989,762 2,379,958 1,437,012
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO: AT ALREG#ER
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY VA/NCIEEY =N 2,282,849 2,907,798 2,760,603 1,759,462 1,405,707
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS  JEiZ &l 1S 1,794,507 1,740,757 1,229,159 620,496 31,305
4,077,356 4,648,555 3,989,762 2,379,958 1,437,012
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEHmE

Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present the annual report of Glory Sun Land Group Limited
(the “Company”) together with its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Year”) (the “Report”).

Industry and Market Overview

Along with the sudden outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic (the “pandemic”)
in 2020, the global business activities have suffered a huge impact where
the world’s major economies have experienced a severe decline in
economic indicators. At the same time, the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) encountered tremendous pressures and challenges in economic
development. As the pandemic ravaged the world, the PRC government
quickly and resolutely took a series of pandemic prevention and control
measures, and effectively controlled the pandemic at the end of the first
quarter of 2020. As a result, the PRC became the singular major economy
that achieved positive economic growth till now, showing a strong resilience
in subsequent economic development with the gross domestic product (GDP)
firstly exceeding RMB100 trillion.

The orderly economic recovery has simultaneously stimulated the PRC
domestic demand for purchase of housing properties. Due to the impact from
the pandemic, the growth rate of investment in real estate in February 2020
dropped sharply to 16.3%, and the scale of real estate sales, development
and investment across the country declined significantly. Since March
2020, the real estate market has gradually stabilized and rebounded as
the pandemic prevention and control situation was getting better, and thus
resuming a positive growth from June and onwards. The real estate market
maintained an overall positive growth rate of around 7% in 2020, a slight
decrease than that in 2019. According to the statistics from the National
Bureau of Statistics, investment in the PRC real estate development in 2020
amounted to approximately RMB14,144.3 billion, representing an increase
of approximately 7% over the past year; while the investment in residential
real estate amounted to approximately RMB10,444.6 billion, representing an
increase of approximately 7.6%.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Throughout the Year, the principles of “real estate for residential purpose
rather than speculation” and “Stability on Three Fronts” continued to be
the main tone of the domestic real estate market. However, for the sake of
hedging the pandemic and attaining “Security in Six Areas”, the more relaxing
monetary measures were in place which rendered the sales performance of
real estate continuously exceeding expectation through such favourable policy
support. In core cities within the Yangtze River Delta and the Guangdong-
Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area, the real estate market was even hot.
A number of those cities recorded a short term sharp increase in housing
prices, but for the majority, the approach of “cutting prices for more sales”
was more widely adopted. As a result, regional differentiation was intensified.
The pandemic has been seen to accelerate the reshuffle, deleveraging and
differentiation of the real estate industry.

Affected by the pandemic, the cultural, sports and entertainment sectors of
the Group that should have originally gained the development momentum
were hit hard in 2020. Worldwide, a large number of cultural activities and
sports events were postponed or canceled, related outlets and cinemas
were shut down, and entertainment entities and other offline formats were
severely disrupted. In short, the entire industry structure was changed rapidly.
As the pandemic was gradually controlled, market sentiment recovered
to certain extent, and the suppressed consumer demand and the newly
spawned awareness of healthy consumption were further released. In the
post-pandemic era, the culture and entertainment industry ushered in the era
of “revenge spending”, domestic movie box offices repeatedly hit a record
high, domestic tourists increased sharply, and cultural events such as offline
performances were frequently held and thereby indicating, a trend of strong
V-shaped reversal.

Business Review

In 2020, the COVID-19 pandemic has caused a substantial impact of varying
degrees on the operation and development of the Group’s two major core
business segments. The Company faced huge operating pressures in the
property investment and development sectors due to a couple of different
factors. To be specific, the overall development, sales, delivery, settlement
and others were disrupted in pace. Meanwhile, a number of construction
projects were suspended, and the opening of the sales centres was
postponed. Even worse, work resumption after the Spring Festival was
delayed, and market consumption was not “unfrozen” for a long time. At
the same time, the Group has experienced also a great stagnation in the
operations and development of commercial cultural sports sector.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEHmE

Faced with the severe market situation, the Company responded rapidly
and provided active cooperation in implementing measures introduced by
the PRC government to fight against the pandemic. Facing the complex
economic situation, our management firmed the confidence in development,
maintained strategic willpower, insisted on rational investment, improved
quality of operation and service, and actively seized the opportunities of
industry recovery, to embrace the subsequent industry recovery with the
strategy of steady progress. In accordance with the Group’s established
property development planning, the scale of properties delivery for the Year
was greatly reduced as compared to the past year, which had a negative
impact on the turnover and gross profit contributed by the Group’s property
investment and development sectors. However, this situation will get steadily
improved as the existing property development projects are being completed
and delivered on schedule starting from 2021.

As for the cultural sports sector that has been severely impacted by the
pandemic, our management adjusted the mentality in a timely and active
manner, made innovations in strategy with efforts, searched for potential
investment opportunities under the premise of balancing between risks and
returns and between safety and development, and relied on the coordinated
development of diversified industries to seek for new points of profit growth.

Property investment and development

In terms of the property investment and development sectors, taking root in
the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area, and deeply exploring
the business of property investment and development in strong first-tier cities,
new first-tier cities and strong second-tier cities, the Group is committed to
meeting people’s needs for a better life in the aspects of housing, shopping,
travel and entertainment while seizing the opportunities of spending upgrade.
So far, the Group has undertaken a total of twelve property development
projects in eight PRC cities, including Shenzhen, Changchun, Shenyang,
Weinan, Changsha, Shantou, Yunfu and Nanning. With a gross floor area
of about 4.65 million square meters, such projects cover commercial
complexes, high-class residences, hotels, commercial apartments, villas,
garden houses and other multi-format products, involving a total investment
of about RMB38,000 million. In 2020, the Group actively responded to the
difficulties and market changes, quantified the impact of the pandemic on its
normal operations during the Year, and adjusted the development pace and
business strategies according to the current development conditions, making
the feasible recovery strategies and plans.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

In terms of strategic development, the Company has deepened the “strategic
deep cultivation” in key cities of Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater
Bay Area and other regions that have good plans, strong economic strength
and sustained demographic dividends, while making full use of the industry
window period brought about by the pandemic. In addition, the Company
has seized the opportunities of financing environment improvement, high-
quality land supply, and strategic mergers and acquisitions, trying to achieve
a balance between value appreciation and land reserve and speed up the
integration of real estate resources.

In terms of product development, the pandemic has changed or even
reshaped the core purchasing needs of consumers for housing properties.
More and more people have increasingly recognised the importance of
home environment on physical health. The Company, on the basis of deeply
understanding consumers’ experiences and needs in different scenarios,
actively engages in product innovation and iterative upgrade, having achieved
a shift of focus from purely pursuing the perfect spatial functions to improving
living quality and satisfying customers’ emotional needs. The Company hopes
to provide property owners with diversified experiences, improve the growth
performance of communities, and make them and their neighbors enjoy a
healthy life in a good ecological community.

In terms of marketing management, the Company has formulated
comprehensive pandemic prevention and control rules and measures and
has taken the innovative initiatives under the premise of normalized prevention
and control, including live property viewing, online sales, and online properties
purchase. These initiatives, to a certain extent, make up for potential property
buyers’ lack of motivation to view properties offline, effectively promoting the
recovery of the Company’s sales performance.

In terms of engineering construction, the Group strives to push forward the
progress of all developing projects on the guiding principle of “overcoming
difficulties”, sparing no effort to ensure they are delivered as scheduled with
the desired effects in both quality and quantity. The Company continues to
increase added values of products by improving the product quality and all
links.

In 2020, the Group performed well in multiple project nodes of property
investment and development sectors.

On 18 June 2020, the groundbreaking ceremony of the foundation pit
supporting project of Baoxin Building located at Huagiangbei of Shenzhen
was successfully held, marking the official commencement of Baoxin Building
construction.

ERHRE

FERRERTE ORAMEBEIERM] =5
MARBHERNTEEAY  — T HHREEKR
MEIFL - EEE R - ARANBENEER
RNEBMEAMBRBHRT - BEFMFER: 5
—HEMEREREMEE LM HEED -
FFIRERT RFETT BT RAAEREENHHER
g INRMETEERESR -

EERRAEIH  REREERREHN S B
FEHMEEN HNEEZEPHELERFORLOS
Ko RRBEBEBRABBIRSR TEEENR
SREFER  BRETEMBFNIREBEEAR
eEMER=RDE LB  BREIERE
mEMRTT - ARBFPERFERME - AAF
HERFIZ T ENERLE  BEMENER
1 SRAELBERFOLEERDHKFRZE
BRI o

EITHEE D@ - ARASE T BHEPHESE
M BREREERCHEANRIRT - A%
FRERES  HREEE B LBEHFTH
BENE  —ERELRETBEERTERD
AT REFER - BRTER KRB HE REHIRIE -

EIRERIHE  AEEXFHEPIEREFHE
2 IWSIRIRA - BAHEETIZERE - BRSIE
TiEmTIAR  REREHERERETHK BB
TERGERREERMRYE - TETE E @
&

—ToTE AREYERREABRRRES
HE TR A B RE
“ECRFERATNAR  LRRYIERIENER

REEBEN X ETREATEENET - 2658
EEMARELANRAEZRFS

EHBEMEBARLR 2020F K




CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEHmE

Block No. 3 of Weinan Project was opened for sale on 17 May 2020. Block
Nos. 2 and 5 were opened for sale on 22 August 2020. Block No. 6 was
opened for sale on 26 September 2020. Block Nos. 1 and 7 were opened
for sale on 21 November 2020. The annual target subscription completion
rate, target contract signing completion rate, and target return completion
rate of Weinan Project all exceeded 100%. The Weinan Project Company
accomplished to become the sales champion in the real estate market of
Weinan during the pandemic.

On 7 May 2020, the Shenyang Baoxin Mansion Project obtained a land of
parcel (the “Jiuzhong Land”) with an area of approximately 11,000 square
meters through bidding at a total consideration of RMB599 million. The
construction of Shenyang Baoxin Mansion Project officially commenced on 10
August of the same year. As planned, two 33-storey high-rise residences and
one 3-storey commercial complex would be built. It is planned that Shenyang
Baoxin Mansion would be launched for sale by the end of May 2021, and the
saleable area would exceed 35,000 square meters.

On 15 May 2020, property units in Block Nos. 13 and 21 of Nanning
Premium Residential Project Phase Ill were officially launched for sale. As
result of adequate preliminary preparation and the advantages of strong
project residence products which contributed to sufficient customer reserves
at the early stage, the project achieved excellent sales within a short period.

Block No. 7 and the parking lot of Phase Il of Shantou Chaoyang Project was
subscribed offline on 1 October 2020 and 30 October 2020 respectively.

In addition, Phase | of the Yunfu Yuelanshan Project was launched for sale for
the first time on 29 May 2020, and was completed and put on records on 31
December 2020.

Cultural sports operation

In terms of the Company’s cultural sports sector, relying on its proprietary
property resources, the Company has unblocked the industrial chain of the
culture and sports industry, greatly developing culture and entertainment,
leisure tourism, sports and health, and other large consumption industries.
The Group’s main cultural sports operation includes New Sports Marine
Sports Centre (“Sports Centre”), New Sports Marine Training Centre (“Training
Centre”) and Shenzhen Bihaiwan Golf Practising Court.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

In 2020, in addition to the original sports and training facilities, the Group
further increased and successfully expanded the investment in the cultural
sports industry. By incorporating new formats of purpose-oriented
consumption into the layout of cultural sports industry, the Company has
achieved the integrated development of culture, sports, and entertainment
sectors, providing more possibilities for high-quality projects in core cities.

In the first half of 2020, Sports Centre could hardly carry out any sports
events as planned on schedule and suspended all marine sports leisure
projects, and the harbor basin was almost in a state of suspension, leading
to an inevitable huge effect on the performance of our cultural sports sector,
which in turn caused huge economic losses. Hence, Sports Centre took full
advantage of the mandatory rest period to enrich the service connotation
and improve the business skills, business planning ability and professional
operation ability. Besides, Sports Centre enhanced innovative thinking of
product structure and operation mode, actively adapted itself to the changes
in social consumption demand in the post-pandemic era, and enhanced its
sensitivity to market trends, and the efficiency of product design and landing,
which aims to strengthen the resisting ability to cope with force majeure
events in the future.

As the pandemic was gradually controlled in the second half of 2020, the
economic recovery began, the awareness of universal health was significantly
enhanced, “healthy consumption” became an important trend, and the
demand for healthy consumption was further released. Paying close attention
to the changes in consumer demands, value propositions and consumption
scenarios, the Company re-evaluated the product portfolio and overall
strategies. The Company focused on the business layout in advance around
the theme of “healthy life” in the post-pandemic era, aiming to find a new way
different from the traditional cultural sports sector platform of Sports Centre
and Training Centre. The three purpose-oriented consumer businesses,
namely children playroom, fithess room and KTV, were being introduced
during the Year, to realize diversity of healthy entertainment activities with
the excellent experience, and to better address the adverse impact of the
pandemic and meet the rebounding demand after the new normal.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEHmE

On 26 September 2020, the Group’s mid-to-high-end children entertainment
project, namely Xiao Mu Tong Playroom was put into trial operation. As of
the date of the Report, the project was recognised on the Internet review
platforms, ranking atop in Shenzhen in the applause rate.

On the same day of 26 September 2020, Xin Dong Neng Fitness Club, the
Company’s high-end gymnasium project, was opened for trial operation.
Since its opening, it has been highly recognised by its members with
admiration to its high-end fitness equipment, comfortable environmental
facilities and high service level.

To summarise, in 2020, the Group’s cultural sports sector especially Sports
Centre and Training Centre experienced a cliff fall in visiting guests due to
the deep impact of the pandemic as a direct result, the operating revenue of
yacht club segment and training segment has significantly deteriorated for
the whole year, representing a sharp decrease from HK$118 million in 2019
to approximately HK$18.9 million for the Year, which has led to significant
losses and seemed not being able to be restored to its original position
within a short period of time. As a result, there was an impairment loss of
intangible assets in the financial accounts of Sports Centre and Training
Centre for approximately HK$420 million, compounded by the declining of
profit contribution from above property investment and development, which
ultimately resulted in a net loss of approximately HK$791 million for the Year.
Notwithstanding, the Group’s cash position was not affected since such
impairment loss of intangible asset had no impacts on the cash flow being
generated from normal operations. The Group still maintained sufficient funds
and sound overall financial strength regardless of outbreak of the pandemic.

Prospect

Looking forward to 2021, the PRC will embrace new-type urbanization of
higher quality, many first-tier and second-tier cities will relax restrictions on
household registration, and development dividends of key regions and urban
agglomerations will be released. During the 14th Five-Year Plan period,
the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area will also usher in the
strategic window period of real rapid growth.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Under the new development pattern with domestic large cycle as the
mainstay and domestic and international dual cycle promoting each other,
the PRC real estate market will continue to maintain its stable development,
and the cultural sports and entertainment industry will experience a more
robust growth under the background of deeper integration. The Group’s
management and team members will calmly handle new situations and new
changes arising from the pandemic, and promote the Company’s “national
layout optimization” strategy, to improve the property industry layout and
achieve the diversified development of the culture and sports industry.

In 2021 as the first year of the 14th Five-Year Plan, both opportunities
and challenges will coexist. The Group will continue to shoulder the
mission of creating more value for shareholders and assuming more social
responsibilities, implement the vision of “Building the Beauty of Life”, resort to
two-wheel driving based on high-quality services and commercial innovation,
and strive to achieve the goal of property investment and development, and
leading development of the culture, sports and entertainment sectors.

Finally, | would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude to
the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company, the
management team and all employees for their sense of responsibility and
dedication in the past eventful year. | also would like to extend my best
wishes to all partners and shareholders.

By Order of the Board
Glory Sun Land Group Limited

Yao Jianhui
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2021

ERHRE

o —F > EUABRKRBRATE  BABEKE
EEME(RENNERERT - PEFMETS
DETEERFIRES  XRREEXODHERE
BAMBFT  MRERYDEERFK - KNEE
ERER—RERE LB N R E B
HETIEN - L - U EERMREEL
XEBEXRBERZIUC  HEARR BB
B BB E IR EN o

ERAEEEKBNBARI T Mh I BEES 2
FrAEEBRBARRAEESEE  AEE
ZHEREMNER  BERIERERZXINEE
R BREEARFMEXEFERES  EF
(BRI I EBIRE | EXRENE
FEE -

K& AANEBEEERARTER(EF)E
((E%g])  EEEBREZRETIEBRE—FH
R RS RER O E EERMER SRR
W BB AERH  ARBEARBIRE E&ELHF
HBLAR

EEEEW
BEHNENEEERALR

B
phizeE

BB T F=—A=+=H

EHBEMEBARLR 2020F K




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB WA

Review of Results and Operations

The revenue of the Group mainly arose from five (5) major business segments,
namely (i) property development and property investment; (i) trading of
commodities; (iii) operation of a yacht club and a golf practising court; (iv)
provision of training services and (v) trading of home appliances in the PRC.

During the Year, the Group recorded revenue of approximately HK$6,785.4
million which was decreased by approximately 30.5% from that of
approximately HK$9,767.5 million for the year ended 2019 (the “Prior Year”).
The decline in revenue would be mainly attributable to the outbreak of the
pandemic since the beginning of 2020 and the significant decrease in the
revenue from the property sector of the Group. The revenue with respect to
the sector of the property investment and property development has dropped
whilst the operating revenue of the Group’s cultural sports segment has
significantly deteriorated as a direct result of cliff fall in the visiting guests.

In respect of the revenue from the property development and property
investment sectors, the revenue was approximately HK$532.7 million for
the Year which was decreased by approximately 87.8% year-on-year.
Meanwhile, revenue from operation of a yacht club and provision of training
services recorded approximately HK$18.9 million for the Year and dropped
by approximately 84% year-on-year.

In 2020, the cost of sales of the Group was approximately HK$6,754.2
million, which was decreased by 15.8% from approximately HK$8,022.9
million in the Prior Year. Along with the decrease in revenue, the gross profit
was approximately HK$31.2 million for the Year, comparing to approximately
HK$1,744.6 million for the Prior Year, while the corresponding gross profit
margin decreased from 17.9% to 0.5%. The significant drop in gross profit
margin was mainly attributable to the decline of contribution from property
sales since those property projects made handover to customers in the Year
were relatively smaller in scale than those in the Prior Year.

With the sustainable business development and expansion of the Group
for the Year, the Group’s selling and distribution expenses amounted to
approximately HK$94.4 million (2019: approximately HK$47.9 million)
representing an increase of approximately 97.0%. In addition, administrative
expenses was increased by approximately 13.5% when compared to
the Prior Year and amounted to approximately HK$122.1 million (2019:
approximately HK$107.6 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The cultural sports sector of the Group suffered from the declining
performance throughout the Year due to the pandemic. Based on the
valuation of fair value changes in relevant business, an impairment loss for
the relevant intangible assets of operation of both Yacht Club and Training
segments amounted to approximately HK$419.8 million was incurred (2019:
approximately HK$138.9 million).

As at 31 December 2020, based on the corresponding results of valuation
carried out by an independent professional valuer related to Yunfu Baoneng
Property Limited (“Yunfu Project Company”), the Group made a one-
off impairment loss provision for the goodwill amounted to approximately
HK$18.6 million (2019: approximately HK$177.3 million). Besides, since the
assessed net realisable value of the property inventories held by Yunfu Project
Company had been lower than its carrying cost amount, the inventory value
was therefore written down by approximately HK$121.7 million (2019: Nil).

The real estate portfolio of the Group comprised residential and commercial
properties in Shenyang, Hefei, Shenzhen and Hunan, as well as certain
properties under construction in Shantou and Nanning, which were held for
investment purpose. As at 31 December 2020, the loss arising from the net
fair values change of those investment properties amounted to approximately
HK$52.3 million (2019: approximately HK$22.3 million) was recognised.

Meanwhile, a fair value gain of approximately HK$18.3 million for the Year
(2019: approximately HK$10.6 million) was resulted from the adjustment
on derivative financial assets in relation to the put option as part of the
consideration for the acquisition of Yue Jin Asia Limited in 2016.

Net impairment losses on financial and contract assets increased to
approximately HK$83.8 million from approximately HK$45.7 million for the
Prior Year, which was primarily due to an increase in impairment recognised
on the contract assets related to the construction project during the Year.

Finance costs represented mainly interest expenses and other borrowing
costs in relation to bank and other borrowings. During the Year, finance costs
amounted to approximately HK$120.5 million (2019: approximately HK$231.8
million), representing a decrease by approximately 48% compared to the
Prior Year.

Income tax expense, which consisted of the Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”)
and the Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”) levied in the PRC as well as their
deferred tax effect, contributed a credit of approximately HK$20.3 million for
the Year while an income tax expense amounted to approximately HK$532.5
million was recognised in the Prior Year. The income tax credit was mainly
attributable to the increase in deferred tax credit along with the reversal
of temporary differences arising on fair value adjustments on investment
properties and intangible assets.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB WA

Given the foregoing factors, the Group recorded a net loss of approximately
HK$790.6 million for the Year, as compared to the net profit of approximately
HK$499.0 million for the Prior Year.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

The Group finances its liquidity and capital requirements primarily through
cash generated from operations, bank borrowings and equity contribution
from shareholders.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had bank and cash balances of
approximately HK$735.5 million (31 December 2019: approximately
HK$634.1 million), while the pledged and restricted bank deposits amounted
to approximately HK$618.1 million (31 December 2019: approximately
HK$825.8 million). Total borrowings of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$12,363.7 million as at 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019:
approximately HK$8,469.6 million), of which equivalents of approximately
HK$1,388.0 million (31 December 2019: approximately HK$1,499.5 million)
and approximately HK$10,975.7 million (31 December 2019: approximately
HK$6,970.1 million) were denominated in Hong Kong dollar and Renminbi
respectively.

Total borrowings included bank and other loans of approximately
HK$11,271.9 million (31 December 2019: approximately HK$6,373.0 million),
and corporate bond of approximately HK$874.0 million (31 December 2019:
approximately HK$1,539.4 million), and notes payable of approximately
HK$217.8 million (31 December 2019: approximately HK$557.2 million). All
loans bore fixed interest rates and exposed the Group to fair value interest
rate risk.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had a net current asset of approximately
HK$5,710.9 million, as compared to amount of approximately HK$3,257.9
million as at 31 December 2019. As at 31 December 2020, the gearing ratio
of the Group was approximately 2.7 (31 December 2019: approximately 1.5),
which was calculated on the basis of the total borrowings less bank and cash
balances and pledged and restricted bank deposits divided by total equity as
at the respective reporting date.

The Directors will continue to follow a prudent policy in managing the Group’s
cash and cash equivalents and maintain a strong and healthy liquidity position
to ensure that the Group is well placed to take advantage of future growth
opportunities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Capital Expenditure

The total spending on the additions of property, plant and equipment and
investment properties amounted to approximately HK$446.4 million for the
Year (2019: approximately HK$2,775.7 million).

Charges of Assets

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment, inventories and investment properties amounted to approximately
HK$5.1 million (2019: Nil), approximately HK$7,803.0 million (2019:
approximately HK$5,052.5 million) and approximately HK$3,522.8 million
(2019: approximately HK$2,065.7 million) respectively were pledged as
security for the Group’s bank loans and other borrowings granted in relation
to the Group’s real estate business.

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of inventories approximately
HK$397.0 million were pledged for provision of financial guarantee to an
associated party of a former equity holder of a subsidiary of the Group. As
at 31 December 2020, the financial guarantee had been released and the
respective properties under development had been unpledged during the
Year.

The Group’s pledged and restricted bank deposits amounted to
approximately HK$618.1 million (2019: approximately HK$825.8 million)
was pledged to banks to secure notes payable granted to the Group and
guarantee deposits for construction of pre-sale properties.

Employee and Remuneration Policies

The Group has hired 614 employees as at 31 December 2020 (31 December
2019: 555) in Hong Kong and the PRC. The Group reviews remuneration and
benefits of its employees annually according to the relevant market practice
and individual performance of the employees. Save for the social security
insurance in the PRC and the mandatory provident fund scheme in Hong
Kong, the Group has not set aside or accrued any significant funds to provide
for retirement or similar benefits for its employees.

Foreign Exchange and Currency Risks

Most of the Group’s revenue and expenses were generated from the PRC
and were denominated in Renminbi. During the Year, the Group had not
hedged its foreign exchange risk because the exposure was considered
insignificant. Our management will continue to monitor our foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging the foreign currency exposure when it is
necessary.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB WA

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no material contingent liabilities
(2019: Nil).

Commitments

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s commitment was approximately
HK$15,961.7 million (2019: approximately HK$10,992.4 million) in respect
of contracted but not provided for expenditures on properties under
development and the acquisition of property, plant and equipment.

Significant Investment, Material Acquisitions or
Disposals of Subsidiaries and Affiliated Companies

Save for those disclosed in the Report, there was no other significant
investments held as at 31 December 2020 nor other material acquisitions and
disposals of subsidiaries or affiliated companies made by the Group during
the Year.

Share Options

2014 Share Option Scheme was adopted on 26 March 2014. As at 31
December 2020, the number of shares in respect of which options had been
granted and remained outstanding was Nil (2019: Nil).

Final Dividend

The Directors do not recommend payment of any final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).
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DIRECTORS AND KEY PERSONNEL PROFILES

Directors

Mr. Yao Jianhui

Chairman & Executive Director

Mr. Yao Jianhui (“Mr. Yao”), aged 49, joined the Company as the executive
Director and the chairman of the Company (the “Chairman”) since 20
December 2018. He graduated from South China University of Technology in
the PRC with a postgraduate diploma in business administration.

Mr. Yao has acted as the executive director, chairman and chief executive
officer of Glory Sun Financial Group Limited (“GSFG”) (Stock Code: 1282,
a company listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited) (the “Stock Exchange”) since August 2015. He also acts as director
of several subsidiaries of GSFG.

From March 2002 to March 2003, Mr. Yao acted as the executive vice
president of &I E R EEE B R A7 (Shenzhen Baoneng Investment
Group Co., Ltd.*). From July 2010 to October 2014, Mr. Yao acted as the
general manager and chairman of the board of directors of EHIXE RN B
fR A A (Baocheng Investment Co., Ltd.*) (Stock Code: 600892, a company
listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange) (currently known as KRB LIS E I
M AEBR A 7] (Dasheng Times Cultural Investment Co., Ltd.*). From June 2006
to January 2019, he was the chairman of the board of directors of & BE1E
(FRBE1) AR AR (Baoneng Holding (China) Co., Ltd.*).

Mr. Zhang Xiaodong

Vice Chairman & Executive Director

Mr. Zhang Xiaodong (“Mr. Zhang”), aged 47, has joined the Company as
the executive Director, the Chairman and the chief executive officer of the
Company (the “CEQ”) since 1 April 2016, he resigned as the CEO and
was re-designated as the vice-chairman of the Company on 20 December
2018. He also holds directorship in certain subsidiaries of the Company. He
has over 20 years’ experience in strategic investment, corporate finance,
budgeting analysis and capital management.

He is a shareholder and a director of R I TR AE B0 B i & 42 & 32 i D B R
X A (Shenzhen Super Energy International Supply Chain Management Co.,
Ltd.”) (listed on the National Equities Exchange and Quotations, stock code:
836686). He held various positions with a wide range of sizeable companies.
In particular, from September 2009 to December 2013, he acted as the vice
president of Baoneng Investment and the general manager of BAEREAR

A 7] (Baoneng Commercial Co., Ltd.”).

From May 2005 to August 2009, he was the vice general manager of ;&I
BB E IR AR Q7 (Shenzhen Galaxy Real Estate Development Co.,
Ltd*); and from April 1998 to April 2005 he was the assistant to chairman
of the board of directors of JRINTIZEM B ¥ 2 & B R A A (Shenzhen Meidi
Real Estate Development Limited*). He graduated from the Department of
Industrial Economics, Shaanxi Institute of Finance and Economics with a
bachelor’s degree in 1993.
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DIRECTORS AND KEY PERSONNEL PROFILES

EENRTEAE[N

Ms. Xia Lingjie

Executive Director & CEO

Ms. Xia Lingjie (“Ms. Xia”), aged 33, joined the Company as the non-executive
Director on 1 April 2016 and she was re-designated as the executive
Director on 17 August 2016. On 27 March 2019, she was appointed again
as the executive Director and CEO. Ms. Xia also holds directorship in certain
subsidiaries of the Company.

Ms. Xia received a bachelor’s degree in broadcasting, television and news
from Wuhan University and a bachelor’s degree in psychology from Central
China Normal University. She graduated from Wuhan University with a
master’s degree in communication in 2011 and earned a master’s degree
in Global Journalism from University of Sheffield, UK in 2012. She was the
assistant to general manager and deputy general manager of I 48 E E 1
ABRAF] (Shenzhen Wangdian Media Co., Ltd.*) from January 2014 to June
2016. From 2013 to 2014, she was the director of business operation of )&l
B 2% S b 8 A R A A (Shenzhen Guosheng Culture and Media Co., Ltd.”).

Ms. Xia is a veteran in business management, fund management, and cultural
media, especially experienced in company strategy formulation and execution,
company operational management, investors’ relationship management and
capital management.

Ms. Zhan Yushan

Non-executive Director

Ms. Zhan Yushan (“Ms. Zhan”), aged 42, was appointed as the non-executive
Director on 26 October 2018. She graduated from 1 R EIE TR AE: (Central
Television Broadcasting University of China*) in 2009 with a bachelor’s degree
in law.

Ms. Zhan has been further appointed as the chief legal officer of the Company
since 20 December 2018. Ms. Zhan has acted as the deputy general
manager in % 31T & R B B BR A 7] (Shenzhen Feng Cheng Technology
Company Limited*) since July 2016. She has also been the president of 3
YT E B ERM AR AT (Shenzhen Lan Si Guang Technology Company
Limited*) since December 2014. She served as the secretary to the president
in general manager office of & I T @ ) i %% 3 5% & R 2 7] (Shenzhen
Nanyou Development Construction Limited*) from December 2004 to
December 2013.
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DIRECTORS AND KEY PERSONNEL PROFILES

Ms. He Suying

Independent Non-executive Director

Ms. He Suying (“Ms. He”), aged 55, was appointed as the independent non-
executive Director on 30 May 2016. She obtained a bachelor’s degree in
economics from Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics, majoring in
infrastructure finance and credit, and a master’s degree in economics from
the investment and economics department of Dongbei University of Finance
and Economics, majoring in investment and economical management. She
possesses extensive experience in areas including internal audit, corporate
financial analysis, management, investment decision-making and business
consolidation.

Ms. He has over ten years of experience in corporate internal audit. Since
May 2006, Ms. He has been working in XY T HEEEEEFR A 7
(Shenzhen Capall Asset Management Co., Ltd.”) as the executive director.
She had been the director and the chief financial officer of the company. She
concurrently serves as the independent director of R THIE I LN A
B2 A &) (Shenzhen Salubris Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd.*). From January 2010
to July 2017, she served as the independent director of AR LRE
f% 17 & BR A &) (Dasheng Times Cultural Investment Co. Ltd.*). From 2011
to 2017, she was the independent director of & 5 18 ¥ &7k i 15 B IR A T
(Guangdong Evergreen Feed Industry Co., Ltd.*) and & & sz $IicmH AR
2 7A] (Leadshine Technology Co., Ltd.*) in Shenzhen. From September 2007
to September 2013, she was the independent director of 3¢ % %k & & i% 17
A BR 2 A (MYS Group Co., Ltd.*). From August 2003 to December 2008,
she served as the director of T BIEZEER D BR AR (Shenzhen Seg.
Dasheng Co., Ltd.*) (now renamed as &3 2 #1417 i% (5 G R A 7] (Shenzhen
Quanxinhao Co., Ltd.”).

Ms. He previously served as the supervisor and the officer-in-charge of
the auditing department of Weishen Securities Co., Ltd., a section chief of
the auditing department of Shenzhen Branch, Guangdong Development
Bank and the lecturer of the investment and finance department of Jiangxi
University of Finance and Economics.

Dr. Tang Lai Wah

Independent Non-executive Director

Dr. Tang Lai Wah (“Dr. Tang”), aged 63, was appointed as the independent
non-executive Director on 30 May 2016. She is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (“ACCA”), the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of
Directors and a member of the Hong Kong Independent Non-Executive
Director Association. Dr. Tang holds a degree of Bachelor of Arts with honors
in Accountancy, degree of Master of Business Administration (Executive) and
degree of Doctor of Business Administration from the City University of Hong
Kong.
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DIRECTORS AND KEY PERSONNEL PROFILES

EENRTEAE[N

Dr. Tang has over 30 years of accounting, corporate finance and financial
management experience in telecommunication, media and information
technology industries. Dr. Tang has been the chief financial officer and
company secretary of Excel Technology International (Hong Kong) Limited
(“Excel Technology”) since 2002. Prior to joining Excel Technology, she was
the group financial controller in companies listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, including Star Telecom International Holdings Limited and
South China Media Group. Dr. Tang has extensive experience in the merger
and acquisition activities, the initial public offering on the main board of the
Stock Exchange, overseeing corporate governance and monitoring corporate
compliance of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”)
on the Stock Exchange and regulations.

Dr. Tang has been elected as committee member of ACCA Hong Kong,
and vice president of Hong Kong Business Accountants Association. She is
currently appointed as a committee member of the departmental advisory
committee for the Department of Accountancy by the City University of
Hong Kong. Previously, Dr. Tang had been appointed as a specialist and
financial expert by the Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and
Vocational Qualifications.

Mr. Wong Chun Bong

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Wong Chun Bong (“Mr. Wong”), aged 62, joined the Company as the
independent non-executive Director on 20 December 2018. He holds a
Higher Diploma in Accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic, currently
known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

Mr. Wong has been the independent non-executive director of GSFG since
November 2009. Since May 2017, he has also acted as the independent
non-executive director of Guangzhou R&F Properties Co., Ltd (Stock Code:
2777), a company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Wong is the founder of a firm of certified public accountants in Hong
Kong. He is also a member of the Council of the Hong Kong Polytechnic
and a fellow member of each of ACCA, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Mr. Wong was an ex-member
of the Court of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and the ex-chairman of
the executive committee of the ACCA Hong Kong.

Key Personnel

Mr. Fong Ching Kong, aged 55, has been appointed as the Chief Financial
Officer and company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”)
since 20 January 2017. Mr. Fong holds a Master degree of Business
Administration. He is an associate member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of each of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries, the Chartered Governance Institute, and the Taxation Institute
of Hong Kong. Mr. Fong has over 30 years of experience in professional
accounting, financial management, tax, and company secretary. Prior to
joining the Company, he served as the financial controller, company secretary
and authorised representative of a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange.

* For identification purpose only
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors have pleasure in presenting the annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements. Details and respective analysis of the main
business segments of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2020
are set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

Results and Appropriation

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
on pages 138 to 139.

No interim dividend was declared during the Year (2019: Nil) and the Directors
do not recommend the payment of any final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2020 (2019: Nil).

Closure of Registers of Members

For the purpose of determining the shareholders who are entitled to attend
and vote at the annual general meeting of the Company to be held on 3 June
2021 (the “2021 Annual General Meeting”), the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Monday, 31 May 2021 to Thursday, 3 June
2021, both days inclusive. During this period, no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for attending and voting at the 2021 Annual
General Meeting, all transfers of shares accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar and transfer office, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m.
on Friday, 28 May 2021.

Business Review

A review of the business of the Group during the Year and a discussion on
the Group’s future business development, possible risks and uncertainties
that the Group may be facing are provided in the Chairman’s Statement on
pages 6 to 13 and Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 14 to 18
of the Report.

The financial risk management objectives and policies of the Group are shown
in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements. An analysis of the Group’s
performance during the Year using key financial performance indicators is
provided on pages 14 to 16 of the Report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

Discussion on the Group’s environmental policies and performance,
relationships with its key stakeholders and compliance with relevant laws and
regulations which have a significant impact on the Group are provided on
pages 61 to 128 of the Report.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Company is committed to improving environmental sustainability and
will closely monitor the performance. In accordance with Rule 13.91 of
and Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules, details of environmental policies and
performance of the Company are set out in the section headed “Environment,
Social and Governance Report” on pages 61 to 128 of the Report. We have
complied with the “comply or explain” provisions set out in the ESG Reporting
Guide in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules.

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and Regulations

For the businesses and industries in which the Group operates, the most
important laws and regulations in the PRC include (but not limited to)
laws related to the establishment of real estate development enterprises,
acquisition of land use rights, property development, commercial housing
sales or pre-sales, and environmental protection. During the Year, the Group
has complied with all the relevant and applicable PRC laws and regulations
governing the business of property development and management in all
material respects, and we have obtained all material licenses, permits and
certificates for the purpose of operating our business. For the Year, the Group
has no non-compliance incident that have had a material adverse effect on
the Company.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the Group’s property, plant and equipment during
the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 20 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Summary Financial Information

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 5 of the Report. This summary
does not form part of the audited consolidated financial statements.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 142 and note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Distributable Reserves

Under the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands, as at 31 December 2020,
the contributed surplus and share premium accounts are distributable to
the Shareholders provided that immediately following the date on which any
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be able to pay its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Movements in the distributable reserves of the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”), pursuant to
which the Board may recommend dividends to the Shareholders, to allow the
Shareholders to participate in the sharing of the Company’s profits and the
Company to retain adequate reserves for its future growth.

The recommendation of the payment of any dividend is subject to the
absolute discretion of the Board, and any declaration of final dividend will
be subject to the approval of the Shareholders. In proposing any dividend
payout, the Board shall take into account factors in all aspects including,
the Company’s current and future operations, liquidity position and capital
requirements, as well as dividends received from the Company’s subsidiaries
and associates, which in turn will depend on the ability of those subsidiaries
and associates to pay a dividend. The payment of dividend is also subject to
any restrictions under the law of Cayman Islands and the Company’s Articles
of Association.

The Board will continually review the Dividend Policy and reserves the right in
its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend, modify and/or cancel the
Dividend Policy at any time, and Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a
legally binding commitment by the Company in respect of its future dividend
and/or in no way obligate the Company to declare a dividend at any time or
from time to time.

Donation

During the Year, the Group made charitable and other donations amounting
to approximately HK$140,000 (2019: approximately HK$6,000).
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the Year, sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 26.3% of the total sales for the Year and sales to the largest
customer included therein amounted to approximately 9.2%. The Group’s
five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 44.3% of the total cost of
services and among which approximately 16.6% is attributable to the largest
supplier for the Year.

To the best of the Director’s knowledge, none of the Directors or any of their
close associates or any Shareholders (which to the best knowledge of the
Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
interest in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers during the Year.

Relations with Employees, Customers and Suppliers

The Group recognises that the employees, customers and suppliers are keys
to corporate sustainability and are keen on developing long-term relationships
with stakeholders.

The Company understands that it is important to maintain good relationship
with customers. The Group has established procedures in place for handling
customers’ complaints and customer satisfaction surveys in order to ensure
that customers’ complaints are dealt with in a prompt and timely manner.

The Group is also dedicated to develop good relationship with suppliers as
long-term business partners to ensure stable supplies and timely delivery of
materials. The Group reinforces business partnerships with suppliers and
contractors by recurring communication in proactive and effective manner so
as to ensure quality and delivery.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Directors

The directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date of the
Report are:

Executive Directors
Mr. Yao Jianhui

Mr. Zhang Xiaodong

Ms. Xia Lingjie

Non-Executive Director
Ms. Zhan Yushan

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Ms. He Suying

Dr. Tang Lai Wah

Mr. Wong Chun Bong

Pursuant to Article 84 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Ms. Zhan
Yushan, Ms. He Suying and Dr. Tang Lai Wah will retire from office by rotation
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the 2021 Annual
General Meeting.

Independent Non-Executive Directors’ Confirmation

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of his/her independence to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and as at the date of the Annual Report still considers that all of
the independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

Directors’ Service Contracts

All of the executive Directors and the non-executive Director have respectively
entered into service contracts with the Company. Details of the service
contracts include: (1) a term of directorship for three years with effect from the
date of appointment, reappointment or re-election; and (2) the contract shall
be terminated according to the terms of each respective contract.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed a letter of
appointment with the Company. Details of the letter of appointments mainly
include: (1) a term of directorship for three years with effect from the date of
appointment, reappointment or re-election; and (2) the letter of appointment
shall be terminated according to the terms of each letter of appointment.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

As at 31 December 2020, none of the Directors proposed for re-election at
the 2021 Annual General Meeting had a service contract with the Company
which was not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, every Director, other
officer and auditor shall be entitled to be indemnified out of assets of the
Company against all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by him/her as
a Director, Auditor or other officer of the Company about the execution of
the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has
arranged appropriate Directors’ and Officers’ liability insurance coverage for
the Directors and officers of the Company.

Remuneration Policy

The remuneration policy of the Group is set up by Salary Review Committee
on the basis of the Directors’ merit, qualifications and competence.

The emolument of the Directors are decided by Salary Review Committee,
having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual performance
and comparable market statistics. The Director’s fees are subject to the
Shareholders’ approval at general meetings.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme is set out in note 39
to the consolidated financial statements.

Emoluments of Directors and Five Highest Paid
Individuals

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group during the Year are set out in notes 14 and 15 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively. None of the Directors waived
or agreed to waive any emoluments during the Year.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short
Positions in Ordinary Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which
were required (a) to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
or short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO); or (b) to be recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 352 of the SFO; or (c) to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules, were as follows:

(a) Interests and short positions in Shares and underlying
Shares and Debentures of the Company
() Interests and short positions in Shares and underlying Shares

ESEHE

EERFERTHAERNEER - 156
ROREZPHESZR LR

NZZEZEF+ZA=+—0 ARAEER*
BITIRA BRAARA RISk BT AEEEAE (E & B.&%
%&HEEM@J(F B R ARSI ) EXVED) B9 %
- RO RESFFHEBA ()*E?F 5 N HA
i"fﬂﬂﬁﬂ%xv*ﬂ%?&8"*ﬁ%ﬂ‘\$ 122 FTEY
ERRAR (BEREEFREE 1\m1§IJ“ﬁ‘Fﬁ1I A%
EWRANEEREBENERIOAR) + H(0)ZEER
RiEES M S G E352(51F B E MR
WEAR  H(O)RIE TR BN g AT _E T e
ﬁ)\é%Lﬁ EHR SREEFRI([E2EFEI])
MEEAR GRFTHE RA B I ¢

(@) RARARGREBERDRESFTH
BERKE
() PR RAGRERR 7 498 a5 KoK

Approximate

Personal Corporate percentage of

interests in interest in Total interests Shares in issue

Name of Directors Shares Shares in Shares (Note 1)

HEBRTRGOZ

RRD R D RBRGB BMABEDL

EEME EA Rz NRER Mg (F5E1)

Mr. Yao Jianhui 1,314,000 (L) 3,145,544,700 (L) 3,146,858,700 (L) 69.16%
phiEiE s (Note 2) (F¥7E2)

Mr. Zhang Xiaodong 675,000 (L) - 675,000 (L) 0.01%

REERSEAE
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AR EIEZF ) m

(i) Interests in debentures of the Company (i)

Capacity in which interests in

Name of Directors debentures are held Principal amount of debentures

EEHA RESFPEEREZNSH BHEAELHE
Mr. Yao Jianhui Beneficial owner (Note 3) HK$110,000,000
YSE S-St BB AME3) 110,000,000/
Ms. Xia Lingjie Beneficial owner (Note 4) HK$2,000,000
BEfEL L BabEA A (ME4) 2,000,000/ 7T
Notes: MI3E
(1) As at 31 December 2020, the total issued share capital of the 1) RZTEZTF+ZA=+—
Company amounted to 4,550,104,797 Shares. B ARAz2HEeBTRAAE
4,550,104,7978& %17 °
(2)  As at 31 December 2020, these Shares were beneficially owned @ RZEZZF+—A=+—8"
respectively by Hong Kong Bao Xin Asset Management Limited Z 8t 7 Rl E BEREREEE f%
being interested in 3,124,415,652 Shares and Glory Sun Securities AR AR E &= %A 3,124,415,652
Limited being interested in 21,129,048 Shares. Hong Kong Bao it REHEFBRAFR
Xin Asset Management Limited is wholly-owned subsidiaries of 21,129,048t P A - B
GSFG, and Glory Sun Securities Limited is a non-wholly owned BEEEEEEBRARABN
subsidiary of GSFG in which GSFG holds 89.94% effective Bz 2EMBLR - MEHBSE
interest. GSFG is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held 5&@5%%%%@2#%%%%2
by Hong Kong Bao Xin Asset Management Limited and Glory Sun Al B e REA E£89.94% B
Securities Limited by virtue of the SFO. As at 31 December 2020, $E/\ o RIBEZ RG] - B
since Mr. Yao Jianhui, being the Chairman and the executive TREEARESEEEEEES
Director, through Tinmark Development Limited, a wholly-owned RARIREFNESFBERARDFELZ
subsidiary of him, was a controlling shareholder (as defined in the FiERGOFHEE#ER - RZT=T
Listing Rules) of GSFG. He was deemed to be interested in the F+-A=Z+—8 TEFHTE
3,145,544,700 Shares held by GSFG by virtue of SFO. EHEEBEBEREZENB AR
Tinmark Development Limited & &
MemsERRR(EER MR
Bl o RIEFFEH RAIEERG] - BER
TERNEH ¢ RIEFH 23,145,644,700
PRt R e o
(3)  On 18 September 2020, Mr. Yao Jianhui, the Chairman and the @ RZTZTFAATNB - EER
executive Director, entered into a subscription agreement with WITEEPEB L EBRANTEIL
the Company, pursuant to which the bonds with an aggregate REEGE - B - STAERERE
principal amount of HK$110,000,000 were subscribed by Mr. Yao K4 48%8110,000,0003 7T 7 — 4F
at an annual coupon rate of 8.8% for a term of one year. HIF B R A88%ZIEF ©
4)  On 22 June 2020, Ms. Xia Lingjie, the executive Director and @) RZTZTFERAZTZH BT

CEOQO, entered into a subscription agreement with the Company,
pursuant to which the bonds with an aggregate principal amount
of HK$2,000,000 were subscribed by Ms. Xia at an annual coupon
rate of 8.8% for a term of one year.

Abbreviations: “L” stands for long position
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(b) Interests and short positions in shares and underlying

shares of the associated corporation(s) of the Company
Glory Sun Financial Group Limited

Personal Interests Corporate interests

ESEHE

(b) AR TFEEEE R KBRS

PHEERAR
BB ERAA]

Approximate
percentage of

Total interest GSFG shares

Name of Directors in GSFG shares in GSFG shares in GSFG shares in issue
REHFSHBRAT REFSHROPT REFSRROP GHEHESRERT

EEpME HY 18 A #E 5 AR R WEEE ROZENESH

Mr. Yao Jianhui 44,468,000 (L)  14,794,943,600 (L)  14,839,411,600 (L) 47.28%

BB (Note 1) (H#&E1)

Mr. Zhang Xiaodong 800,000 (L) 2,639 (L) 802,639 (L) 0.01%

SREERSEAE

Notes:

1) As at 31 December 2020, Mr. Yao Jianhui, the Chairman and the
executive Director, held GSFG shares through Tinmark Development
Limited, a company wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Yao. Mr.
Yao was deemed to be interested in the shares owned by Tinmark
Development Limited by virtue of the SFO.

2 As at 31 December 2020, Mr. Zhang Xiaodong, the vice chairman of the
Company and the executive Director, held GSFG shares through Upright
Hoist Limited, a company wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Zhang.
Mr. Zhang was deemed to be interested in the shares owned by Upright
Hoist Limited by virtue of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the Directors
nor the chief executives of the Company or their respective associates
had or was deemed to have any interests or short positions in any Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required (a)
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or (b)
to be recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, or to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

(Note 2) (Ff&E2)

BaE

(1) R-ZE-TFE+_A=+—8 TEHH
TEShERAERRFEZEAEREEN
Tinmark Development Limited #5 & & ¥ &
AR o RIBEBFHREAEGRE - ShEkEH
18 1E A Tinmark Development Limited 5 &
BIRR (D R A s o

@ R-ZE-ZF+-A=+—8  &KQFE
ITRERNTESRREREILEBBHLEE
HHAMEAARARZEEN SRR
19 o RIEFEF RHIEGEO - SRAEERRIE
RIEFABRATNFERRMDPEAER -

Br EXFTEEEN R ZEF T _A=+—
B BEARBREERTIZTRABRRKESS
BB A TR AR RS EAARBEE (E& R ES
REIEGBIEXVED) Rt - ERER D R 7
BRERIERER - @QREESF B HRHIEXV
BETREDIBAME AR R R A ERIAR
(BEREEF RS EHERBEXRERR K
EFREANERIAR)  RO)CHEARBZ SR
HEGRGIFIB21{FFENELMARERIAR
HARBIRE ST AV A& AR 12 B BB 2 PO i 8 KO

PN
=
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Interests and Short Positions in the Shares and
Underlying Shares of the Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 December 2020, so far as is known to the Directors, the following
persons or entities, not being a Director or the chief executives of the
Company, had an interest or short position in the Shares or underlying
Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provision
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and were recorded in the register

kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO:

FERRARG R EER G P ER
5979
R-ZB-TF+-_A=+—8 BREBERM - A
TALTREE(WIHFEARREEREBTRAR)
R SRR IR P B IRIRE S5 R E 50 5E
XVEBEE2 K35 BRI GSTZA M AN A B 78 M 5 85
KR RIRIEEF MEAEEHFE336IEMTEMNER
AR

RROREEROPHESRLR

Interests and short positions in the Shares and underlying

Shares

Approximate
percentage of
Shares in issue

Capacity in (Note 1)
which Interests in Number of HERTREZ
Name of Shareholders Shares are held Shares held WAEDLE
REREHE RBROHIEEERNS 5 BENRGEE (B5E1)
Tinmark Development Limited Corporate Interest (Note 2) 3,145,544,700 (L) 69.13%
NEEm (H7E2)
Bao Xin International Group Limited Corporate Interest (Note 2) 3,145,544,700 (L) 69.13%
EHBIREE AR AA DA (7E2)
Bao Xin Development Limited Corporate Interest (Note 2) 3,145,544,700 (L) 69.13%
EMERERAT NEER (H7E2)
GSFG Corporate Interest (Note 2) 3,145,544,700 (L) 69.13%
k! DA (HFE2)
Great Sphere Developments Limited Corporate Interest (Note 2) 3,145,544,700 (L) 69.13%
NEER (H7E2)
Bao Xin International Asset Management Corporate Interest (Note 2) 3,124,415,652 (L) 68.67%
Limited
EEEREEETEARAT N AR (7E2)
Hong Kong Bao Xin Asset Management Beneficial Owner (Note 2) 3,124,415,652 (L) 68.67%

Limited
BAEFAEEEARAR

BEaEEAA(ME2)
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ESEHE

Approximate
percentage of
Shares in issue

Capacity in (Note 1)
which Interests in Number of HEERTREZ
Name of Shareholders Shares are held Shares held MABEDH
RRER RBRAFFEEZNSH BENRGEE (MF7%1)
Lin Xiaokun Corporate Interest (Note 3) 277,600,000 (L) 6.10%
PREE NAlEz (M)
Hongkun Limited Beneficial Owner (Note 3) 277,600,000 (L) 6.10%
sAHAR AR EmiEAa AMEES)
Notes: MIE

(1)

As at 31 December 2020, the total issued share capital of the Company
amounted to 4,550,104,797 Shares.

As at 31 December 2020, Tinmark Development Limited was the direct holding
company of Bao Xin International Group Limited and Bao Xin International
Group Limited was the direct holding company of Bao Xin Development Limited.
Tinmark Development Limited held approximately 47.14% of the total number
of issued shares in GSFG, and each of GSFG and Great Sphere Developments
Limited was an indirect holding company of each of Hong Kong Bao Xin Asset
Management Limited and Glory Sun Securities Limited in light of the following:

Hong Kong Bao Xin Asset Management Limited was a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of Bao Xin International Asset Management
Limited, which was in turn a direct wholly owned subsidiary of Great
Sphere Developments Limited and an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary
of GSFG;

Glory Sun Securities Limited was a direct wholly owned subsidiary of
Proficient Power Limited, which was owned by Glory Sun Financial
Holdings Limited directly as to 36.74%, and indirectly through Golden
Affluent Limited as to 63.26%. Glory Sun Financial Holdings Limited was
a direct wholly owned subsidiary of Great Sphere Developments Limited
and an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of GSFG. Golden Affluent
Limited was owned directly by Glory Sun Financial Holding Limited as to
84.10%. Therefore, GSFG holds approximately 89.94% effective interest
in Glory Sun Securities Limited.

MRZE-TFE+_A=+—H  AQARBETK
NEEBB4,550,104,797 AR5 ©

RZZEZZF+=ZA=+—H8 - Tinmak
Development Limited 4 2 #7 B 5 & B A R R A
MEEZERAR  MEFEREEERAAA
EHEERABRAAMNAZEZERAF o Tinmark
Development Limited 5 5 & 1 & B4 B #7175
BEH147.14% + T E 1< 82 & Great Sphere
Developments Limited D 5l BB BB EEEE R
BRAFRLBEHELFGRAASEOBEEZRA
7 REWT :

(@) BABCEEEBEERARABEEHERE
EEBRBRARMNEEZEMBAR -
MEEBRKEEERAFRAQF AGreat
Sphere Developments Limited 8 & # & &
WEARKENeROHEEEZENRB AR

(b) ENEFBRAFABRAERAFNE
BEE2EWBAR  MEBERARHBE
MemERERAREEHEF36.74%
I 3% i & ¥ A PR A 7] 5 % 5 63.26% ©
= ¥ & B E IR B IR A & /& Great Sphere
Developments Limited #) B # 2 & Hi B A
ARBNMERNMEZERBLAR - £
ERARBHENeRIERERARIEERE
584.10% ° ALt - EXF S REFEENE S
BRAT4189.94% K B R fE s
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Based on the above, (i) Tinmark Development Limited, Bao Xin International
Group Limited, Bao Xin Development Limited, GSFG and Great Sphere
Developments Limited were deemed to be interested in 3,145,544,700 Shares
held by Hong Kong Bao Xin Asset Management Limited and Glory Sun Securities
Limited and (i) Bao Xin International Asset Management Limited was deemed
to be interested in 3,124,415,652 Shares held by Hong Kong Bao Xin Asset
Management Limited.

) Hongkun Limited is a company wholly-owned by Mr. Lin Xiaokun. Accordingly
Mr. Lin Xiaokun is deemed to be interested in 277,600,000 Shares owned by
Hongkun Limited by virtue of SFO.

Abbreviations: “L” stands for long position

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, the Company has not
been notified by any person (other than Directors or the chief executive of the
Company) who had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the
register kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

Share Option Scheme

2014 Share Option Scheme

On 26 March 2014, the Company adopted a new share option scheme (the
“2014 Share Option Scheme”) and the major terms of the 2014 Share Option
Scheme were summarised as follows:

(@) Purpose of the 2014 Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the 2014 Share Option Scheme was (i) to attract and
retain the best quality personnel for the development of the Company’s
businesses; (ii) to provide additional incentives to employees,
consultants, agents, representatives, advisers, suppliers of goods or
services, customers, contractors, business allies and joint venture
partners; and (iii) to promote the long term financial success of the
Company by aligning the interests of option holders to the shareholders
of the Company (the “Shareholders”).
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Participants of the 2014 Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the 2014 Share Option Scheme, the Company may at its
absolute discretion grant options to any employee, consultant, service
provider, agent, customer, partner or joint venture partner of the
Company or its subsidiaries (including any director, whether executive
or non-executive and whether independent or not, of the Company or
its subsidiaries) who is in full-time or part-time employment with the
Company or its subsidiaries at the time when an option is granted to
such employee, or any person who, in the sole discretion of the Board,
have contributed or may contribute to the Group.

Total number of Shares available for issue under the 2014 Share
Option Scheme

The total number of Shares may be granted under the 2014 Share
Option Scheme is 24,691,756 Shares after adjustments for share
subdivision in 2015 and share consolidation in 2017, which represents
0.45% of the total number of Shares in issue at the date of the Report.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
2014 Share Option Scheme and any other schemes of the Company
shall not exceed 30% of the total number of Shares in issue from time
to time.

Maximum entitlernent of each participant

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted to each participant (including both exercised
and outstanding options) in any 12-month period must not exceed
1% of the total number of Shares in issue, unless approved by the
Shareholders in the manner as stipulated in the 2014 Share Option
Scheme.

Time of exercise of options

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the 2014
Share Option Scheme at any time during a period to be determined
and notified by the Directors to each grantee, which may commence
on the date on which the offer for the grant of options is made but shall
end in any event not later than 10 years from the date of the grant of
the option subject to the provisions for early termination thereof. No
minimum period for which the option must be held before it can be
exercised is specified in the 2014 Share Option Scheme.

(b)

(©

()

(e

ESEHE

ZEEERE & 2
RIE—ZT—MFEBRIESE > ARR 2%
B R R B AR AR R RIS EK B AR
2RGFBER - B - REHER K
B BP BHIAZEH(BEARRK
HIBARMEMES - T ARITIFIT
BEx T TwEREELESR) NEFE
2RMNBERRGH LA EHASEIEH AR
MR A TR KRB ARAE -

RIE —F—PIF B AR 1EE ZI AT #7THIR
(r 482
RZE—RFRMNDAFR T —LFRHE
B AR - BiE - —E RS A
BT D 42 8 A24,691,756/%  HHERA
e AR BTN B2 0.45% ©

RIRE =T — R RER 8| RA R I
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The subscription price per Share

The subscription price per Share in respect of an option granted
under the 2014 Share Option Scheme is such price as determined by
the Board at the time of the grant of the options, but in any case the
subscription price shall not be lower than the higher of:

° the closing price of the Share as stated in the daily quotation
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date on which the
options are offered, which must be a business day;

° the price being the average closing price of the Shares as stated
in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for
the five business days immediately preceding the date on which
the options are offered; and

o the nominal value of a Share on the date on which the options
are offered.

Payment on acceptance of option

A non-refundable sum of HK$10 or other amount as determined by the
Board by way of consideration for the grant of an option is required to
be paid by each of the grantee upon acceptance of the granted option.

Duration of the 2014 Share Option Scheme

The 2014 Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10
years from its adoption date (i.e. 26 March 2014). The 2014 Share
Option Scheme will terminate or expire (as the case may be) on the
earlier of (i) the approval of the Shareholders in a general meeting, and
(i) at the close of business on the day immediately preceding the tenth
anniversary of the adoption date (the “Scheme Period”).

After the Scheme Period, the Company cannot grant new options
but for so long as there are options granted but not yet exercised,
outstanding vested or unvested options, the 2014 Share Option
Scheme will remain in full force and effect of such outstanding vested
or unvested options or otherwise as may be required in accordance
with the 2014 Share Option Scheme. As at the date of the Report,
a total of 31,100,000 share options (after adjustments for share
subdivision in 2015 and share consolidation in 2017) had been granted
by the Company under the 2014 Share Option Scheme. The number of
outstanding share options as at 31 December 2020 is nil.
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Connected Transactions and Related Party
Transactions

During the Year, the Group has not entered into any non-exempt one-
off connected transactions which should be subject to the reporting,
annual review, announcement and/or independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements under the Listing Rules.

On 31 December 2020, & ¥7 1= i B R A A (Baoxin Holdings Company
Limited®) (“Baoxin Holdings”), a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into the Property Management Services Framework Agreement
(the “Framework Agreement”) with )& 31| &5 %€ iR 7% £ @ B R A 7] (Shenzhen
Jixiang Property Services Group Limited®) (“Shenzhen Jixiang”), indirectly
wholly-owned by Mr. Yao, the Chairman and the executive Director, being a
connected person of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules,
pursuant to which Shenzhen Jixiang agreed to provide property management
services to Baoxin Holdings and its subsidiaries (“Baoxin Holdings Group”) in
accordance with the principal terms of the Property Management Services
Framework Agreement for a period of three years from 1 January 2021 to
31 December 2023. The transactions under the Framework Agreement (the
“Transactions”) constitute continuing connected transactions.

The aggregate amount of the Property Management Services Fees payable by
Baoxin Holdings Group for the period from 1 January 2021 to 31 December
2023 will not exceed RMB115,000,000 and the annual caps for each of the
years ending 31 December 2021, 31 December 2022 and 31 December
2023 will be RMB20,000,000, RMB45,000,000 and RMB50,000,000,
respectively.

In respect of the Framework Agreement which constitutes the continuing
connected transactions, all the independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed the Transactions and confirmed that the Transactions have been
entered into: (a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (b)
on normal commercial terms or better; and (c) in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

As the term of the Framework Agreement commences on 1 January 2021, no
Transaction had carried out under the Framework Agreement within the Year.
Following the commencement of the Framework Agreement, the Company
will comply with all the requirements under Chapter 14A in respect of such
continuing connected transactions.

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken during the
Year under review are disclosed in note 44 to the consolidated financial
statements. Save as disclosed below, these related party transactions either
(i) do not constitute connected or continuing connected transactions; or (ii)
fall under the definition of a connected or continuing connected transaction,
but are exempt from the reporting, annual review, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the relevant requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the Year.

Share Capital

The Company’s total issued share capital as at 31 December 2020 was
4,550,104,797 ordinary Shares of HK$0.05 per Share. The Company did
not issue any new Shares during the Year. On 18 March 2021, the Company
entered into the placing agreement with the placing agent for placing of up to
910,020,959 new placing Shares, the details of which are provided under the
heading of Event After the Reporting Period on page 286.

Details of movements of the share capital of the Company during the Year are
set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN ORDINARY SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES” and “SHARE OPTION
SCHEMES”, at no time during the Year was the Company, any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the directors or the chief executive of the Company or any of their
respective spouses or children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Directors’ and Controlling Shareholders’ Interests
in Transactions, Arrangements or Contracts of
Significance

Save as disclosed in the section headed “CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS”, no contract of significance to
the business of the Group, to which the Company, any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of or at any time
during the year ended 31 December 2020, nor had there been any contract
of significance entered into between the Group, or any of its subsidiaries
and any of the Director or the Director’s connected party during the year
ended 31 December 2020. There was no any other transaction, arrangement
or contract of significance in relation to the Group’s business between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling Shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s
Listed Securities

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

Competing Interests

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules, the interests of Directors in
business which might compete with the Group during the year ended and as
at 31 December 2020 were as follows:

1. Mr. Yao Jianhui, being the Chairman and executive Director, is also
the executive director and controlling shareholder of GSFG, which
through its subsidiaries, is also engaged in property investment and
development in the PRC; and

2. Ms. Xia Lingjie, being the executive Director and CEO, is also the
directors of the controlling shareholders of GSFG, which through its
subsidiaries, is also engaged in property investment and development
in the PRC.

GSFG is involved in the investment and development of properties of different
types and/or in different locations, and the Board has been operating
independently of, and at arm’s length from, the businesses of GSFG, no
competition is considered to exist.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles
of Association or the laws of Cayman Islands, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Relief from Taxation

The Directors are not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares.

Borrowings

Particulars of borrowings of the Group are set out in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Subsidiaries

Particulars regarding principal subsidiaries are set out in note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Management Contracts

No contracts relating to the management and/or administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
subsisted during the Year.

Public Float

Based on the information that was publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its Directors, as at the date of the Report, there has
been sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s issued
shares as required under the Listing Rules.

Events After the Reporting Period

Particulars of events after the reporting period are set out in note 45 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Other than disclosed above and elsewhere in the Report, up to the date of

the Report, there is no other significant event identified by the management
subsequent to the reporting period.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Audit Committee

The Company has established an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”)
with written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules. The
primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review and supervise the
financial reporting process, risk management and internal control system of
the Group, and to review the Company’s annual report and to provide advice
and comments thereon to the Board. The Audit Committee comprises of Mr.
Wong Chun Bong (Chairman), Ms. He Suying and Dr. Tang Lai Wah, all of
whom are independent non-executive Directors.

The Audit Committee has reviewed and approved the Group’s annual results
for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Disclosures under Rules 13.20 to 13.22 of the Listing
Rules

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no circumstances which would give
rise to a disclosure obligation under Rules 13.20 to 13.22 of the Listing Rules.

Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to adopt corporate governance practices. The
Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 42 to 60 of this annual report.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020
have been audited by BDO Limited, who will retire and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company. A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company for the re-appointment of BDO Limited as
auditor of the Company.

BDO Limited was appointed as auditor of the Company on 19 December
2019 for the financial year ended 31 December 2019 after the resignation of
RSM Hong Kong who had acted as auditor of the Company for the preceding
five financial years. BDO Limited was re-appointed as auditor of the Company
at the annual general meeting of the Company on 2 June 2020.

On behalf of the Board

Yao Jianhui
Chairman

Hong Kong
22 March 2021

* For identification purpose only
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CEERRE

The Company emphasises on corporate governance and is committed to
maintaining high standard of corporate governance which is being reviewed
and strengthened from time to time.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Board and the management of the Company are of the opinion that
the Company has properly operated in accordance with the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the “CG Code”)
during the Year which sets out (a) code provisions (which are expected to
comply with); and (b) recommended best practices (which are for guidance
only) under Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. The Company has applied and
complied with the code provisions and the recommended best practices as
applicable.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct for securities transactions and
dealing (the “Code of Conduct”) by the Directors on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of the Model Code. Having made specific enquiry
of all Directors, they confirmed that they had complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code and the Code of Conduct during the
year ended 31 December 2020.

Board of Directors

At the date of the Report, the Board consists of three executive Directors
namely Mr. Yao Jianhui (Chairman), Mr. Zhang Xiaodong (Vice Chairman) and
Ms. Xia Lingjie (CEO); one non-executive Director namely Ms. Zhan Yushan;
and three independent non-executive Directors namely Ms. He Suying, Dr.
Tang Lai Wah and Mr. Wong Chun Bong. To the best knowledge of the
Company, none of the Directors has any family, financial, business or other
material/relevant relationship with any of other Directors.

The Company considers that the Board has the necessary skills and
experience appropriate for discharging their duties as Directors in the best
interest of the Company and that the current board size is adequate for its
present operations. Detailed biographies outlining each Director’s range of
specialist experience and suitability for the successful long-term management
of the Group can be found in the section headed “Directors and Key
Personnel Profiles” of the Report.

During the Year, Mr. Yao Jianhui, who is the Chairman, has met with the
independent non-executive Directors without the other Directors present.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the Chairman, namely Mr. Yao Jianhui, and the CEO, namely
Ms. Xia Lingjie, are segregated in order to reinforce their independence and
accountability. There are clear demarcations of responsibility and authority
between the Chairman and the CEO which ensure an appropriate balance
of power, increased accountability and greater capacity of the Board for
independent decision-making.

Corporate Governance Report

Role and function of the Board and the management

The principal functions of the Board are to make decisions on the objectives,
strategic plans, budgets and management structure of the Company;
to oversee the management of the business and affairs of the Group; to
supervise the management of the business and affairs with the objective of
enhancing the Company and Shareholders’ value with the proper delegation
of power to the management for the day-to-day operation of the Company,
implementation of the budgets and strategic plans and development of the
organization of the Company for implementing the Board’s decisions. The
composition and functions of each Board committee and their major roles
and functions are described below. The final decision still rests with the
Board unless otherwise provided for in the terms of reference of the relevant
committees.

Independent non-executive Directors are responsible to scrutinise the
Company’s performance in achieving agreed corporate goals and objectives;
and ensuring that the exercise of the board authority is within the powers
conferred to the Board under the Company’s Articles of Association,
applicable laws, rules and regulations.

Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from each
of the independent non-executive Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Directors consider that all the independent non-
executive Directors remain independent.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CEERRE

Appointment, Re-Election and Removal of Directors

Pursuant to Articles 84(1) and 84(2) of the Company’s Articles of Association,
one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire by rotation provided
that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general
meeting at least once every three years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for
re-election.

Article 83(3) of the Company’s Articles of Association provides that any
Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to
the existing Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company after his/her appointment and shall then be eligible
for re-election at such meeting.

Every Director, including non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors has been appointed for a term of three years and will be
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at least once every three
years at the annual general meeting of the Company. Their appointments
shall be reviewed by the Nomination Committee when they are being due for
re-election.

Board Meetings

The Board holds at least four meetings a year. The Board convenes meetings
on a regular basis and on an ad hoc basis, as required by business needs.
All Directors are invited to attend the Board meetings in person or by video/
telephone conference.

Notice of at least 14 days will be given to all Directors for regular Board
meetings and reasonable notices for all other Board meetings will be given to
all Directors so as to ensure that each of them has an opportunity to attend
the meetings. Board papers will be given to the Board at least 3 days before
the date of the Board meeting by the Company Secretary.

If a substantial Shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter,

the matter will be dealt by a physical Board meeting rather than a written
resolution.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

During the Year, the Board held a total of four Board meetings. Details of
Directors’ attendance record in the year of 2020 are as follows:

DREABE

RAFER BEFEHBTOREFEER &
ER_T_TFENHFEREFBNT

No. of meetings
attended/No. of

Directors meetings held
HESERE

5= BOEBRRE

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Yao Jianhui sk A 4/4

Mr. Zhang Xiaodong SRR AE 4/4

Ms. Xia Lingjie BEEfEw+ 4/4

Non-Executive Director FHITES

Ms. Zhan Yushan EEMZ L 4/4

Independent Non-Executive Directors BAFHITES

Ms. He Suying DEE S e 4/4

Dr. Tang Lai Wah HEEHLT 4/4

Mr. Wong Chun Bong FHRFA £ 4/4

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary’s role is to support the Board by ensuring good
information flow within the Board and that Board policy and procedures are
followed. The Company Secretary is responsible for advising the Board on
governance affairs and facilitating the induction and professional development
of Directors. The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company and
reports to the Chairman. All Directors have access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary. The Company Secretary is delegated with the
responsibility for drawing up the agenda for each Board meeting and ensures
that, where applicable, matters proposed by other Directors are included
in the agenda and that all applicable rules and regulations are followed. All
Directors may ask for matters to be included in the agenda for regular Board
meetings by making a request to the Company Secretary. During the Year,
the Company Secretary has confirmed that he has taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training to update his skills and knowledge as
required by Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Access to Information

All Directors are kept informed of significant changes of the Group’s business
from time to time. They have unrestricted access to the advices from the
Company Secretary who are responsible to furnish the Board papers and
related materials.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CEERRE

Minutes of Board meetings and Board committee meetings are kept by
the Company Secretary and are open for inspection by any Director. The
Directors including independent non-executive Directors may seek for legal
advices at the Company’s expenses to discharge their duties.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability

Appropriate insurance cover on directors’ and officers’ liabilities has been
in force to protect the Directors and officers of the Group from their risk
exposure arising from the business of the Group.

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

A comprehensive, formal and tailored induction training will be given to every
newly appointed Directors. Directors will be provided with materials relevant
to the Company’s business and director’s duties and responsibilities. In
addition, in order to allow the Directors to understand the latest development
of regulatory and compliance issues, they are also provided with market news
and regulatory updates. A summary of their training records of continuing
professional development (“CPD”) is as follows:

EFCERNEFZRERNERLEIHA
AWERE  YAHSEFEMHN - ER(BEET
FHTER)IRBTRENBESIERER -
BERBARBIESE -

EERERBENEERE
AAREARERFEABAMEWERETR
BABRE - ARSHRAEBERHAEENAR
HRHHRE -

ESNRIIRERERR

BREZANFESHSRRERE—E2H - EX
ROAHEFEEMAREY - EFHEREERA
RAIEBUREEBBERETNER - ki B
TEESHHEERAREENERNERE B
NEEREMSEERETNEEE - BEK
ERBEEEFR((HESZEEE DRSS
ZHEIIT

Types of CPD Subject of CPD
(Note 1) (Note 2)

Directors HESERREN RFESXRRTE
= (MF7E1) (Mf7E2)
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Yao Jianhui HhEBE I E 1,2 A B
Mr. Zhang Xiaodong REER LA 1,2 A B
Ms. Xia Lingjie BEEFETT 1,2 A B
Non-executive Director EHITES
Ms. Zhan Yushan HEM 2+ 1,2 A B
Independent Non-executive Directors BAFHTES
Ms. He Suying fAREL+ 1,2 A B
Dr. Tang Lai Wah HEEEL 1,2 A B
Mr. Wong Chun Bong TR E 1,2 A B
Note 1: kT -
1. Attending in-house training or external seminars 1. HH 8 P 4 )| sk 1N e
2. Reading newspapers, journals and updated legal and regulatory news 2. MEME - BRRSIERREEHER
Note 2: a2 -
A.  The Company’s business A PA/NCIE 73
B.  Laws, rules and regulations, accounting standards B. A - RAIKIRAI - gETAER|

Glory Sun Land Group Limited Annual Report 2020



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Board Committees

The Board has established three committees with specific written terms
of reference to oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. The
terms of reference of the Audit Committee, the nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) and the salary review committee (the “Salary
Review Committee”) of the Company are published on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

Audit Committee

At the date of the Report, the Audit Committee consists of all independent
non-executive Directors namely Mr. Wong Chun Bong (the chairman), Ms. He
Suying and Dr. Tang Lai Wah.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include, inter alia, to review and
monitor financial reporting and the judgments contained therein; and to
review financial and internal controls half-yearly and annually, accounting
policies and to provide recommendations and advices to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor as well as their
terms of appointment.

The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed with the management
the accounting principles and practice adopted by the Group and auditing,
internal controls and financial reporting matters. The audited financial
statements of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2020 have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Attendance of the Audit Committee members during the Year is set out
below:
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No. of meetings
attended/No. of
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HESERE
24= BOEBRARE
Mr. Wong Chun Bong (Chairman) FIRBEAE(EE) 5/5
Ms. He Suying fAIRELZ L 5/5
Dr. Tang Lai Wah BB 5/5
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Nomination Committee

At the date of the Report, the Nomination Committee consists of three
members with two independent non-executive Directors namely Mr. Wong
Chun Bong (chairman) and Ms. He Suying and an executive Director namely
Mr. Yao Jianhui. The majority of the members of the Nomination Committee
are independent non-executive Directors.

The major functions of the Nomination Committee are to review the structure
and composition of the Board, to review and provide recommendations to
the Shareholders on individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and the terms of Director’s service contract, and to assess the independence
of the independent non-executive Directors and to review the Board Diversity
Policy.

Attendance of the Nomination Committee members during the Year is set out
below:
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Mr. Wong Chun Bong (Chairman) FIRIBALEFE) 11
Mr. Yao Jianhui ol =N 1/1
Ms. He Suying BES St 1/1

Nomination Policy

The Company follows a formal, fair and transparent procedure for the
appointment of new directors to the Board. The Nomination Committee
reviews the structure, size and composition of the Board, identifies suitable
candidates if necessary and makes recommendations to the Board. The
director nomination policy sets out the approach and procedures the Board
adopts for the nomination and selection of directors of the Company including
the appointment of additional directors, replacement of directors, and
re-election of directors. Below are details of the selection criteria and
nomination process and procedures as set out in the director nomination

policy.

In the determination of the suitability of a candidate, the Nomination
Committee shall consider the potential contribution such candidate can
bring to the Board in terms of his or her qualifications, skills, experience,
independence, age, culture, ethnicity and gender diversity, etc. The
Nomination Committee shall consider the following selection criteria and such
other factors that it may consider appropriate for a position on the Board,
including but not limited to: (a) attributes complementary to the Board, (b)
business experience, board expertise and skills, (c) availability, (d) motivation,
(e) integrity, (f) independence and (g) diversity (in all aspects).
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In any event, the Board shall ensure that the nomination, re-election and/
or appointment of the Directors shall be conducted in compliance with the
Listing Rules, the memorandum and articles of association of the Company
and all other applicable laws, rules and regulations.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (“Board Diversity Policy”)
which set out its approach to achieve diversity on the Board with a view to
attaining a sustainable and balanced development of the Company.

The Company seeks to achieve board diversity through the consideration
of a bundle of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and independence. The Company will also take into account factors based
on its own business model and specific needs from time to time. The ultimate
decision will be always based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

During the Year and as at the date of the Report, the Board is comprised of
seven (7) Directors, four (4) of which are female. The following tables further
illustrate the diversity of the Board members as of the date of the Report:

Number of .
Position

& {2

Gender

5

Directors

ESAY

Executive Directors

HITES

Non-executive Director

FMTES

Female

pogid

Age Group
FleAH R

50-59
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Major Skill &
Knowledge
FEHREERAH

Service of years

ERFH

Accounting and
Finance

gitRER

Investment

BE
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The Nomination Committee has monitored the implementation of Board
Diversity Policy and has also undertaken periodic review of it to ensure its
effectiveness.

The Nomination Committee has been provided with sufficient resources
to perform its duties and may seek independent professional advice at the
Company’s expenses, to perform its responsibilities if it considers necessary.

Salary Review Committee

At the date of the Report, the Salary Review Committee consists of three
members with two independent non-executive Directors namely Ms. He
Suying (chairlady) and Dr. Tang Lai Wah and an executive Director namely Mr.
Yao Jianhui. The majority of the members of the Salary Review Committee
are independent non-executive Directors.

The primary objectives of Salary Review Committee are, inter alia, to
formulate the remuneration policy based on the responsibilities, qualifications
and working performance of senior management of the Company (“Senior
Management”) and Directors; review and recommend the Board’s annual
remuneration policy. The Salary Review Committee has adopted the model
under Code Provisions B.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code to make recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual Directors and Senior
Management. The major objective of the remuneration policy is to ensure that
the Company is able to attract, retain, and motivate a high-calibre team which
is essential to the success of the Company.

Attendance of the Salary Review Committee members during the Year is set
out below:
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No. of meetings
attended/No. of

Members meetings held

HESERE
RE BITERRE
Ms. He Suying (Chairiady) =R (FE) 2/2
Mr. Yao Jianhui phEsE g 2/2
Dr. Tang Lai Wah HEEEL 2/2

Details of remuneration paid to Directors and Senior Management for the
Year are set out in notes 14 and 15 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Corporate Governance Function

During the Year, the Board was responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties as follows:

° developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and making recommendation to the Board;

° reviewing and monitoring the training and continuing professional
development of Directors and senior management;

° reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

° developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct applicable to
the Group’s employees and Directors; and

° reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
on the corporate governance policies.

Accountability and Audit

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Group for the Year. The Directors consider that the
consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with
the generally accepted accounting standards in Hong Kong. Having
made appropriate enquiries, the Directors are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt
upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee and audited by the external
auditors, BDO Limited.

DREABE

HIE R AR R ERERABERLER - A
REEgRMEERER

o  RIMEEREZERSRLEEABMEIIRE
BEEERR

s RUMEFRARREEBTEEMEEMRES
ERBER L ER

o HE RIRERAEEEDREENBRT
28] R

o REUARFAETEEERTANBERLED
KEBHRRPHOBE -

BREMREFX

EFEPANSARRRRARENAFERNNE
BHREK  -EEFRR GAUBRRDEREEE
BEANGEANRR - KIFLEENERIEZ
EFVTHNBAEAESARAREL LR
WIRHEANE RN ERTHETE FER -

AEEHE-_Z - ZF+_A=Z1+—HILFEHN
PHBRRCHBEREZELERN  WEAINEZE
MEB EERe A EBAMERAREZ

EHBEMEBARLR 2020F K




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CEERRE

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the remuneration paid/payable to
BDO Limited, the auditors of the Company, is set out as follows:

Type of services provided by the external auditors

HE—Z-_ZTE&E+-_A=+—HILtEE BN/
ENARRIZEBME S L EEREREENE
RARREEEFI AT -

SN BET TR 2 RIS

Fee
=&
(HK$’000)
(F#T)
Audit services: FIZIRTE -
Annual audit services of the Company RAEIFEEZRS 3,000
Non-audit services: FEERARTS -
Review of interim financial statements Bl P e 470
3,470
Risk Management and Internal Control FEsEE R R IPEEE
The Group, observing the requirements of the code provisions as set  ZAN&EE B R BIFTEE + Epr sl <7 BE XY IR
out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, has established appropriate risk 7+ &3 75 EMREIE KA SPEITZ - LA
management and internal control systems that are commensurate with its B AHBEGERLERERBEN - EEEEE

current state of business operation and development. The management is
responsible for the design, implementation and monitoring of the systems,
and the Board, by establishing a risk management committee (the “Risk
Management Committee”) on 31 December 2015, oversees the systems
on an ongoing basis. At the date of the Report, the Risk Management
Committee consists of two executive Directors namely Mr. Zhang Xiaodong
(chairman) and Ms. Xia Lingjie and a non-executive Director namely Ms. Zhan
Yushan. The Risk Management Committee ensures that the risk management
and internal control measures adopted are compatible with the Group’s
objectives, strategies and risk appetite.

Attendance of the Risk Management Committee members during the Year is
set out below:
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No. of meetings
attended/No. of

Members meetings held

HESERE
RE BITEBRRE
Mr. Zhang Xiaodong (chairman) SRR AE(F/E) 11
Ms. Xia Lingjie BEEFERLT 1/1
Ms. Zhan Yushan EEM 1/1
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The Board has directed that the effectiveness of the material controls of the
systems be reviewed regularly, at least annually, and such a review must
include financial, operational and compliance controls. The Board, having
considered the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programs and budgets of the Group’s accounting, internal audit
and financial reporting functions based on reports of an annual review of
the systems, has directed that adequate resources be allocated to meet the
requirements in such respects.

The main features of the risk management and internal control systems are
described as below.

Risk Management System

In common with all business concerns, the Group strives to achieve its
objectives amidst uncertainty and has adopted as reference the risk
management principles and guidelines under the International Standard
ISO31000 to manage the effect of such uncertainty on its objectives.

The risk management process, developed according to the standard as an
integral part of the management, tailored to and embedded in the business
practices, comprises the following activities and phases:

o Communication and consultation
Communication and consultation with stakeholders or risk owners
being those in charge of legal entities, functional units or business
processes are established, developed and exercised at all stages of the
risk management process, to address issues arising from risks, causes,
consequences and measures required to treat the risks.

° Establishing the context
Desirable objectives are articulated, external as well as internal
parameters are defined, risk criteria is set in order to facilitate the
conduction risk management process.
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Risk Assessment
It is the overall process of risk identification, risk analysis and risk
evaluation.

(@) Risk identification: through the network of communication and
consultation established with stakeholders or risk owners,
sources of risk, areas of impacts, events or changes in
circumstances, causes and consequences are identified. Risks
so identified are reported and recognised in the risk register
to facilitate risk analysis and evaluation of their impact on the
achievement of objectives.

(b)  Risk analysis: an understanding of the risks identified is obtained
in order to consider the causes and sources of risk, their
consequences whether favourable or unfavourable, likelihood,
confidence in determining the level of risk and sensitivity to
preconditions.

(¢)  Risk evaluation: decision is made based on the outcome of risk
analysis, about whether a particular risk needs treatment and
corresponding priority for treatment implementation.

Risk treatment

Where decision is made that a particular risk needs treatment,
options are developed for modifying the risk by providing mitigation or
appropriate controls in order to reduce the residual risk to a tolerable
level.

(@  Controls address the key causes and impacts of the risk.
(b)  Controls are designed and implemented consistent with the

achievement of the corporate objectives and performance
targets.
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° Monitoring and review
(@  Management reviews to ensure controls are effective and efficient
in both design and operation at least annually.

(b)  Risk management performance is regularly monitored.

(c) Risks and risk management performance are appropriately
communicated to stakeholders or risk owners including those in
charge of governance and those responsible for the management
of legal entities, functional units or business processes.

The Board, with the assistance of the Audit Committee and Risk Management
Committee, evaluates the effectiveness of the systems for identifying and
managing risks that are material to the achievement of corporate objectives.

Internal Control System

The Company has an internal control system designed and implemented
according to the framework and principles as advocated by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSQO”) in 2013.
The system thus developed facilitates the Group to achieve effectiveness and
efficiency of operations, reliability of financial reporting and compliance of laws
and regulations. The main components of the framework and the underlying
principles that the Group observes are as follows:

° Control Environment
Sound control environment is established by obtaining commitment
at all levels to integrity and ethical values, appointing independent
board of directors for oversight, enacting structures, organizations and
processes with clear reporting lines, authorities and responsibilities,
developing competences, and holding people accountable to internal
control.

° Risk Assessment
The risk assessment component under the COSO framework
complements that under the International Standard ISO31000. It
emphasises that clear objectives be firstly specified and risks to the
achievement of objectives are then identified with specific reference to
the need for considering potential for fraud and impact of significant
internal and external changes.
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o Control Activities
Control activities are selected and developed as part of the treatment
of risks identified. Controls are developed through policies and
procedures, along with information technology controls selected and
developed where appropriate.

° Information and Communication

This component is concerned with establishing internal and external
communication to provide the Group with quality information needed
to carry out day-to-day controls in support of the achievement of
its objectives. The communication component under the COSO
framework and that under the International Standard 1ISO31000 are
two sides of the same coin, with the former emphasising on information
required to support the achievement of objectives and the latter, on
information required to address issues arising from risks or the impact
of uncertainty on the achievement of objectives.

° Monitoring
It refers to ongoing and separate evaluations conducted to ascertain
whether material controls are appropriately developed and functioning
effectively. Internal control deficiencies identified are evaluated and
communicated to appropriate stakeholders.

Effectiveness of the Risk Management and Internal Control
Systems

The Board, through the Audit Committee and the Risk Management
Committee, has ongoing oversight of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems. The Risk Management Committee holds regular
meetings to review risks recognised in the risks register based on information
from various stakeholders or risk owners. The Directors are kept regularly
apprised of significant risks that may impact the Group’s performance.

During the Year, the Board has engaged an external professional consulting
firm, JFU CPA, to review the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems with a view to:

° Reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems insofar as the principal

operations as identified are concerned;

° Developing and implementing a new integrated management tool for
coordinating the overall risk management activities of the Group; and

° Reporting to the Audit Committee the findings of the review and making
recommendations to the Board.
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On the findings and recommendations, the Board concludes that the state
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems is sufficiently
effective and commensurate with the current development of the Group.
The Group has been moving at a rapid pace and key business structures,
organizations and processes are being formed in support. Accordingly, the
Board directs that more resources be assigned to develop controls, risk
treatments and training in alignment with the continuing development of
the Group, ensuring that the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control systems are maintained.

Inside Information

Policies, procedures and controls for handling and dissemination of inside
information has been set out internally to enhance information management
of the Group and to ensure the authenticity, accuracy, completeness and
timeliness of information disclosed to the public while protecting the legitimate
rights and interests of the Company, Shareholders, creditors and other
stakeholders as a whole.

Corporate Governance and Internal Audit

The Group believes that good corporate governance practices are very
important for maintaining and promoting investor confidence and for the
sustainable growth of the Group. The Group has established an internal audit
function since 2018 to uplift the quality of corporate governance.

The internal audit function is independent of the Group’s daily operations and
facilitates the Board on evaluating the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems by conducting interviews and performing tests
on management and operational controls.

Internal audit work plans are developed and executed with approval of the
Board, and with the essential support of experienced external consultants.
The internal audit function is accountable to the Board through the Audit
Committee.

Special Measures for Coronavirus Outbreak

Since the outbreak of the pandemic, a number of provinces and municipalities
in the PRC have taken emergency public health measures and various actions
to prevent the spread of the pandemic during the Year. Under such special
circumstances, the Group has been using its best endeavours to forestall a
prolonged effect of the pandemic on its operations.
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At the operational level, the Group:

° has set out and adopted series of strict hygiene and epidemic control
measures for sake of safeguarding the personal health safety of all staff
and workers, contractors, customers and the general public in various
office areas, project sites and operating premises of the Group;

° has designated a committee comprising of management team
members who will be responsible for the supervision of the process
of implementation of those key control measures, coordination and
arrangement of provision of services in the workplace with the aim to
maintain normal operation; and

° has been communicating with key suppliers and contractors for logistic
arrangements to ensure delivery of building construction materials in
various stages and gradual return of the site workers in preparation for
the resumption.

The Board will continue to assess the impact of the pandemic on the
operation and financial performance of the Group, while closely monitoring
the development of the pandemic and the risks and uncertainties being faced
by the Group as a result of the pandemic and will take appropriate measures
and actions as necessary.

Shareholders’ Rights

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of Association, any one or
more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days
of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionist(s) himself or themselves may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company. The
requisition in writing should be sent to the Company’s office at Unit 2602,
26/F., Lippo Centre, Tower One, No. 89 Queensway, Admiralty, Hong Kong.
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The same procedure also applies to any proposal to be tabled at
Shareholders’ meetings for adoption. The Board will review Shareholders’
enquires on a regular basis. Specific enquiries and suggestions by
Shareholders can be sent in writing to the Board or the Company Secretary
at the above address.

In case of shareholding enquires, Shareholders should direct their enquiries
to the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, via its online holding enquiry at www.tricoris.com, or by email to
is-enquiries@nhk.tricorglobal.com or dial its hotline at (852) 2980 1333 or go in
person at its public counter at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong.

Communication With Shareholders

During the Year, the Board has adopted the Shareholders’ communication
policy, which is posted on the Company’s website.

Designated senior management is responsible for communicating and
enhancing relationships with the investors of the Company. Enquiries from
investors are dealt with in a timely manner.

The Company provides extensive information in its annual and interim reports
and announcements. All Shareholders’ communications are also available on
the Company’s website.

The annual general meeting of the Company provides a useful forum for
Shareholders to exchange views with the Board. All Directors will make an
effort to attend. External auditor is also available at the annual general meeting
to address Shareholders’ queries. In case of any general meeting to approve a
connected transaction or any other transaction that is subject to independent
Shareholders’ approval, members of the independent board committee will
also make an effort to attend to address Shareholders’ queries.
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CEERRE

Details of the Directors’ attendances at the general meetings in 2020 are as

EFER T OEFANHERRARSNFHBET

follows:
No. of general
meetings
attended/No. of
general meetings
Directors held
HERRAERE,
4=} BITRRAER
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Yao Jianhui whiEE A 1/1
Mr. Zhang Xiaodong SREESRSTAE 1/1
Ms. Xia Lingjie BiEREL+ 1/1
Non-Executive Directors FEHITES
Ms. Zhan Yushan P B g 11
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIAEHITES
Ms. He Suying fAIREL L 1/1
Dr. Tang Lai Wah e 1/1
Mr. Wong Chun Bong TIRABEAE 1/1

Constitutional Documents

The Company does not have any changes in the constitutional document
during the Year.
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Statement of the Board

EEgEH

By Order of the Board

Glory Sun Land Group Limited
AEEGH
ENEMEERFRAR

Yao Jianhui
wkEENE
Chairman

EE

Hong Kong, 22 March 2021
&8, 2 —F=A"+_"H

To all stakeholders:

The Company has raised the priority of sustainable development to the Group’s
strategic level and has also incorporated the concept into the business development
plan. By carrying out a series of effective measures such as green building, green
construction, green operation, and green office, the concept of sustainable
development is being integrated into the product research and development, design,
production and management processes. In addition, the Company will make efficient
use of resources, continue to promote energy conservation and emission reduction,
and adhere to the practices of recycling and low-carbon operation. It has been the
understanding of the Company that the realization of quality growth should always
be led by the origin of the product itself, through the improvement of product quality
for satisfying the customers’ needs and the whole realignment of product and
lifestyle. All in all, the growth of the community can be attained by focusing the
diversified experience of the customers to assure family and neighbors grow

altogether in a good community ecology.

HEFNE:

TRABFAREZRRERANFEENRKRER, MAKEBRRER, RERITH
BREGEREL.GOEL. KOMAFLRENER, TERAE KA EE.E
BRHAMADTHEERER, KW BER, FHEMEM R BREEENE,
BATHRMSE AN ERA, BITEEENEREENRRERATATYE, BER
FEXREeEmmE, BRERNEESTANEEEE . RAFERET R Z T
RRHE, BREENERE, CRARKBERFNTEERTHER R,



The Company has strived to build “a community of interests and causes” by
continuously optimizing the staff development programs to implement diversified
development paths and provide a platform for employees to develop and enhance
their values. Asa “warm” enterprise, while focusing on its own economic results and
maintaining stable production and operation, the Company has actively carried out
its social responsibility through strongly supporting the construction of neighboring
communities, and discharging the significant role of an enterprise in the powerful

support over the poverty alleviation.

ERBENENBEFZHRFE FXHRE, BRATEHBLETEERER, #T
ZRERER RHBTEEAREENTETE.FA—RIBREINEE AR
BEIECXESEEND, RBEECERENRER, RBRITHEEME, ANX
BEXFABHERR, RAREMBECEEREXREPIBRIE,

In future, the Company will adhere to the brand philosophy of “Building the Beauty
of Life”, continue to focus on living, life, and sustainable development of
environment, act actively to fulfill its social responsibility, and disclose and respond to
the environmental, social and corporate governance issues concerned by investors on

an ongoing basis.

R, ERBRERFFIEREF L INREES, FERIEIARE. EEFRIRFHA
BELERE ABRTHEER FERBEEOEREEMONRBE HEREXE
/DHEE’JB#ELO
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1.1 Scope

i 1| 82 [

The reporting period of this Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “ESG Report”) is from 1 January 2020 to 31
December 2020 (the “Reporting Period”). The ESG Report focuses on the Group's two core business segments of property
investment and development and cultural sports which includes the relevant operating information on the Hong Kong head
office and a total of seventeen (17) subsidiaries of the Company located in different provinces and cities in the PRC with

physical business operations during the Reporting Period, namely:

KRB HEREARSE (RESCGRE) NREMATET_EF—HA—HEZSEF+A=+—B (FXKREH), N&
METAERNYERERERAXBEEMEAZOEBRIE EFEETARTETHNEREBMEERSH+ERU
RAEAEETAEREBKCEN TAREARSHNNEMREEREE, 255:

Baoxin Holdings Company Limited* (”“Shenzhen Office”);
BEIERERLE (DRIIHERD) ;

e Changchun City Baoxin Property Development Company Limited* (”“Changchun Company”);
RETEMEHERZEERAE (TREQRF);

e Hunan Meilian Property Company Limited* (“Changsha Company”);
HEEREERRAR (TRDYRAE);

Shenzhen Dapeng Yacht Club Company Limited* (“Marine Sports Centre”);
ARINAKBEBEREBIRAR (B FEB ) ;

Shenzhen Dapeng International Education Company Limited* (“Marine Training Centre”);
ARINAKBEEEBEERAE (HEFBINHC) ;

Shantou Chaoshang Chengzhen Comprehensive Management Company Limited*, Chaoshang Group (Shantou)
Investment Company Limited*, Shantou Taisheng Technology Company Limited* (collectively “Shantou Company”);
WEET B HAG S REERABCHBERE L) REBRARCUEMRERXBRAE (ABOLELQE) ;

* Weinan Baoneng Property Company Limited* (“Weinan Company”);

BEmEEEEERAR (NEEARE);

* Shenyang Baoxin Commerce Company Limited* (“Shenyang Company”);
BHEEMREERAR (TEB AT ;

* Yunfu Baoneng Property Company Limited* (“Yunfu Company”);
EFEREXBRAR (EFRE);

* Shenzhen Baoxin Recreation and Sports Development Company Limited* (“Baoxin Golf”);
ANEFXEERBRAR (TEHREWX);

* Shenzhen Baoxin Wisdom Development Limited* (“Xiao Mutong”);
RNEHSEZERERAE (VMRE)) ;

* Shenzhen Baoxin Fitness Development Limited* (“Xin Dongneng”);
RUNEFHBEBERERAR (THENEEL) ;

* Shenzhen Baoyue Entertainment Development Limited* (“Xin Yuefang”); and
ANEEIRERERAE (ML) ; &

* Guangxi Baohui Property Company Limited, Guangxi Shengze Investment Company Limited* (“Nanning Company”).
EREEEXEERAF.EAREREETRAE (MEAF .

*  For identification purpose only

EH#E 2 F



The ESG Report is prepared in accordance with the “Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide” under Appendix 27 of the Listing
Rules.

« Source and Reliability Statement

All the data used in the ESG Report are from the statistical reports and
relevant documents of the Group. The Board assumes liabilities for
authenticity, accuracy and completeness of the ESG Report.

* Confirmation and Approval

The ESG Report has been approved for publication by the Board.

* Access and Response to the ESG Report

The electronic version of the Report can be obtained from the following
website:

http://www.hk0299.com;

If you have any comments or suggestions on the Group’s environmental,
social and governance ("ESG") performance, you are welcome
to send email to info @ hk0299.com.

KRESGHRERRIBE LR —+ LR
B HERERREESDHEBIMA.

s ERREN AT
KRESGIREFFIERNIEBIIRBREMBG S
BEERXE EXEHAESCGRENBNE
B EEENTEEES,

o HESR Rt

RESGREDEBEEFT TR, TUEM.

s B EREARE

TR G A T I BN A ESGIRE BFhR:

http://www.hk0299.com;
MEHAEBVIRIE, HERER (TESGY) R
REIRAERIER, BODEHE
info@hk0299.com,

1.2 Corporate Governance

EEER

€EXD) Organizational Structure B@%EHE

Shareholders’ General Meeting

Board of Directors
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4¥®) Internal Control and Risk Management
Py BB ) £ L B B 2R

The Company strictly complies with the CG Code contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. We have identified and
evaluated the main risks from the external environment and within the Company, have monitored the adequacy, rationality and
effectiveness of our risk management system to enhance our risk management control and prevention capability.

The Group has established a fairly integrated and effective internal control system from the Company level to each business
process level, which provides a reasonable warranty for the legal compliance of the Company's business operations, assets
security, as well as the integrity and completeness of financial reporting and related information in the Company.

For details of the Company's corporate governance structure and practices, please refer to the section on corporate
governance reportin the 2020 Annual Report.

FRBERBEE DR+ TS ERERTIER, HREIIIRIBMNE QR N T ZE R RETHRMNTE, 58
EFEEREEBRANR2M. SEEMERL, A BRI 688 .

B, AEEHNNEITHEBRATERETER A AR EEES EZHRIEEEIIEIL T REHI PG K APy ER e B 1
fil, BERBREEENSEER BERE . MBBREREMERNAEER. . R Beit T 5 ERE,

BRARBEERERRBENEBIFE, T2R2020FRPUEXERBRENEHNE,

%

4FE¥) Anti-corruption and Probity Cooperation
REGHEREE

The Group strictly complies with the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter 201 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and Anti-money
Laundering Law of the People’s Republic of China. The Group believes that the integrity has been the essential foundation of
employees’ business ethics. Without integrity, it would be impossible for the Group to provide quality products and services to
the customers. The Group demands the employees to establish right concept of authority, improve the consciousness of probity
and self-discipline, and firmly adhere to the concept of probity in career from the perspective of ideology, and realize
self-management, self supervision and self-restraint.

The Group has kept enhancing its monitoring, auditing and disciplinary penalty policies. Suppliers are asked to sign the Supplier
Probity Agreement, while employees will sign the Employee Probity Agreement. Moreover, anti-corruption education and
training has been organized to establish and reinforce the integrity culture across our organization.

The Group has introduced “Key business Monitoring Measures” and “Complaints Reporting Management Measures”, which
are complemented with internal audits and process controls. Moreover, the Group has effectively executed its anti-corruption
policy to ensure that the corruption is to be prohibited at source.

The Company engages both internal and external auditors to audit the financial accounts of the Group, to ensure the accuracy
of the account ledgers and strengthen the internal financial control and monitoring system. All departing senior management
staff are subject to exit audits. To enhance the stakeholders’ awareness of integrity, subsidiaries of the Company always attach
the “Probity Cooperative Agreement” as an appendix to their agreements. The purpose of such agreement is to clarify the
integrity requirements of both parties in business so as to prevent any unlawful acts.

FEBRBREETEREFE201Z(B LR R(PEARENEREEE). ZIS%@&E‘?‘Z‘;E BZBFEERE—MEIMN
%%ZZX tHEATEFRUHEEERTRBNELSRE, ERXEIHIERNENRS, 2 ;%EQE’JEEI’L%EFE\J:QE
BIENER, BRERNEE. AREERBEROR.

FEE-FEEERE BRUERRGE, MEREEFHZSERI(HEBRRRFZ). B IRB(BIRANRE) . 5—HFEM
REBETINREFHBEN, BBSEPEM T MR REBMBERX K.

KEBMEFREG T (EREBREIE).HIE T HENGRFBREENE), BUESZRE AEER . EMERERR L, &
RRERR, V)BIERGIERNNITH, (EHE LB EErIRE,

FABRANBEZRIIMNBELRGE NS AREREET HIRE, UEFRIEE ERE, N2 BriTH ERER HBRENS
MEEABNETHIEEE, SIARZREEH, ARAETAREMEENRITRIETIER(RZSERRI EAMME, 5
RN ERRE S ERBRAATNERRREER, ERRHLH. EERBHMR.



The Group has established a whistle-blowing mechanism that enables making complaints and whistle-blowing via hotline,

mailbox, webpage and other reporting channels. The Group has designated responsible officers to receive and handle

whistleblower reports. All whistleblower reports will be filed and handled in strict confidence. The audit department and the

legal department will pursue accountability for any violation of anti-corruption rules. In addition, as a member of China

Corporate Anti-Fraud Alliance (the “Alliance”), the Group has also actively publicized the relevant knowledge of anti-fraud

affairs by the enterprises or International Anti-corruption Day through WeChat group, public accounts, intranet and other

medium, and has worked together with leading enterprises for all industries to fight against fraud.

FEEREEREG, RETHEAR . BE.AESSEBRABRELE, AFASTERUKRE FAEERERTEFEL
DUREEREE, @M EHE %A P A MPIEER RIRFIENTAETHE, HEG ERRE. IS, (FA PR B R 55
B (THER)) BB B, AEMERBEBNMER. ARR.NEFTHE, BIEFCEREENERRERABRMAH, 2L

TESTEERRBAONRERITE,

Case
=4

Warning posters ZRiE1R

& nEHn

For purpose of strengthening the interaction
and cooperation among the member units of
the Alliance and promoting the continuous
improvement of the anti fraud investigation
skills of enterprises, the staff members of
Audit and Monitoring Centre were invited to
participate in the exchange meeting of the

Alliance.

AR AN B EAINIRE S, (2
TR REFATKETERA, EHERTD
DA BRSNS B,

%
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During the Reporting Period, there were no corruption lawsuits filed against the Group.

RAREIN, REEFHHEAEBNESHAEMF,
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XD Communication with Stakeholders
RIS EBE

The Company’s annual general meeting (the “AGM") provides an effective platform for the Board and Shareholders to
exchange views. In addition to the AGM, for maintaining a close relationship with the stakeholders such as customers and
suppliers, the Company communicates with the stakeholders from time to time through different channels including physical
visits, conference calls, e-mails, the Company’s website, customer service hotlines, follow-up actions by customer service
representatives, etc. in order to fully listen to their views and needs. The Company’s overall performance result is also being
reported to the investors regularly through the annual report of the Company. The corresponding details of the AGM and

investor participation in corporate governance can be found in the 2020 Annual Report.

TABNRREFAG ((RREFAG ) REEMNTELEFTERRIARR B TRREFAGZIN HRIGHEE
P MEBSFHNHENTEZRF FADTHEZHMEERFCIEBR, BB LFFS. BEER. EFBH. AQ8ELH
L ERRBEAME.ERARBEERES, UL2EARBEEANERRER ARINEREERRTEBSFNEAATFRM
BREEMFHERER RREAFAGBER REEZ2HQARGEBRFANETISR-E-2FR,

Materiality Assessment
EEMTMG

Materiality assessment is part of the ESG risk assessment for identifying topics that are important to stakeholders for specific

disclosure.

The Company makes full use of the materiality assessment process to understand the views of stakeholders that are material
to the Group’s development or ESG issues, and further refines the materiality analysis process by understanding the

requirements of external ratings or indices.

In the implementation process, the Board includes the ESG factors such as environment, product quality and safety, and
employees’ rights and interests into the evaluation of the daily ESG governance. To ensure the rationality of the target, the
management should seek the “highest common factors” despite the difficulties in areas such as external supervision,

operability and departmental consensus, so as to avoid effectively the potential risks in the development process.

In order to ensure the leadership of the Board for ESG issues and enhance the participation of the Board in the whole process
of ESG reporting, during the Reporting Period, the Company conducted materiality assessment for ESG factors through the

following steps:

BEEMMERESGREHEN—H2, BRER T ERBE N A mAER S EERVER, METHEMERE.

TRABBBERDFBEEMTEIRRE, BRSO ENNAEBRBNESCEENEEES X, W EBBBEINITRIIEHNE
R, E—FREEEMNDIN.

EEBRRITERED EFERER. EnnELeNEIREFESCEARMAEZRESGAEERNTESR. EREEFSE
MrE, EEEEEIMPEE. JREE. BRAIHAFEEERZERSEALNY, BRRSEERBIETEENER,

AHEREFTEESCEE LEBRENFR, REEFTINESCGREEBIENZEE, AREHN, sAFEBUTHNIE
FHERESCEREZMTEIIE:
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Collecting and
identifying topics
M EE

rml
L@_I

In order to better understand the impact of the Group’s business on different sustainability
topics, according to the guidelines of the Stock Exchange and Global Reporting Initiative
Sustainability Reporting Standards, the Company has identified potential material topics with
regard to the environmental, social and economic aspects through peer-to-peer benchmarking,

media reporting, focus groups, questionnaires and interviews.

AESEBAEBEBH AR TFELERZENTE, RIBMINESI N2 KRB S EZES
AIREERRERE, AAFRBRITHR ERRE. EMNVE BERE. o#®EFEELN,
A HRERR A ENEEEENETEEEEE,

1. Identifying stakeholders who shall be divided into internal and external to the Group.
(1) Internal stakeholders - Management, employees at different levels.
(2) External stakeholders - Suppliers, contractors, business partners, customers, members,
investors, public welfare organizations, community organizations, government

organizations, and industry association representatives.

1L YR D B EEENBNIIBZFHDE.
(1) B E - EEE. TRBANES;
(2) S ERIFE - MBS AEN. EBSEBRH BT . TR REE . AnER HEA
BBAERRITERENR.

2. Collecting the views of the above stakeholders on the impact and materiality of the topics to
form an topics database.

(1) Collecting feedback from internal stakeholders through in-depth discussions with the
Board and the management on the Group’s vision and strategy for sustainable
development in order to understand the views from different stakeholder groups to form
a viewpoint database. In addition, the above viewpoint database shall be improved and
supplemented through various channels in the daily operation process such as the research
on the employees’ job devotion and public charity activities.

(2) Integrating the material topics in the viewpoint database and communicating with
external stakeholders through multiple channels (business operation communication,
public charity activities promotion, investors meetings, road shows or on-site research) for

evaluating the materiality of each topic to the Group and to the stakeholders respectively.

2. WEFRBHERZFECENEZMNER, RE—ERE,

(1) ZBREFE. EEEMAEEANTHEERBSNRBETRNG R, WERNSENE
WIS, UEREFHEEN RS RTMRERE. I, EERE THXERMLA
HEHFAERKCERETNRBEETE. BRI ABRME,

QBABHMETMNEESRE, UZEE (EBREXR. AunEHER. REEREE.
BRNIRGHM) BIMNIFHERE, DGR EZEEREEENENFNENE
2%,
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E£5:

Prioritizing topics
for the Board's
review

EER T EE

Analyzing the results of the questionnaires, evaluating the materiality priority of the topics and
generating the materiality matrix as in accordance with the materiality of the topics to the

stakeholders or the impact on the business of the Company.

1. External experts conduct preliminary review and suggestions on the materiality priority and the

materiality matrix.

2. Submit the “Summary Report for Stakeholder’s Participation” which includes the materiality

matrix and the relating compiled data to the Board for review and changes recommendation.

HESREERETON, REZEEFOENERN, AIHEEBEBHNZE, STESHER
NEZMHF . RIFEEMIERE.

1 SBEREEEN AT REEEETIS ERMEZ,

2. DEFERIVEEBUERLFERENN (FHESRGR) UHEESGTEMR, REAE
%‘\Eo

E=W:

Preparing topic
report

R EER S

©

The Board reviews the latest progress of implementation based on the ESG-related objectives and
targets in the regular quarterly reports, and conducts ESG risk assessment and management to
review the implementation progress for the selected ESG objectives. This will be summarized in
the Board's statement for the annual ESG activities performance, which is to be disclosed in the
annual ESG report. Based on the results of the materiality issue assessment, the process and result
of stakeholder participation are used as a yardstick to identify material ESG factors and are

disclosed in the report in a specific manner.

EFRERBEMNEZTEREPESCHERN B IRMERE, RIETRITHEINEE, ARHREESGE
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For purpose of understanding the impact of the Group's business on different sustainability topics, according to the guidelines
of the Stock Exchange , Global Reporting Initiative Sustainability Reporting Standards, the peer analysis and the media reports,
the Company has identified a total of 21 potential material topics with regard to our environmental, social and economic

aspects.

AERAEBEBHTRTHEERZENZE, RIBEMAHIES 2XRECHRERTHELERERSFRE RED N RE
BBRY, ANFEHNHRERE. HENKEERA _+—EBEEENEE,

* Material topics EEMZE

Level 1 H£—1HE Level 2 HEZ®HE Level 3 BE=WE

0 Company'’s economic performance @ Diversity and equal opportunities @ Undue competition management
NEEERER SR TFERE ERBTAEE

e Social and economic compliance 0 Talent management m Anti-discrimination, human rights protection
HEREBER AT EE RIRARARFEARE

e Business ethics @ Training and development @ Customer privacy management
BEEE ] kg BEREERE

e Anti-corruption and probity @ Prevention of child and forced labour @ Energy management
REBRER FEPE T R 3&HI% T REIREIE

e Product and service quality management @ Community engagement and investment @ Emissions management
EmMBRHREES HESRERKE HREE

e Customer satisfaction @ Green environmental protection @ Carbon neutrality
ERWMEE BRERR WA

0 Supplier assessment
IR TG

e Environmental protection compliance
@ 01 A
BRaM Level 2 Level 1

e Occupational health and safety &R =R
BEReRER

SJap|oyayels 01 Alljelialey

e N B 5 b 5 i

Materiality to the Group's business ¥ AREBEEENEE Y

The Group has taken proactive measures to support its sustainable development vision, and has acted and responded to
stakeholders regarding our material topics in ways that enabling achievement of related sustainable development goals. The
Group has also strived to ensure that its efforts on sustainable development are aligned with the broader sustainable

development background.

FEMRMBEBOERSETERERNES, TRRMANERHZERAN N FHENLOE, UKATHEERBREHE,
FEHRMN A ERR S EMEHNSHEEEZNIHEERE SR —.

73



Harmonious Coexistence of

Human and Environment
ANBEIRIZERIFIE LR

The Group has been focusing and taking care of the natural environment, adhering to the “green
and low-carbon” environmental protection philosophy, strictly observing the environmental
protection principles and actively supporting the sustainable development for the environment. In
addition to complying with the basic requirements of all relevant laws and environmental
standards, including but not limited to the Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic
of China and the Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the People’s Republic of China,
the Company has formulated relevant environmental protection policies and strategies, and has

also implemented a series of environmental protection actions.

With respect to the property investment and development segment, the Group has been
committed to promoting energy conservation and emission reduction in the design, construction
and daily management and operation of its properties. For the cultural sports segment, the Group
has actively promoted the environmental protection for ocean and the related publicity with its

well establishment of marine sports facilities.

FEH-EERREEEIARE, IWRBE TR NIRFRES, BB ETIRRERR, &
BXEIRIEN A FBE R A RBRTETHRAERERNIRRERENELRER, B1EE
AP (P EARAMBRBREZ) R (PEARKENMBEKBRETEZED, EFIE T 18R
RREGR. K, BiE 7 RIIRRITH.
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Key Performance Indicators
B SR AR R AR

In the Year, with the support of all stakeholders, the Group actively achieved all key performance indicators while continuing

to improve and work on various segments of sustainable development.

RAEFE, FEFNENZRT, r1ERTIHEERNZIEAREFHTENS NNREK, RIZEREEMREVIER
BYER

The following table shows the environmental performance of the Group during the Reporting Period:
TRETAEBRERRESHNMNIRERIR:

F Air emissions
EIE BE S HER
 Juwws | | e |

Nitrogen oxides (Noy)

o~ Grammes

€missions _ 264,892.57 345,322.16 136,091.86
RAKHKR=E 5
Sulphur oxides (o) Grammes

emissions 1,036.27 1,253.88 668.85
)lL¥L'ﬂC%ﬁFHE T
Particulate matter (PM) Grammes

emissions 18,787.00 25,750.94 11,737.00
EhHHNEZ B

@0 o
o @ o Greenhouse gas emissions

@+ @ EEREHNE

REIBERMARAR  HAmER (AW 20776 27890 15059
R EERMAEER  umsmcaw 700 286932 123325
RS RRRHAKSE  kmER 12648 10051 124.43
Total greenhouse gas emissions  CO,e (metric ton) 4,094.37 2465 50827

BERBHRGEE —sREE (QNR)



Use of Resources

HIRfEA
[ | omo | s | s |
Paper consumption Metric ton 8.5 737 16.36
FERE NI
Toner consumption Kilogram
199.69 150.82 7.14

iy EE R N
Water consumpti i

TeonsumpHon Cublc meter 142,179.55 105,060.00 73,929.28
FEkE TR

f

k Use of energy
Ax HETEER

| umEs |00 2019 2013

Diesel consumption Litres 1741 74 614106 £ 300.00
SORHAES F o o T

: ' : i
I\.lquefle\d pe:(fole:m gas consumption itres 11,407.43 20.226.43 13,251.89
RICEHRHFES F+
Gasoline consumption (mobile source) Litres 63291 69 7 92490 3999121
REFEE (BER) F T T T
Electrici i Mwh

ectricity consumption " 6,132.84 4,605.14 1,964.36

BHAER PLYH:S3
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2.1 Green Construction
“EIEIS

:’: Pollution Prevention
\ Y4
u D= DAL Y]

Each property development project of the Group has strictly carried out building construction according to the planning index

of green space rate stipulated by governments, with reasonable architectural green planning, exquisite garden design, healthy

and comfortable living environment, and thus offering the owners a special experience.

During the project construction process, the Group has strictly implemented the “Three Simultaneity” system (i.e. the environ-
mental protection facilities and the main body of the project must be designed, constructed, and put into use at the same time)
for environmental protection, eliminating all kinds of risk factors for accidents and occupational diseases from the source which
may cause casualties so as to protect the safety and health of employees, ensure the normal commissioning of new
engineering projects, prevent loss damages arising from accidents, and avoid unnecessary spending for carrying out rework or

remedial measures in relation to the safety problems.

FEBZYER LR BRBIRBBAREN & RREIEFETHEL, ZEEURESE, BEMRFAREE BERER
BREFE, M ERIRRRZ

FRERREED, FEEBRBATRER=ZEEIHE QIRFERESAETEBTERRRS . BRELI. FERNER) , %
R LERZBREETRENGTERNBERNERRER, RERINR2ER, RENIEEEEERESER, LS
HARKR, B RR R 25 IR T iRERAEEER T ER N

Compliance Management in Construction
JO\ R

In terms of construction management, the Group strictly complies with the Environmental Protection Law of the People's
Republic of China and other applicable laws. All projects under construction must strictly satisfy the “Six One-Hundred-Percent
Requirements” promulgated by the Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural Development, as well as the local site management
requirements. Moreover, sewage treatment and smog reduction are given priority in site management, supported by a complete
set of dedusting, smog reduction and sewage treatment systems on construction sites. Lots of construction sites of the Group

have been praised by local governments regarding their standardized and civilized operational practice.

ERIEESE, AEEBRBET(FEAR—KNMBARBEREL)FERER, HTITHEERREYBRERITERSTER
DRINEMNTMERER, KI5 HBRMAZIRBEARTEER, BCF T TENRERERRNEKEERSR, ZEAX
BT R THEREMBFNE EMRE.



Case
=61

Weinan Project was awarded
the title of municipal civilized
construction site

BEIEE
T AR SCER T TSR

On 13 August 2020, the Weinan Project was among the first being awarded the title of “Municipal Civilized Construction Site”
in 2020. Weinan Company has consistently adhered to the working principle of “rigid implementation and continuous
improvement”, and has strictly requested China Construction Sixth Engineering Division Corp, Ltd. to implement the
Company’s rules and regulations, continuously innovated safety management, and effectively improved the standardization of

safe and orderly construction on site.

RI2-ZF/)\B+=H, AREBRE_ S _SFEM THAXBEITHIER ERARRARFIHMERIT FEREAIN
ITERR, BRERPEABZELALABDNZEREHE, THAMR2EE, ARRATHIRSENT2XXAKIRE
o

Iil Waste Treatment
ol FEY RIS

The construction waste and other waste generated from the Group'’s construction processes have been collected according to
the local municipal authority’s rules in a strictly manner. Sticking to the management principle of “Who constructs and who

cleans”, the management of waste treatment has been systemized.

Construction waste is stored at the designated place and covered, cleaned regularly and treated legally. Hazardous waste is
strictly stored in special storage, regularly inspected, and uniformly processed by the third-party organizations with hazardous
waste treatment qualifications. The Group has entrusted an approved service unit to strictly dispose of the hazardous waste
involved and to go through relevant registration procedures in accordance with the laws. The Group looks for the causes of
pollution for the processes that may produce large pollution, improves the operation and strengthens personnel management

to avoid pollution as much as possible.
During the Reporting Period, no violation of environmental regulations was found.

FEEERIBIREELENERY RE

FHIREBRBE ST EENEMREETRESE, BYRFEITHEL ES
B IWERR, EEYEERENRIETER

EENIRERFRLRENEERN, ERFETETEERE, CRERYRBETERFR, CHHRE, LA T RRE
VREBEENE = A REERR—RE IR CRERYBREBETETERINRBEMETRE, TAEHHERRE
RFEHNAUREERNSENIFEREESRNERR, OERE, B ASERE, BE8RSH.

RAEREHN, RELREAERIRBERNEREE,
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2.2 Green Operation
REEE

Developing green buildings is not only the requirement of urban construction, but also the social responsibility of enterprises.
It is an inevitable requirement by the vision of achieving CO, emissions peak by 2030 and carbon neutrality by 2060, as well as
the only path to achieve high-quality economic and social development. The Group is always committed to the practice of and
innovation in green building technology, actively advocates the adoption of high-efficiency and energy-saving technologies,
improves the efficiency of land resources and construction materials throughout the whole life cycle of project development,
and provides a sustainable green and healthy life for the owners through building up green communities in line with the

philosophy of respecting nature and complying with nature.

ERGOEETERFTERNTE, ERCERENU ISR EEKEMERRE _S=SFMERN _SRTERPHM

SHPAER HREREEHEenEERNVEZR . AEEFNGERERNNTEHBRELN, RBESRAS
y‘ﬂlﬁﬁﬂ’]ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁi,H%?Eﬂ:tﬂﬂ’éﬂﬁiLﬁﬁ*ﬂﬂ’ﬂﬂ%?&#gﬁﬁ’:‘lﬁﬁEﬁ’ééfﬁ’ﬂ%élzﬁi@,ﬁﬁ, TEeHEEEEE, EEEA. JBE
B, ARIASAKENEE. BEREE.

%

Case Project of Nanning Wuxianghu No.1:
B HEnsMIRES:

The project adopts solar-powered air source heat pumps to supply annual
domestic hot water for 3,980 residents in the residential buildings. This set
of system can save about 1.371 million kWh of electricity every year as
compared to that using electric water heaters by each household to supply
hot water. It is equivalent to standard coal of about 455.4 tons in value
(calculated according to the conversion index of standard coal and electric
energy of 0.332 kg/kwh), reducing CO, emissions by 1,124.84 tons, SO,
emissions by 9.11 tons and dust by 4.55 tons.

Quality products and services are the most essential part for the Group to
discharge product liability and to demonstrate accountability to the
customers. The Group makes supreme products with high-standard control
measures, delivers outstanding quality with refined management, creates a
diverse product value for the customers with product innovation based on
the demands from the customers and communities, and satisfies the new
demands from the customers on a continuous basis with the innovative

operation of commercial buildings and industrial projects.

FEEBRARGEBATRRARARRESFLIFNK, BHETR3, 080 A FEFHK, BERIRABHRKBNE
HOKMBLLE, BERGEEIHBENLIT.1BKWh IR EEEIT S BIEIEA455.40 (RIZIEE BRI EE1R0.332kg/kWhEt) ,
D Z R ACRAFRE X1, 124.84 NE, J/D — AR AREA99. 11M, Bl K) EEA94. 550,

BENERNRZEAEERTERET. HERAENREENSH, FERBRSREERITEREER, BBHEHE
HWEE AEFHRH, BEEAREREMERTRETHERANGREAELENEMER BBEBEFRERKER
BB EE R AR E R P HTBIFE R,



Product Quality Control

EmnmEEE

The Group has established comprehensive quality control policies and systems. Following the principles of fairness, justice and
objectiveness and based on the requirements of relevant national laws, regulations, rules and standards as well as drawings,
contracts and relevant technical documents of the Company, the Group checks the project safety, quality and internal
management and management conducts of the Engineering Department; and makes strict requirement on the completion
rate of rectification of problems existing in each project quality and safety inspection. The rectification of quality problems and
safety problems should be subject to the completion rate of 95% and the completion rate of 100% respectively. The inspection
has covered areas such as product positioning, building design, procurement, raw materials, building process and inspection
upon completion for sake of ensuring that the property units which are under construction, on sale and already sold are not
subject to any safety, health or quality problems where recall will become necessary.

During the Reporting Period, no product sold or shipped was subject to recall for safety and health reasons.

FEEERENREEETFENER, EEAT . QAE. FHENRAY, RIBEEKERERERRDIRE. BEK. SR KRETATHE
RN XHER HTRER2 RERTREMNHEERE. EBTATNAETEDS, BEEREATREREEFENEER
TR E, BE M EERE R R ET95%. REMEEMGEREL00%75 %212, B S EREM BER T BABRR
MELBETE BN BB, RETIEEER SERCHERESMEERRS. RERSEENAERKNRE.
BEN, R HRER S REFEEMMHALRNEERDERER,

Project Quality Control

TiEmERE

Upon the registration of project completion, the project, in principle, should still be subject to a 3+1 inspection formality
(covering initial joint inspection, joint inspection after rectification and property acceptance inspection, inspection for delivery
acceptance and final inspection before delivery). The inspection team is composed of Engineering Management Centre,
Operational Management Centre, Marketing Management Centre, Property Management Unit and the local project company
team of the Group. Delivery shall be subject to the successful acceptance upon inspection carried out by all the concerned
parties. The inspection shall be carried out thoroughly with one check for one project and one record for one household while
inspecting each property unit; clearly define the parts and details of project quality problems; and strictly control the project
quality. In terms of quality problems spotted during the inspection, the local project company/the Shenzhen Project
Department will formulate a rectification plan and urge the construction unit to rectify and complete within the prescribed time
limit.

HEARIARTRE, R LEEZRE+1IR (REEABMSHE. BB SBE R EAETR  XNFTRE. 2N
AREHE) RS, BTN EHAEENIREERLCEEEERL. EHEEP L MEBESBU T ATER A
B, EABERKESREAOTRENIRM, BEHIONES, B P ETERTME—F—E. —F—Xk, BB ITERERE
BRI EERM, BiITTREME, BMEXRNLEME, HEH A/ RYIEE B ERELHE, TERETITEMTRAN

BMAS.

Case Pictures of Project Inspection and Acceptance
=7 EEEEETE

The multiple-step system has been tailored to ensure satisfactory quality of
delivered projects. Besides, instant check inspection for defects is being
undertaken to better serve the new owners. Specialized construction teams are
appointed to follow up the entire delivery process by resolving ordinary problems
within half an hour. Commitment involving raw materials customization can be
delivered within a reasonable time frame (normally one month), which is highly

appreciated by the owners.

EBREEE, R MmE. B ATRER, EFNRBEREE, EXCBES
THSERETENSZREER, —MREBET X/ NE R, 2 KR FLE
AR S ENREEENTR (—R—ER) , RRWIBEEF T,
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Production Safety Management
REEEEE

The headquarters of the Company has established a safety management committee, while the subordinate companies have
established individual safety management committees or safety management teams in combination with their actual
operations, and set up independent safety management and supervision departments to ensure that the safety management
is effectively in place with responsibilities being attached to each individual. At the same time, the corresponding safety
management measures in the headquarters of the Group, the local project companies and business units have been formulated
to clarify the reward and punishment methods, develop specific measures for long-term supervision and management, and
implement the signing of the responsibility letter by the person in charge of safety management. The inspection for production
safety should be conducted regularly; the notice of safety inspection during holidays should be issued in time; and the

precaution of safety management should be well undertaken so as to improve the safety and contingency plan.

The Safety Committee Office of the Group makes full use of monthly safety meetings, morning meetings of the Group and
WeChat working groups to publicize the information of safety production, fire safety laws and regulations and advanced
concepts of safety production management, guiding the senior management of the Group to establish the safety philosophy
are carried out of "all accidents can be prevented” at the primary level. At the same time, solid safety theme activities such as
Safety Production Month and Fire Prevention Publicity Month, and organizes activities in various forms including safety
knowledge and fire protection knowledge publicity, accident warning education, potential safety hazard investigation and
emergency drills, so as to enhance the safety awareness of all employees and foster a sound safety atmosphere, which has

been highly appreciated by the property owners and households.

TABBHRIREEEEZES, TEAREAEREERREL R EEE8 R eEE/VE BUBUNT2EIEH
Z2EERE BRRZ2EETMFYERBEIL, EEIA BRFIEAERBE. HH AR KEEMBERNZ2EERE,
BAREEREIPIE, FIERNEEEENAREHE, RS L eEBaE ANEEREE . CHHEX 2L ERE TIF. MM
HRAZ2EEBN, MR EERE,

FEELZERTDINAAEZE2ER . FEERENNE LN ES R 2L E EMTE X RERNBANTENTEEEE
HIER, SISAERSENEEMI—ERERNEN 2B, AN EREL2EERVEMEGASR2TEED,
BBEASENZ2MNBHENAAESE. FRETYE . Z2RBATNERMED, REA2EZ2EH, EETREN
ZERE, TRETREEMRERN—HIFH.

Case

=6
The Group companies conducted a series
of interactive activities of “ focusing on fire
protection and giving top priority to life”
KEEEAEIHRBHIEBESE LIRYIES)

Fire protection drill SHBh EENIRIS

In June 2020, the activities of "focusing on fire protection and giving top priority to life" were held by respective companies of
the Group in succession. Each company carried out fire prevention training enabling the service team and community residents
to learn the escape routes and the methods to use firefighting equipment in their communities, which made fire safety

awareness deeply penetrated into the community life upon launching the training for the emergency teams in communities.

TECRERA, FEEZAR M ENESRE L EBARET, SABERE TIEMEIINENERED; BEREMD
EHRERGICENRBERTE, EETHERIVNDBHRIIGHNER, HEENRE2THARANSELREE,



2.3 Eco-friendly Workplace

IR R o7 BB 5

(I) Eco-friendly Measures
IRIREH

The Group has engaged a professional property management team, strictly abided by the requirements of garbage sorting,
installed classified garbage bins, set up collection bins for hazardous waste such as scrapped batteries, and continued to
undertake the “clean plate” action in the canteen of the Shenzhen Office where 100% food waste is being recycled by
professional collectors.

AEERFEEYESERR, BEETURSBERENSEER, BBE T 28R, REES NS EE0IREE, R
MEEAEFERITRTE, HRIBRE D BEREREE AT EWFA.

- For sake of continuously improving the food quality of the staff canteen at the Shenzhen Office,
21 the Group has introduced a professional catering service team to further uplift the service
quality and staff satisfaction of the canteen on the premise of ensuring food safety and

Eco-friendly recycling . -
ERE environmental sanitation, so as to better serve the employees.

AFEERIMEEETREERRHE, AEBSINEXLERRBZEEK, EREBRETD
RERRHENFRET, E—FREVERFRERETIREE, ERBFE L,

At the end of 2020, the staff canteen of Shenzhen Office was completed and put into use.
ARUERE TR EMR2020FREMRL R NER

(I1) Action for Emission Reduction
BHTE)

In 2020, the Company upgraded the video conference system and online learning system, improved the management mode
of conference and training, and reduced the greenhouse gas emissions attributable to business travels. The Company has
implemented a centralised company car reservation system with which the driver and the itinerary has been specifically
assigned. A single vehicle will be usually arranged for group activities to reduce exhaust emissions.
ECEE,AEREIIAGRANGRRAR G LB2ERS, TEER BT ERR, BREREREITMEENAERE
HRE . AEEBTHEAKESRE. EAEN. S—#id, SRIHEERHERRLFR—SBMELIT, BROBERHK.
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Eco-friendly Work Mode
BRI AR

In its day-to-day operations, the Group has established systems and rules for the asset management and the use of office
supplies and other consumables. Energy-saving lights and adjustable air-conditioning settings have been widely used to reduce
electricity consumption. Employees are encouraged to minimise the consumption and preserve materials. Wastes are being

disposed according to categories so that wastes, such as used paper and paper boxes are subject to recycling and reuse.

EAENMABESR, AEEHNMASEEEE MARRSHEMER MARRHE THERNG ERE, eEEMSER
BAIR, (IEFEREE U IERI=H ARG, O EER, BEETAYERR LETHN.RE, TEYRE LIRER
D ERIE, BRI EIWHI BRI, BIINEEAR. ARFE S, EIT I BRI A,

.....................

------

“Green-Friendly Work Mode” has
been proactively executed.
Paperless office has been promoted

to reduce waste, and

paper
contribute to zero deforestation.

RIBERMZEHQIITHA, HITE
MWD, BAOERRE, AHM
TR E TR

------

Green mobility concept has been
promoted by reducing business
travels and encouraging the
employees to use new energy

vehicles.

WO TIEABER, IRIEEAHRE
RRZBT AR, B &,

------

Strictly monitoring water
consumption in the workplace, and
undertaking regular inspection and
repair of the water facilities to

avoid inefficient use of water.

BISEBEEM AR AKER, 8
WEMEERKER, MM B8,
RERBKERNER.




2.4 Green-friendly Enterprise
RBERIFREER

Extreme weather caused by climate change shall hurt mankind health, damage natural ecosystem, and pose uncertainties to
businesses' production and operation, thereby bringing an adverse impact on social and economic development. In view of the
impact of extreme weather (cold wave and low temperature, hail, high temperature, fog and haze, sandstorm, strong wind,
thunderstorm and rainstorm) on projects in northern China, our real estate project department formulates feasible contingency
plans before starting the construction works. We closely monitor the weather changes and undertake measures when
necessary to ensure that extreme weather will not cause serious damage to our projects. In southern China, for extreme
weather such as high temperature, rainstorm and typhoons in summer time, the Company will conduct comprehensive safety
checks, remove all hidden dangers, transfer or cover up construction materials, reinforce the structures of sample rooms in
residential and office zones, and arrange workers to take shelter in safety zones once the observatory has hoisted warning

signals.

HREEUSIENBREARTETHARRR. BRAEBRARENESE, EGREEEEQREEHURKEERTRIEE
M, A EREERTREAACE HHPRLFHEBRHERIR (FHEE AE SR EEVER KA. EWN. %W HEE
WRE, MERBEEEM TaHETRFNEIESR, BRMIXREN, MERIER, REBRRXRAFTHEEERK
gk, A MEREEHHEENSA. BN BEASFBHETARELMRAECRRN2EZ2BE, FEAIKZ2RE,
BERNEZFEME, MELEFZRMBAERE, TABBIEEREES,

Specific handling measures include
EREHEEEE

Pay prompt attention to weather report in the real time, send out early warning messages to employees
and project construction teams of the Group, and pay attention to health condition of the employees

from time to time.
MEFRFRREN, HAEEET . EHEREKEHTEZEERE, MEFAFIAERENR T

Get ready sandbags, raincoats, rain shoes, headlights, emergency lights, tools for opening rainwater
manhole covers, sunstroke prevention and cooling medicines, haze absorbers and other preventive
equipment.

LR MR W EE ERE RN FENTR BERRER. RESPHERE.

Carry out the on-site prevention and protection work in office areas, construction and production areas

and delivered areas of the Group.

FEAEENLARE ETLEER. EXNVEMNRSHEILF.

Formulate specific construction schedules and material and personnel arrival plans in production areas.

SERMIFEERETEES, M ABESFTE.
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Dredge the drainage pipes inside and outside the project sites to ensure smooth drainage and prevent water

flooding.
BURIEE PIMNEKEE, (RIEHEKIES, B LETE K.

Conduct applicable emergency drills, primarily focusing on emergency rescue when the relating emergencies

(such as sunstroke) occur.

BTHEBESER TBRGFSREBR (REMASTB) BEIREF.

Advocate preventive measures before the arrival of extreme weather, and put up posters in the lobby and
main roads of the construction sites. The corresponding internal regulations of the Company such as Plan for
Construction Activities in Rainy Season, Plan for Construction Activities in Winter Maintenance, Contingency
Plan for Flood Control for Projects, and Contingency Plan for Natural Disasters, etc. are publicly circulated.
FERIHEARERZ ANETHEREEE S, ARGAE I EFBEREEEEHRE. EELTINHSHERSE
E(NERIAR)(LHERT AR (BERAESER) (BRXERIBR)ZE,

(>} 6

Pictures 1-6 shows our safety inspection before the arrival of extreme weather.

0 0 BEHEFRIKRZFHNLMEIRE



Biodiversity Protection
EY SR RE

The Group strictly abides by the Land Administration Law of the People’s Republic of China and other land development laws
and regulations. Concerning particularly greenfield development, brownfield development, biodiversity, cultural reserves and
other related contents, where the bottom lines, must always be observed. Only lands that have no adverse impact on biological
diversity according to government assessments will be developed whilst attention will be paid to the protection of biodiversity
in the whole process of land investment and development.

KREEBSET(REAREME L MER X)) FRBET M EERER, 5 2H R GBI RMAE. £ 2R Xk
REEFHANSBRTRE, EHECEMIGEHEYZSREEIRLENMEE, T HRENREBEIFTELEYSK
MR RE,

Baoxin Golf is adjacent to Xixiang Sports Park with beautiful scenery

and surrounded by primary ecological green land. The total area of

the project is more than 50,000 square meters and the area of the

main venue is more than 10,000 square meters. It has been built

with a single three-storey club in Southeast Asian Bali style.

BENe@ARERSEENASETQE, RIGFREREM, BE

MEBESBZTAK IRERLIEZ T A K, BEEE=ENERE

DEESREEM.

Generally, the surface temperature of lawn in summer is about 8°C lower than that of bare land, and the duration of high
temperature can be shortened by 2-3 hours. In winter, the surface temperature of lawn is 1-4°C higher than that of bare
land. The moisture content of turfgrass is above 70%, and the air humidity will be increased by the transpiration of turfgrass

leaves. In summer, the air humidity of lawn is 10%-20% higher than that of bare land.

BEESFEMHMERRE L RMBARS C, B RISER HAIAEIE2-3/ ., £FEIMMRAEILLRMNG1-4°Co BFE
BKEBHETO% UL, BRAENERERNARERRENTRREE. B, EEENF FTREELRMET10%-20%

o reduces sun radiation and protects mankind health; o reduces soil erosion and strengthens the embankment;
AR K GRS, REAERE, ALK EREEEIRSE

© purifies water and improves soil; © adjusts the ecological environment by its microclimate;
BUACR R 1% FENERIRIERY/ NRUIE,

© reduces noise; © cleans the atmosphere and makes itself a natural oxygen bar.
BRIRE KRR, RAGE,
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Achiever of a Better Life

KIFERNETE

In the context of comprehensively promoting ecological civilization and under the background of
building a beautiful China in the new era, through continuous dynamic consumer tracking, the
Group has recognized the consumer experience and needs in different scenarios, and applied the
understanding on consumers to provide driving force for product innovation, which is translated
into practical recovery strategies and schemes. While we actively develop environment-friendly
real estate to achieve harmonious coexistence between the city, the society and the nature, and
create an intensive, efficient and ecologically liveable new business form, we also actively enrich
and adjust our product portfolios to cope with the changes in consumption trends caused by

changes in consumer needs.

AeEHELEREXANEBTERRNFTBAAER T, AEBBBHENSREEEEH,
ANBEBETRABRTHEENRBRERIR AR EEEREAERAREMHE N, LB LAY
BATHERBEL SR —AEEBERRERFUNEME, BREMNT, 4, 5 AMEH
ENEENSREREENRER, 5—FH, THRENARERES, BEHEEERX
SLEHREEBRE K,
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3.1 Fulfilling the Expectation for

a Better Life
SIREF A ERERE

The COVID-19 pandemic brings short-term impact on a series of business, covering engineering, delivery and sales. For each
real estate development project, the Group adheres to the guiding principle of “overcoming difficulties”, and strives to advance
the progress of the project, ensure the construction outcome, complete the project with quality and quantity guaranteed
according to the time node, improve the product quality by creating high-quality products, and constantly increase the added
value of products. In that regard, we not only fulfill customers' expectations for a better life, but also demonstrate the

responsibility of the corporate brand image of the Company.

MEMAREE IR XN HES—RIEBTRENEE, AEESEHEREEE RS TRETH 5| BRA, Bk
ETREE, BRREELREREIVNR, RRHMMRERETR, BRITSRABEMEAERME, TENEINERMINE ©
ERETEPHEERFEENRS, BEEETENRENEEEE.

Case Baoxin Mansion
= [ EHHAE

On 18 June 2020, the commencement ceremony of the foundation pit support project of Baoxin Mansion was successfully

held, officially marking the prelude to the construction of Baoxin Mansion.

RIZEZ2FB+/\B, BERMAEREENZETIERIGINEFET, SHREEMAEERNNRERF .

The scene of commencement ceremony B TN IRIEE



Case Changchun Project

=61 ﬁﬁlﬁﬁ

On 29 September 2020, the Changchun Project obtained the pre-sale permit of the whole project, comprising a total of 1,791
sets of commercial, office and apartment business formats, which timely guaranteed the legal compliance of project opening
and sale opening in the “golden” September and “silver” October, a prime sales season, and helped achieve the milestones of

the project throughout the year.

RIZZZ2FNATHAE, REEENG2EEREN TR, SRR IMARAB2EXREMEE1,791E, MKRETEA
IRTHERFEEMK. FENSEARY, BhaFRE BEMERER.

Case Shenyang Project

=0 | ERER

In order to achieve the goal of quick turnover, the Development Expansion Centre of the Shenyang Company placed the

examination and approval work of height limit of Shenyang Baoxin Mansion Project (Jiuzhong Land) in advance. Through
unremitting efforts, the approval document of air height limit of the project was successfully obtained on 11 November 2020,
and the task was completed one month ahead of schedule. This examination and approval work of height limit can be
completed within a short period and with exemplary efficiency, which is deserved a precedent for efficient examination and

approval of air height limit for real estate projects in Shenyang.

AERREEER, BHEATHEREROMEERERAEER (N AR REEH I EFBWEH, RIZ2T2F+

—B+—HAEEEEMEREMG, RA—EASTRERS. AREEEEE. YRR, BT ERMEBEBME
R = EH B S hlo

Case Shantou Chaoyang Project
56l WEEE RS IR B

On 30 September 2020, the Shantou Chaoyang Project successfully accomplished the completion registration formalities. The
Shantou Company overcame difficulties, timely handled the adverse factors in the early stage of the project, placed all relevant
inspection procedures in advance, appointed special personnel to follow up the relevant inspection procedures, and finally
completed the registration formalities of the completion of the second phase 25 days in advance, which laid a good foundation
for the end of 2020 sales sprint and the acceleration of the follow-up product sales.

RIZEZEFNB=+8, LEHREBIEFSERR THERIBEATRRH#, REHRAEEFHANAFNER, fiE&E
FRRINFE, EAZEREEMABIEN, ERBREI - +TEXER_HRIFREIE, a-S_SHEFREEFTIR
MRBEERENEE T RIFER,

Shantou Chaoyang Project image SIWLEEEARRIER = = E
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3.2 Responding to the Needs of
Healthy Consumption
ElEEREEE:>

Following the end of the pandemic, consumers pay more attention to personal health and immunity enhancement, and are
more willing to maintain a healthy and regular lifestyle. The Company actively pays attention to changes in consumer needs,
value proposition and consumption scenarios of its own product category, reassesses its product portfolios and overall
strategies, and plans its layout in advance focusing on the theme of "healthy life" in the post-pandemic era. The Company
successively launches three configurations of purposive consumption formats of fitness room, karaoke and children playroom,
realizes the diversified operation of health and entertainment with strong experience, and better responds to the adverse

impact of the pandemic and the rebound needs after the new normal.

BEZR, HEEREREARE, ERRHREA, IERERERERENEESX. ALRAEBIESRBENEEE
EREEIRMEESSRSEA, EMMERES NERER, BGREBRAN EREE TEERRENME, BN
BTRESBE KIVEEREBRL=ZABNTHEXENEE, BRBEBENBRIRES THRYE, EFERBIEGERNT
MR BN BERRIRERTR.

Case Xin Dongneng
=0 FhEhEE

The Company's “Xin Dongneng" Fitness
Club is a professional fitness club integrating
fitness, rehabilitation and yoga. It introduces
the world's first-class fitness equipment
brand, adopts  domestic  advanced
management mode, and provides super

five-star private butler standard services.

ETHImBRE I REER—RERS RE.
TN —BE R H (R 5 ELEER, S EM R —
RS EMME, FAENENERER,
REBAEENMAERLIZERS,



Case Xin Yuefang
=0 [ gseth

"Xin Yuefang" is a new high-end karaoke
brand that combines the characteristics of
health, comfort, dynamics and vision with
modern science and technology elements. It
is equipped with various theme rooms with
different styles, including holographic
projection, animation and cartoon and
happy party, etc.

The relevant data in respect of the karaoke
business has not been included in the
reporting scope in 2020 since it has not yet
officially commenced business.

M I R—REGHEARKRTRITERN
R FE. R+ RBESN DI B RKTV
mhE EEEAELERE. FERERBALIK
HEZBRAREENTIEERE.

KIVEBHARAE_S_SFEXEE,
BB RN FEG T EE.

Case Xiao Mutong
=g E

"Xiao Mutong" is an amusement park
brand, which is positioned to provide
one-stop entertainment and education
services for parent-child families. "Xiao
Mutong" takes education in
entertainment, meticulous service and
innovative development as the brand
tenet, and creates a happy camp for kids
to pursue their dreams, stimulate their
physical potential, develop their social

skills and enrich their parent-child life.

T/NYEE | iR AR A R RE ML 4 3R F TR E 3R
H—I IR L HF IR R [N E
mRhR B E B G AR BIAR TS BB B
AmhERE, fTERERFRRER. N
SRBR EEUREN. BERFERE
B TR GEE M
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3.3 Cooperating Partners
EFSERHE

Suppliers are our partners to deliver customer services, implementing standardized supplier management can enhance supplier
management capability, and promote the provision of quality products and services to our customers.
HESRERMEBRTARBNSERNY, ETRENHESEE —H ERRAHEENEIREN, 5—HF RN IRERMSE
ERIRMHEEERMNRR.

Supply Chain Management
HAEREE

The Group has always pursued responsible procurement, taking a supplier's commercial credit and social responsibility as the
key premises for cooperation. The Group has formulated the Rules Governing Procurement, clarifying the implementation of
centralized management for procurement, to strive improving the level of procurement management. In 2020, the Group has
well protected the rights and interests of its suppliers and partners, and achieved mutual benefit and win-win results for all

parties concerned.

FREE-BBRETRE, BOXERNHEEERREAHETSENEERIIR. AEEHET T (REEEDE), AR
BETROEE SNRARBEEKE S5, ARERDREHEB R G ERFOEDE, BRTEFESHNEMNH

=

B o

Hierarchical Supplier Management
HEBDREE

Under the Rules Governing Supplier Assessment, suppliers are being evaluated on a quarterly and annually basis. A hierarchical
supplier management system has been put in place by which suppliers' fulfillment performance in seven aspects, namely
quality control, delivery cycle, level of cooperation, information, reasonableness of payment terms, costing work cooperation,
responsiveness to quotations and contract requirements, will be dynamically monitored. Based on the scores of such fulfillment
performance, suppliers are ranked into four grades of A, B, C and D. Suppliers which are ranked in Grade D will be subject to
the re-evaluation and rejection mechanism. In 2020, a total of 3,648 suppliers were introduced wherein 44 were ranked in
Grade D.

RIB(HRERHEEEINE), REE . FEAMHERRTE, SHERERSREE, R EEH HERH. BRES . B8 IR
ERGEM A TS RELSAERNDEREES CECEHHEBRNVETHERS, SERBBEROBORHE
BT EAAB.CROMEFR, HORMEEHETEIMFRAE, —S-TFH5EMAERS3,648K, HRFINDRMEEEE
445,



Total number of suppliers of the Group (breakdown by location 5 6 1 3 of which:
of incorporation): 7

KEBHEREEHEEANE (REEREMID) 5,6 13RHA:

Location percentage of suppliers

1 888 411 aEmEAE (730%)
/ )

Suppliers in Southern China Suppliers in Southwest China -

EEEEER Farg it @ AER

1,839 271

Suppliers in Eastern China Suppliers in Central China

ERMEHRER = H AR “

7 9 4 4 1 O Southern 3 3
R X . China  J/ I |

Suppliers in Northern China Suppliers in Northeast China 7 TR

= HAER sibEMESs

The Group has raised suppliers' environmental awareness by requiring them to procure 1SO9000 management system
certification and I1SO14000 environmental system certification. Moreover, we set high standards for energy conservation and

environmental protection. Our efforts have enhanced the development of a green and low-carbon economy.

ARESHEFNREREEREH, AEEERNEEXEEFEZEDISOI000EEBRRE, RFRFEETISOI4000IR1EE
A8, URETBRENER. RRENER, XEKEMMERER.

Transparent and Traceable Procurement
BB R BEAKATIEN

The Group has established a regular supplier introduction mechanism for suppliers. Under our tendering rules, only suppliers
in our prospective supplier database are allowed to bid for our projects. Such mechanism and rules help regulate the bidding
and purchasing practices of the Group's construction project contracting and bidding management departments and to build

an efficient, clean and fair procurement management system.

AREAEEERAE T REARBREEXRZHIINBERETA, BEEM. RER QAENRKBEERR, AEEREILTY
HEREBRASERS, HHERNEREREISTNERNE IR,

Ve Closed-loop management and supervision processes for procurement ~

RERIREIEE B RE

certification

on-site
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RISER

supplier
sourcing

HEFSIR

preliminary
vetting

AigRE

information
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ERE

process
evaluation

BIZET

and being recorded
in database
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When making decisions on procurement, the Company encourages persons in charge in subsidiaries to consider a range of
factors including the qualities, costs and environmental impacts of the materials. On the premise of fulfilling the Company's
procurement policy, preference is given to the products, equipment and services of the local suppliers, and priorities are given
to the suppliers in closer proximities who adopt eco-friendly means of transport. Procurement from local suppliers can reduce
the emission of greenhouse gas, and the occupation of public resources. While reducing risks in our supply chain, the Group

also closely works with the suppliers to save more resources with effective solutions.

The Group also inspects and grades the EHS (environment, health and safety) management practices and status of supervisors
and main sub-contractors, and uses outcome of such inspection and grading in performance assessment for the suppliers. We
have centralized procurement processes and dispatched on-site staff to monitor the production process and promote
eco-friendly manufacturing in the suppliers. Moreover, regional service centres have been established to enhance the efficiency

in supply and technological services.

TABBBHEFARNEEAEERBRTEEREMBNER A IRRERESFAR, TR SAEERBEENIRT, 8%
EE A FER M E R RE LR, L ELEIZFBREIRARIRRNIOEEH TANMES, 82 EERBIOAM KT
BERNMGA, TREREREIAARMNEIREE, AR B HEES A FEMBRENNBRAL R, KE—FBREREHN,

EEF, AEEHRENASEESNEHNS (R R2EIRR—8 1) EETANEERBETRETS, LIERAERIEIRET
EZZBEERYHENBE, BRRSRERENEEREREZELE, BBRUBERBHORSHEMERMIRFERE

4€ 2|




3.4 Offering High-quality Services

RESmERS

Customer Response Mechanism
% P [ClEt

The Company has adopted the “customer-oriented” principle. Different complaint feedback systems are put in place for
residential and commercial projects. We handle customer complaints instantly via member centers, service counters, service
hotlines and WeChat accounts. Related project management departments hold specific meetings to study and analyse the
problems which the customers have frequently complained. We timely responded to customers' needs by offering discounts,
replacing flawed products with quality ones, and other measures.

The operational department will handle potential complaints against property services immediately and resolve by digging into
the root of the problem. The complaining customers will be kept updated on the relevant handling progress.

During the Reporting Period, the Group received a total of 3 complaints, all of which were related to rectifications of on-site
quality problems, representing 0.6% of the Group's total project sales. After the negotiation by the emergency team, all of
such cases had been properly settled with the corresponding acceptance certificates, the inspection reports and repair
proposals being issued.

FRRFEIFRE LINRE, #HHETHEE BREESTEREFE T TENRFLEER, FBE P ONRFBE S REBH
B AESEENRTERRRFHHTAEBERRESNMEE, BEEENMEEREESRETHRRD M, WiBBRHE
ERX . EMaEERSEYREERER,

T REEERNYRIRE R, EE N E—RHBRE, SKMEBERRTURR, L E—REERRFE P EEREER,

RAREHN, FEEHRE=RKEH, HARSHEMERN, (hAEEHERBEE190.6%, BERI/NMERZ 1757, HAME
RASRUGE PR AR E MBS R, RE M EMR,

Handle customers’ complaint BREERRFIRS
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Confidentiality of Property Owners' Personal Data
EXIGEERE

Protecting the security and privacy of stakeholders’ personal data is important to our Group. We ensure compliance with the
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and other statutory requirements to meet a high
standard of security and confidentiality of personal data privacy protection. The following data protection principles are
adopted in preserving proper security and use of data:

e We only collect personal data that are relevant and required for our businesses;

e We will not share personal data to any entity that is not a member of our Group without consent unless it is required by
law or it was previously notified; and

e We maintain appropriate data collection, storage, and processing practices and security measures to protect against
unauthorised access to personal information.

The Group strictly complies with relevant laws and regulations including the Cybersecurity Law of the People's Republic of
China and formulates internal policies including information security management policy to standardize various actions
including output, transmission, application and processing of customer data, so as to eliminate the abuse of personal
information and thereby safeguard customer privacy. The Company has completed the establishment of Information Security
Management System and Information Security Management System Technology Architecture. Dedicated staff are appointed to
maintain property owners' personal data. All documents containing the property owners' personal data are kept in locked file
rooms and only authorized staff can have access into such rooms. The Group has also established strict internal regulation, that
all file administrators are required to sign confidentiality agreements and those who leak confidential information will be held
legally liable.

During the Reporting Period, the Company did not receive any complaint about leakage of customer data.

RIEEFDEBABN R RREHESEBEREE RIIEERETEREFIE486Z(EAER FAR) I REMEGRE, UFE
EABRHRENBRIERERRBIRE RPEFMUTERRRRR, UREZEMNERHR L RER:

o BFRWEEEBERNFIRNEAER;
o RIFEEBAFREREELEN, SRRMTEERERAE TR IFFERREATNNEABERXZEREAER; X
o HFIMERZENHBWNE. FENEEFENRRREN, U IERERENAEAER.

FEEBBET(PEARANMBAMERZ2Z)FEZEER, THEERL2EEFESFHEREET A ERNE L. FHE. EA.
RIBEEETH, HEBEAGERER XKMEEERENLRE, B ETMER R EERANGERERaRNRBNER HNE
FREEERHEANERE, FRNERBREEY I, FRREEASEREANN, UTAEBENDRERERE, 2BIERERE
ABBMBEEBREWH, MHIRRBERFEAREERERE T,

KGN, REBE—FIEFERINRRFE .

Improving Customer Satisfaction
ERMEERA

The Group has researched customers' needs and satisfaction in order to establish standardized service processes, and has
established a supervision and inspection mechanism to keep abreast of customer satisfaction status. We have used the results

of such researches as the most important basis for improving the quality of customer service.

FERBBHARERFRAMR ZTRRBAEEAMEF SN, ITEREMRBERIE, BT EKEREG, REFEETRAEE
WK, WL RREART P RBREANRER KR,



Protection of Intellectual Property
A E R RE

In order to define clearly the responsibilities and work content of material quality control of the project under construction of
the Group, the Engineering Management Centre of the Group formulates the operational guidelines of material and
equipment management, and puts the engineering material and equipment under proper control at the beginning and
processing stages by means of strict and effective management measures so as to ensure that the quality requirements of the
engineering material should be accorded with the design drawings and specifications.

All the projects under the Group emphasize heavily on the protection of intellectual property rights. The Engineering
Management Centre of the Group reviews the design drawings and technical parameters specifying the technical
requirements, the dimension specifications, major equipment parameters and quantity figures with respect to the significant
materials and equipment for each respective project. Meanwhile, the Engineering Management Centre is held responsible for
conducting parameter review on all significant large-scale electromechanical materials and equipment upon arrival at the
Engineering Management Centre/project department of the local project company in order to verify if the parameters have
been consistent with that specified in the contracts, providing review results and comments, and also conducting random
acceptance inspection for such significant materials and equipment. The Technology Management Centre of the Group reviews
the material samples provided by the bidder and confirm whether the content in the technical deviation form being furnished
by the bidder shall meet the design requirements, and finally signs approving the technical evaluation report jointly with
Engineering Management Centre of the Group. The Cost Management Centre of the Group verifies whether the quantity of

the significant materials and equipment for each project shall be consistent to that as mentioned within the bidding drawings.

Based on the relevant management requirements, the Engineering Management Centre of the Group conducts ad-hoc
inspection on incoming material exercises. “Notice for Conducting Acceptance Inspection for Incoming Materials” is to be
issued twenty (20) days before the commencement of inspection wherein the inspection objectives, inspection methods and
requirements, the inspection scope, the inspection time and the cooperation requirements by the respective project team are
briefly summarized.

Standard forms such as “Score Sheet of Acceptance Inspection for Incoming Materials”, Review Report on Acceptance
Inspection for Incoming Materials”, and “Rectification Sheet for Findings of Acceptance Inspection for Incoming Materials” are
also provided to the units under inspection. If any materials is being found to be unqualified, strict penial actions including
punishment on the suppliers and accountability by the responsible employee will be taken whilst for those reported cases with
serious quality problems, the project works concerned will be ordered to halt for rectification, and the management warnings
and notifications will also be issued.

During the Reporting Period, no complaint about violation of intellectual property was received.

ATRRAEETEIEMEREEERERITENS, ZEBIREEROHEMH LR EEBIEEIES], BBRE. B
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Diversifying Career
Development Platform

%%ﬁtﬂ,%%igzzé

The Group has strived to build a community of common benefits and

undertaking. It provides employees with a work platform to realize their
own values through the continuous optimization of staff development

system and the implementation of multiple development paths.

FEBMENERMZHERE FXRAEE), BBFHELETIRERR,
BITZTRERE REETHEIREENITETS,

4.1 Employees’ Rights
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4.2 Employees’ Development
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4.3 Work and Life Balance
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The distribution of employees by geographical region, gender, age group

Employees’ Breakdown
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and employment category is as follow:

By geographical region
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4.1 Employees’ Rights

BT #m

Equal Employment Opportunity and Competition
TEREEBEKGHERS

The Group is an equal opportunity employer. In the recruitment process, the Group ensures that each job applicant is entitled
to due rights and will not be refused for employment due to factors such as gender, age, disability, family status or race.

The Group strictly complies with Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Law of Hong Kong), the Labor Law of the People's
Republic of China and the Labor Contract Law of the People's Republic of China, and other relevant labour laws and
regulations. It fully follows statutory processes when signing, renewing, terminating and cancelling labour contracts with
employees. All related processes are fair, transparent and impartial, regardless of any diversity-related factors such as gender,
race, among others.

The Group has formulated the Management Rules for Hiring and Probation and the Guidelines for Hiring Processes. Such rules
and processes have standardized the recruitment process for ensuring that our hiring activities comply with applicable laws,
and prevented child labour or forced labour at source.

The Group has used Follow-up Form for New Employees' Probation to ensure that new hires are given sufficient humanistic
care, work support and assistance in completing required processes during the probation period. Such arrangement can help
new hires quickly adapt to the workplace and satisfy job requirements during their probation periods. Moreover, advisory and
coordination services are being provided to new hires, thereby avoiding any forced labour.

Similarly, the decision on the promotion of an employee is made on the basis of the knowledge, skills and professionalism of
that employee as the criteria, regardless of the age, religion, marital or maternal status so as to make sure that every employee
is entitled to equal rights and interests in the Group.

During the Reporting Period, no child labour or forced labour was employed within the Group and its supply chain.
AEEEBEIE LM FERERE BENBRTS UEYENEEZTRENEN, FTERAM . F8.BE . KE
EU RS R RMRIERIEA,
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Salary and Benefits
FrEf SRR A

The Group strives to motivate employees through the continuous optimization of remuneration and benefits system. Under the
national and local requirements, the Company and its establishments in the PRC are obliged to make regular and adequate
contribution payment to social insurance and housing provident fund schemes for the employees, provide commercial
comprehensive insurance plans covering both outpatient and hospitalization benefits for employees who are suffering from
accidental injuries and major diseases, and let the employees enjoy the share of goals accomplishment by setting up the

corporate annuity plans.

TEEFEELFHENER, SHEAFIHENZNRE. AQBREM D I IBIZRERK NS ER, 28 T EEREM
HERBETEA RS, AETREFEGARRE, HRIMEE . EXERMFIZERBREMRE RUCEFEHE, B
BEINZ#HEMR

@ The Group would warranty that the salary level of every employee shall meet the minimum legal requirements enacted by
the local government, and procure social insurance or other statutory provident fund contribution plans for employees

according to the local employment regulations.

FEEBRETHNHEKENSEMBFFTRNRETERE, TS ERHEMNMIRTE, BREMNERBET
BEHEREINEMEZE RS HRETE,

@ Assessment of labour market situations is conducted on an annual basis. Reasonable and legal salary adjustments will be
made to ensure competitive compensation packages for employees and to reward the employees' contributions being

made to the Group.

FEEESFEEMNEHE DTS, HFWEREMBSESANAR, AHEABETRHEERFNNFIEE, UEIEET
HARERBPAHMBIER



e In addition to salary pay, the Group abides by the arrangement of statutory holidays and paid annual leaves, in order to
boost employees' sense of gains. The Group also provides holiday allowances for employees on major holidays. The Group

has provided other benefits like the meal allowances for overtime and business travel, and the incentive paid leaves, etc.

BREENSN, AEBERBETZERBNGEHERNZH BABTINESE, AEXRASETIEREBHER, #HEE
MNYLER. HEERH. EEBFRERN.

® In 2020, for sake of improving the catering quality for the employees, the Shenzhen office upgraded the staff canteen and
uplift the meal allowances standard. The Group satisfies the residential demand for employees in need through provision
of talent-affordable housing for qualified employees. Moreover, various festival activities are organized by the Group to

create warm festival atmosphere.

TECERERIMEREMTEIRERA T EMRE, FENEE I EMRHE AEESE AR E TRM
AT REWEERS, NERBRRBESTINEERER. rEEEERTAZENEHEED, ESRENHERE,

Staff canteen of the Shenzhen Office provides diversified, nutritious and delicious food
AMERETRERREE, &0
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Occupational Safety — Management Policies and Regulatory Requirements
HxEZe - EEFIERRBEKR

The Group is very concerned about the workplace environment and safety of employees, and therefore has formulated sound
management policies and regulatory requirements. The Group regularly and on the ad-hoc basis, undertakes specific checks
on the safety status of office premises, places of operation and construction sites. All project companies are required to put in
place a safety management office according to the regulatory requirements and standards. The Group has assigned designated
staff to take charge of safety management, and regularly conducts trainings and conferences on safety. On-site safety
inspections are being conducted to ensure zero accidents in the workplaces. Further measures to mitigate safety risks, with an

ultimate goal of building a zero-accident working environment are also implemented.

During the Reporting Period, the number and ratio of deaths due to work-related accidents and the number of working days

lost due to work-related injuries were all zero.

FEE+DEREINIFREHEZ S, AFIETRE2MNEEFEERBER, ERETEHH MRS EEHHR. TR
ITEFHERSEZ2EERE, ERZFADRBHEBHEERRET2EERE, IEZ2EEAS, ERRZ 25, B
HR2EEDH ARRSReRE, 2HERIESMNZ2SF R BRI R2BENER, BEREE—EER
SN TARIRIR

ISP, ATEAEMAETHABRLEERERTHEATFEHENAZ.

In the course of real estate development business, the Group has assigned production safety personnel with relevant
production knowledge and management capability as well as relevant certificates and licences to be on duty in strict

compliance with Article 20 of Production Safety Law of the People's Republic of China.

EEMBHERERSR, FERRBS(TPEARKNEREEEZRE - TF RHFEFEEN#NEERNINFERRE
B2t EEEA BB,

Our specific measures to ensure employees' safety include:
KRATRFEEREMERIETRS:

Safety slogans are displayed in the For positions with relatively high risks, in addition to posting the relevant safety
office premises and work areas, such as procedures and operating instructions in prominent places, we also provide the

"Be Carefull High Temperature” on
drinking water equipment, and “Do
Not Move” at the storage place for
fire-fighting equipment.

employees with appropriate personal protective devices for the prevention of
occupational diseases and work injuries. To ensure the normalization of
workplace safety, the Group has set up a specific inspection team to regularly

o inspect safety-related matters and bring to the employees' attention of risks such
EMABEI R TEEISRMT S REIRT

1555, EERKHER SRV TFRUE

MR AR S | ST RARBRENTAERL IR
TEEREES R RIFRRR

EREEZ LN, ERBAE TR
MBI L2 ERARUMARE
ERARTENEE HERIIES
Free Bk, ZERRET HH
BE/NE, BYIRERME, T
RERE, URTER. B,
2 %77 AR .

as fire protection, electric circuits, chemicals, etc.

)




Normalization of Preventive and Protective Measures against COVID-19 Pandemic
B IERE B RS

Since the implementation of preventive and control measures for the pandemic, the Group has acted promptly and undertaken
a couple of effective actions. All units, departments and project companies are required to comply with such preventive and
control measures for the pandemic in a strictly manner, resume orderly production and operation and provide a strong back up
with respect to the good working environment and work order for the employees. Since the resumption of work and
production, all business units of the Group have been equipped with normalized pandemic prevention and control measure for
ensuring zero suspected and zero confirmed cases by means of carrying out multiple tasks, adopting scientific measures,
catching pandemic prevention targets and promoting the production process.

B EIRR S BRI R Z BRI E TR R LK, ZEBRRITE, KIS BB MIEN, ERS B S HEBERETR
BEBERBEHEERNARET, #PEECEAFEE, B THNREFNQARENITRFRETRNINRE BEIEE
LR, AEBFR S EMRE R RBBBEHITER, ST E, BEmE, Mg, REE, BRREEM. SEZHH.

Daily control and prevention measures against COVID-19 B & iz ZE ER

® We adhere to the "Double Safety" as a long-term normalized measure for pandemic prevention and control
15 TMRME B ERA BB RIRE

The first is to ensure the safety of employees:

F-RREETRE: P

disinfect the office area thoroughly every day,
provide protective materials such as masks, alcohol,
disinfectant and disinfectant wipes for all
employees, track the activities of employees, collect
health information, and establish a register of
employees returning to work.

BN ARETEEES, ALBETEMHGD
BUBRHSERIESRNEHEAR, BHET
EEPI BREMNRE, BUET BT E M,

The second is to ensure the safety of customers:

Bo_RREETRE: P

disinfect the public areas of shopping malls, display
relevant prevention and control information
publicity materials, and strictly implement names
registration, temperature measurement, wearing
masks, scanning "QR code" and other measures of
individuals entering shopping malls and sales
offices.

HESQHESETEEES, MERRMPEMHE
EEM BEEEENT BN EBEASNEL.
RERR. MBS, i ERFHEE.
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Occupational Safety — Management Policies and Regulatory Requirements
HxEZe - EEFIERRBEKR

The Group is used to preparing the safety training plan for employees at the beginning of every year, which sets out details of
the occupational health and safety trainings for employees, including the identification of safety warning signs, the operation
of safety facilities, the safe operating procedures at related positions, and the lessons learned from safety accidents, etc. All
these trainings have been aimed to raise the employees' safety awareness so that they can recognise safety risks and stay
vigilant.

Since part of the Group's businesses are carried out at the seaside, to safeguard the employees' and customers' personal safety,
the Group has organised some of its employees to take the examination for the Qualification Certificate of Industry
Practitioners awarded by the General Administration of Sport of China and Class 5 Lifeguard Work Permit awarded by the
Shenzhen Water Sports Association. In seaside operations, certified and experienced lifeguards are on duty at all time. The
Group would also regularly organise marine safety trainings for employees, partners and other marine workers to enhance
their basic safety knowledge and skills.

The Group has also regularly arranged employees to go through fire and emergency drills in which they will familiarise
themselves with basic self-rescue and emergency escape skills Knowledge and skills concerning firefighting facility deployment,
firefighting safety, safe electricity use in offices, as well as safe use of high-rise elevators. Classic firefighting cases have been
shared with the employees to raise their safety awareness and sense of responsibility.

FEESFFVERAIBEIL2FIHE, AETRUBENHERRNRZ 2, BN T EZCEZ2RHOHRG =
é*"ﬁﬁ*"ﬁﬂ@ﬁsf’ﬁ HRREEUNZSRERE. Z2FRRFIRESE, MERABBEINR2EH, CHEERMHI%
2B EERSER.

HRBOXBEBEET, AREEINEFNASZE, SHQAREBHEMNOE T ENHBEKEETRRMBENTEREA
BERFEMNRIT K EHHERENEARES LER. EEEEFPHRSBANEFEEEXLCREENNES AN,
TEHRES L Z2RME, ENEENBET. SFEFFRE LEREMNAR, MRERT2RMHEER NG
k7P

FEREEREBETHEBENIRZEEIER EEE TR EEXAMMNBEIRERE MBI M OHEP R 2R # H R
ﬁm#fﬁ’&% té\m}ﬁaﬁﬁﬁt%@ﬁfﬁf%ﬂg%? ﬁ’*@ﬁﬁLﬁTiﬁT&)\ﬁj\E,,.u.:./ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁsﬁﬂﬁ;,,.Eﬁiiﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂé’ﬁﬂ
BTt R2EER, BMTFEEHEER, BIMITESED.

Case "The life-saving AED alongside” the First-aid training

LN 1% 35 SRAEDTE 58 2RI FHRET

On 30 December 2020, in order to safeguard the life, health and safety of
the employees, the Group procured AED that was installed in the office

area, and held specific training on emergency treatment in which national

CPR professional was invited to provide an on-site instruction.

AREAEEETEGRERS, NS5+ _"_A=+H, EHrE
BT BERRINFEE(AED), BT T BIMEER S, BHEER

R0 B 1S BERT IR ERIR IS S,
AED equipment in office area ¥ A[EIHAEDRE

In addition to ensuring effectively the safety of the Group's employees, the Group discharges also the safety supervision role
for those contractors within its business scope. The contractors are requested to establish sound safety management
procedures for carrying out all kinds of safety instruction tasks and improving the management systems for occupational health

and safety.

BRTERRERAEESEIR2UN cEEHENET T HEBRENALEN T2 EERERE BEREAETR2ReE
EHE, RO SEL2EETIF cEBXEREREEER,



Body Check and Insurance
e in e IR

The Group has made contribution to the five mandatory insurance schemes (pension fund, medical insurance, industrial injury
insurance, unemployment insurance and maternity insurance) for the PRC employees, and has organised employees to join the
“critical illness insurance” scheme as recommendable by the government. For employees who work for the real estate

development segment where certain risks do exist, the Group has additionally purchased the commercial casualty insurance.

The Group continues to promote the establishment of the employee health care system to help employees identify and reduce
health risks. The Group conducts multiple tasks such as employees' health assessment, health promotion activities, promotion
of health concept, provides annual health inspection and body check for all employees, arranges casual health promotion
activities such as medical consultation and health physical therapy launches health periodicals and health lectures, so as to

provide a comprehensive cover of health management for employees.

FEBBENNE TIRAGMTRR) BIEERER. BREE. THERRCAERBIESRE) , ERBEME TS MBUTER
ENTERRBRER), THEEMERE KEFERE—ERRMNER, B EHETRE T BIMEERERE.

FEEFHERS RIS TRERERRER, BB THBMERERER. AEBIE TRERRT G, @REETSHRE. @
RESEEEFZHTEMRLIE BESELASEETRHEZRRES. BERA, TERRASBHD . BRERSFEREES
8), R EREAT) BRHERRE, AR TRt ENREREERE,

Employees psychological counseling room BT \EFEHE

The Group has operated a professional premise for caring the mental health of employees. Besides organizing regular
counselling sessions held by professional psychological practitioners from professional institutions for giving the employees
advices on psychological adjustments in the workplace and stress relief, the Group has also cared the healthy growth of the

employees through the provision of mental health training, consultation and guidance.

FEFEMBET RES T OERENERGMH, RT CHRAFRKBOIERNMEHBSOIERE. BHRBESIENS
ERFSN, EEEOEEREE. FHHEEE, SEMTIEINREMR.

109



110

4.2 Employees’ Development
BTERE

The continuous improvement of an employee’s lifelong employability is a responsibility that both the employee and the Group
should assume.

In the post-epidemic era, for sake of effectively assisting the business development of the Group, keeping up with market
demand, as well as meeting the needs of talent development, the creation of an efficient, pragmatic and flexible
multi-dimensional training model has become the main objective of the Group’s talent development system in 2020. The
Group has emphasized heavily on the advancement of the employees’ professional capability, and has established a relatively
sophisticated learning and development system in the headquarters and other branch entities with the coverage of the four
main categories, namely management, integration, business and general application for meeting the needs of employees at all
stages of career development. The Group has treated the culturing of professional ethics for employees to be the fundamental
base for the career development, and for purpose of uplifting the employees’ professional ethics, professional ethics
knowledge competitions have been launched where correct professional values are being delivered through online and offline
diversified forms with highlight of integrity management and compliance practice. For 2020, over 390 training sessions were
organized whilst the per-capita training hours was 69.22 hours.

BTIREMEENNFERAREIMNAERREEHRAENEE,

EREBRA, B EUHEERERER, BERTEFER, REATERFTE, {TESNBEEEENSMEEEIRE, R
A B EFAERAAT EREARMNEIEER AEESEERETINBERNREN ERUBATENBRTERE
R, BEQRBMOSZHE, REEE.MA EBLEANARN, MEETBERRZBENER EAEEFE THRER
BERAAERER, BBE L GTERUPN, SEERNBREEE, SAMGKE. RN, ARBXEENHE
B, RASTHXER, WE_Z-2F, AEERFAM3902 5B, ABEINSERHEC. 22/,

= ©®

The Group organized over 390 training sessions Per-capita training hours reached 69.22 hours
AEE REHEM390ZHIE AR 2 BE69. 22/ BF

By the employee category By gender
RREERNE 52 EicqeilElbn)
Percentage of employees
received training 100% 109.85%

iy 112.36%
?ﬁzin uJ” ;\./0 99.6%///.
EREZDL 97.27%

82.19 86.01

Average training hours 57.30
of each employee 21.45 27.48 I I .
(hours) = |
Q%{E% senior middle general female male
TR AN ER management management staff i Bt
(NEF) SREEE PREEE —fRBT




Unconventional Class Model Training Classroom
MEEIlH=E

Affected by the pandemic, offline centralized teaching has been restricted. In order to meet the needs of the Group's business
development and the personal growth of the employees in a timely manner, the Group's talent management team has actively

developed new training modes:

REBTE, BTEPRRAZR. KN EFEEAEXFERMETEAARREE, AEEA AL EEEFBEBHRENFER:

Live bjoadcast teaching, exploring new training modes
BHIEER, RREBIFERS

A new platform for live training was developed, led by the

Chairman and participated by the Group's management teams in

opening ceremonies, with a total live broadcast of 27.5 hours,

which was highly praised by the employees of the Group.

HEEREINIFRTE, HEFREH. AEEKEEREERNH=
HERR T EER, R ERE27.5/\FF, BEAERE S T —5UfT.

) } } o The scene of Chairman's lecture class EHEAHE HEIRIS
Learning online, creating a new training model

GESE, SIS
In order to enrich the knowledge reserve of employees and meet their fragmented learning needs, the Group officially
launched the online learning platform and introduced 305 external real estate related professional courses where the live
broadcasts by external experts had been replayed for over 20 times.
AEYEETHHMEEG WEEIRRH2ERTE, A5EEX LR L2BETE, SININE M ZEEREEFE3050, EiE
HMNERERERE208R K,

Strengthening the Construction of Talent Team
BICAT R R

~

With the guidance and teaching of internal hotshots as the main part and the training of external experts as the auxiliary

part, we continue to build a high-performance management team to effectively foster the Group's business development:

MBI A E NI FIB A, HEITERUNEEERR, BN EEREBER:

1 ,il\dapting to new job positions, mentoring by the senior managers plan

AbE RS, DA EIEE HHGTE
A mentoring team of senior managers who are leaders and responsible heads in respective business units of the
Group has been set up with which the members can quickly be integrated into the team and adapted to the new
job positions, and thereby accelerating the performance results.
HEUEBDEEERZRLAEEARSMNSREEE T EP, BROERN B BRI ERE LI, 3R T E4E
HEH.
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Empowering growth, middle level leadership training camp

R R, PEEENIIKRE

Through the empowerment of internal senior managers' professional knowledge and the guidance of external
experts' management skills, the management concept and business skills of the middle management team can be

overally improved.
BENBEEEEMNBREINNTEREERERE, 2HURATEEEREKERIE T MERIEE,

Cultivating special talent training plan

BEHEER EEASEEHNE

A specific talent training plan has been launched, based upon the quality and the competency standards of the
targeted job positions for training, the training objectives and plans will then be established by stages so as to
provide an effective training mechanism for nurturing talents rapidly.

MEEEAABESE, HEESEERAUNEURENBENEE, P REREEEBENE, REEE
EWE, REBFUAT

Professional empowerment, facilitating sales targets accomplishment
HRAREE, B OHHE BAEM

For purpose of assisting the marketing cross-sector to explore the new marketing mode of real estate industry in
the post-pandemic era, with the introduction of the relevant external experts for empowerment, and broadening
the vision of the marketing professional management team, more than 160 person-times of the marketing
professional management team has been empowered with a cumulative training time of 16 hours. Through the

mode of combining training with actual participation, the stage sales target has been effectively reached.
BENTHHRRRRBEERFREEITHMEL, SHEINEERMESETTIEE, ARITHEXEEERIRE, R
SHERRETTIHE X BB EX1608R AR, REHBIIRRIC/NE, BEIIEEGENIRER, EREETREHEBIEZ
HYE AR

Studying abroad , accelerating the career growth of employees

IMNREE, MRETHEME

In order to assist the outstanding employees to develop their career paths rapidly, in 2020, the Group sent a
number of well performing employees to participate into external professional training to enhance their
professional knowledge and skills and broaden their professional vision.

AMNEBEFETHEERRRER, RS, AEEREZUBEBE T2 MIMNPEZTI, RAZTENHR
B, BAHREERH,




Improving the Quality of Internal Training
RAWIIRE

Through continuing to explore the resources of internal trainers and effectively carrying out internal training activities at all

levels of the corporate organization, the business development of the Group can be fostered.

FHHEZIEN I IE B ER, BRIE B RAMMEIITEN, B hEEEE R,

X

- o

Carrying out internal training, improving the quality of internal training

Sl T’ P EpEI R E

In 2020, over 390 training sessions were conducted by the project companies of the Group.
“ECEFEN, AEEZEB AR RFEE3IN0ZI5E.

Empowering trainers and helping new employees adapt to their job positions quickly
SEETARBE, BY /7T B T HRERAN

(1) A total of 50 employees attended the offline training class of “Course Presentation and Trainers Teaching Skills”

and 38 trainers finally passed the certification.

R (R 2INE BN IR R IoMAR T 153, HET50 B T2 MBI, SERHFBIBHEMI8 A,

(2) A total of 217 new employees attended the training classes for newcoming staff over a cumulative 8 openings of
training sessions which would facilitate them to adapt to their respective job positions quickly.

SRR 8 T NBEFISHE, H5tBY 11217413 8 T HRERE N [ (1.

Trainers evaluation, enhancing the sense of honor of internal trainers
BEMTTE, IRF PIB/IEMER & =%

Evaluation for internal trainers has been undertaken by reviewing the performance of such internal trainers in the
training classes which is based upon those dimension factors such as course satisfaction, and quality of course

content.

BERENEE.RENEmBSHEERMNIHEMZRIER, AEERENIMTEER.

Case Studying the Civil Code
=0 T

The Civil Code, known as the "Encyclopedia of Social Life", is the
first law adopting the Code name by New China. The Group's
senior management has addressed the significance of the Civil
Code in many meetings, and demanded employees at all levels to
study in depth. By organizing the subject event of the Civil Code,
the employees are expected to strengthen their legal awareness

and respect the application of the law in their work.

(RZE)WBATHEEFNER LS, BFPEE—HLUER
MENER, AERBSESRERTRIMREZEINEER R,
WERAEEZSFETRNES, BB RREHRTELE, 18
SBMETERER, ELEEEPNEERZE.

RHEEZBIREG The scene of studying the Civil Code by employees
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4.3 Work and Life Balance

TREAEFR T

The Group is committed to maintaining the physical and mental health of its employees, and is highly concerned about the
work-life balance of its employees, and as such, the Group has fully leveraged its advantages in human resources management,
and has effectively analyzed the workload of each job position to assess the work intensity of employees and ensure reasonable

workload. The Group shall never force its employees to work overtime.

To help employees relax and relieve their work pressure, the Group has enhanced internal communication and allocated
funding to each department every quarter to subsidies recreational activities for the release of the employees' stress. These
include sports and fitness activities, reading, and team building activities (such as camping), which have enriched employees'

lives beyond their daily work.

FEEFNEFEINS ORE, FEMIREEIEIFREEZBANTH AltAEBTERANEREEES, 5%
MATSEAN TS, LET ARG SERA, B REBE TBR T

BB THZ R TETEES, INENERR, AXRESTE SRR EDCE, TREMRELTHEDETRE,
BEEDRS HEMFIEESKELNEREREY, LEEETERBEIIFUMMIETE,

Staff's recreation and

0 sports area Q Billiard competition 9 Yoga class 9 Staff fooball match
BT HREESE BIRKFEESHRIGE B B3t BT RHKLLERS
o (2]
(3] (4]



Caring
N

The Group earnestly cares for female employees, pays attention to workplace pressure and psychology, and specially sets up

private, hygienic, comfortable and safe rest places for female employees during pregnancy and lactation, thus improving the

service quality of humanistic care and considerate acts of the enterprise.

FEBRYIEMELET, MERISENELE, EMAZIARHARTH I MROLE EE 8. R IRBRISH, I#F T

EEAXRE, RO TENRSmE.

Case Loving Mom's Nursing Room

=0 NN IN

The "Loving Mom's Nursing Room" is not only a
place for expectant mothers and new mothers to rest
during pregnancy and prepare breastfeeding during
lactation, but also a warm venue for mothers to
communicate children's health problems, baby care
sharing and relaxation.

“BOBE/NR RREBBNEGTZHAE. M
FLERBIIRIGAN, RN RBRRA. BEDE.
BEROIENBEOMREE,

Outdoor Team Building
=P INEFE-

Outdoor team building in the Spring & B F4ME 2

Movie Sharing

BEN=E

On 19 October 2020, the fourth quarter team building
event of Nanning Company, namely "Working
Together with One Heart, Forging ahead and
Achieving Mission" was held lively in Liangfengjiang
State Forestry Park. The activity has broken the
hierarchy, enhanced the understanding of the team,
and encouraged all employees to strive for the annual
goal for 2020.

RIEBEZZE+A+NH, BEQRRTELEIT, KIE
EE, FabE _S_SFEFENEERREHER
SEANRBIIAMRBERRRT, BEHITRELR,
BETEBENER, XBE282NERN__S-2F
EEE,

On 21 October 2020, Weinan Company has

organized all employees to watch the movie "Leap"”,

which inspired the team to go all out and work hard.

RIEZZF+AZ+—H, BEEARAER:E
BTBRESY (Fd) , #EEER2HUR. BH
BHEBIE
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Contributing to Charity

DPmBETRBAF

The Group has taken care of the public's well-being and benefits. While delivering the

Company's brand image and corporate culture as a project culture disseminator, we have
always proactively engaged with communities to learn the needs of communities, and are
committed to participating into all those community activities which will help establish a
positive image of the industry as well as the Company, and respond to the needs of the
communities, extend many contents related to local urban culture, humanities, history and
arts, and become a platform for cultural exchange and sharing in radiation communities
and even regions. We have done our best to give back to the society. At the same time, the
Company also encourages employees to participate into charitable activities. Our
cooperative partners include community groups, charity organizations, government

agencies and other stakeholders.

FEFEFEHEARBUNA G, FUBEEXUERESOEELABRETLRMNEE
XANEE, —BEXBEBHE, RMBEREER, TRNSEEGHRBRITEREQFIE
BRRNEEERD, BRMETARNIEER, EHEBEEMINH XK AXXELZERE
FNEZNE, AABENHENDEEHENXURAMNOZTE, EHPRENRBEEMNE
BHHE, AN, ZMBEI2HEEQATEY. SFEUSESQARMENTERRE. &
EERE. BUTBPIREIEMEHE,

5.1 Promoting the Interactive Communication of
Community Culture

B EX L EBEE 118

5.2 Focusing on Targeted Poverty Alleviation and
Improving the Quality of Poverty Elimination
REBERBTRARERE 121
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5.1 Promoting the Interactive
Communication of Community

Culture
Bh 11t [&E X 1k B B {5 HE

With reliance on the reality, the Group explores the characteristics, integrates the philosophy of "culture +" into various
community affairs, takes advantage of the project style, adheres to the needs of the public, and carries out a variety of cultural
activities, which greatly enriches the cultural life of the community residents, through creating a good artistic atmosphere in

the community, and promoting the culture to drive community construction.

FREFEILBER, #ERH G, IBTX U BATESELE, RTREED. ZMBERFIR, ARNBSHRHXLES, B
LETHEERNXKERE, EEHERIFNENAE, REXKHEHTERER.

Case Shantou Longhu District Library Bay Center Branch officially opened

£ I SRRE A [E F R 158 0 ) BB IE TUBM R

On 18 November 2020, the opening ceremony of Shantou
Longhu District Library Bay Center Branch was held. The
branch is located on the second floor of Shantou Bay Center.
In the first phase, more than 600 books were introduced to
citizens for borrowing at no cost.
RIZ2ZEF+—A+/\H, LEEAEEBEEEEEXKH
DD EBMRENET, DEUNLUESEXHHLTIE, §
HASI 6008 MEIZ M ™ R R E&ERMRIER,

Guangxi Division Nanning preliminary contest of the 2020 BOYA Piano Art Festival successfully ended
in Nanning Project Marketing Center

2020 BOYASHE EW N ERE R EY BITREHEERRE

Case

ES]|

From 8 August to 30 August 2020, Guangxi Division Nanning
preliminary contest of the 2020 BOYA Piano Art Festival was
jointly held by Nanning Company and Boya Piano Company in

Nanning Project Marketing Center. The competition lasted
nearly one month, with a total participants of around 920
young players. This activity was a real practicing experience for
contributing to the beauty of community artistic life.

A ZE_EF/\A/\BE=+HHM, HBEEQBHEATE
T FERMN2020 BOYAMIS SN EREEEEVEETS
ZIEETHPOBRARRT, WEERI—ESR, £3E9208R1L
NEFREAR AKREHZITEHEEREEZEZN—R
BT,



Case

eyl EEATSMMMENE +FREIES

Nanning Company participated in the activity of "Leading Real Estate Power for Ten Years"

On 1 November 2020, the Wuxiang New District relay run of
"Leading Real Estate Power for Ten Years" was jointly held by
Nanning Evening News and Guangxi Radio and Television
FMO950 in Wuxianghu, representing the contribution of the
real estate industry in creating a new image of Nanning City,
and assuming the role of the "leading runner" to advocate
urban construction and development.
RIEZEF+—HBH—H HEERENEAEEERSE
FMOS0E SR MM Mt E N E +F R AR EEIIES
ERZKMEIT, ARMETHEITEREBHHMLRNAR,
WA UATERmE I AHEE, AR EREERE,

Case

The sailing boat racing of “Sailing for Fun” was held in the New Sports Marine Sports Centre

= RRBFELEE NN BENES SFEHTOET

In 2020, the New Sports Marine Sports Centre not only
provided the venue for variety of competition events and
support services for the customers of the sports centre, but
also cooperated with Lavenna Resort Judiao to integrate
water sports into seaside leisure and vacation. By
organising group water sports competition events for
spreading marine culture and sharing sailing fun with
family members, the yachts sailing and its culture were
being popularized.

MEEEEEHPIN S SFRAEFHALERIRE
HEZBLE SN ZERBIN, B SEHIDEERE,
HEFESMNEEREER, UEEEFEXh. BX
AHBMEBLEAENMNBEREMEES EEHEER
TRARE SN 1L,

During the National Day, the Group staged a wonderful celebration of projects in many locations

Case
2= } BEMR A LR S MIEEBETEEER L8

During the National Day, the celebration activities of various
projects of the Group were staged in turn. Shantou
Company invited famous Chaoshan comedians for a
performance show and held a grand garden party to inherit
the regional cultural characteristics.

BB, AEERMIBEEERESRE L&,
AR R BB EE AL B K ERIHRE, WEIT T RABEE
BIEE, FAMIE X G,
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Case “ACCA Hong Kong Community Day” Online Event
2= ACCAEBRmMEHG LIED

On 21 December 2020, the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants Hong Kong held the “ACCA Community Day”
2020-online rickshaw competition, aiming to raise funds for charitable organizations helping the disadvantaged groups. The
Company actively urged its employees to participate in the event and closely connected with each other through this
innovative charity activity. Besides sharing the common happiness from the participation into such charitable event, the power

of charity and love were being conveyed and advocated to the general public.

RIBZRF+-AZ+—H,ACCAUFHFAREHINAE) EENEFET T TACCARGMER12020— W EANELILLE, &
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5.2 Focusing on Targeted Poverty
Alleviation and Improving the

Quality of Poverty Elimination
REREFELRAKRERST

The Group has continued to exert its strength in the fight against poverty. Taking the headquarters as the axis, the Group has
carried out poverty alleviation activities in many regions of the country. Four poverty alleviation modes, namely Party building
poverty alleviation, education poverty alleviation, employment poverty alleviation and consumption poverty alleviation have
been established with which the precise strategy to maximize the power of enterprises and communities in the precise poverty
alleviation is being upheld. During the Reporting Period, the Group made charitable and other donations amounting to
approximately HK$140,000.

REBERERRBRFEER D, RS A0, MeESERNENHRBKELE R TZRKE BB KA MEKEH
BHREMAKEEN, REBESR, RAREMBELIR HEEREXKETHNBRANE, FREHN, FERFHEERH
458G % 8149140,0007 7T0

Case 7.8 Insurance Poverty Alleviation Hiking and cultural creative activities

=00 ([ T.8BIKARSTRAICED

On 4 July 2020, the "7.8 Insurance Poverty Alleviation Hiking" and cultural creation activities were launched in Shantou Times
Bay Cultural Centre. The event was jointly hosted by Banking and Insurance Regulatory Bureau of Shantou and the Insurance
Industry Association. The event was officially launched, where people of various associations and institutions walked along the
Eastern Coast Avenue for voluntarily participating in such public welfare activities. The Group has always adhered to the
corporate mission of "developing industry and repaying society", actively participated in public welfare activities, and further

demonstrated its sense of responsibility of being grateful to society, serving society and giving back to the society.
RIEZZFELANH, M7.8RBHXBRES 171 BRI OB TSR 028 S ORI ED - BB BUWEESR IR ES 59 1B A AR B

TEBEHES EM B ELXMD), SHERKBASNBREBFRERES T, BEBRBEQTEH, WERATHBERBRT
BEREX. MRHEINEREH, BESEQTEY, E—FPREREHE. RBEHLE. LELENELER.
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Shantou Company won the Contribution Award for Targeted Poverty Alleviation and
Rural Revitalization in the 10th anniversary of "Guangdong Poverty Alleviation Day"

WBEABRREBERFEERE ES T AFFEK AN IRE S /ME

Case
ESY]|

On 30 June 2020, Shantou held the 2020 Guangdong Poverty Alleviation Day and the 10th anniversary summary meeting of
"6:30". Shantou Company has participated in Shantou City's poverty alleviation activities for many years. In the event,
Shantou Company won the Contribution Award for Targeted Poverty Alleviation and Rural Revitalization in the 10th

anniversary of "Guangdong Poverty Alleviation Day" presented by Shantou municipal government.

RISZSEAA=ZHH, LIETET S SEERRKREBTEAENE 6 30 HAEREARY, LWEATEESEHN
WETRE T EBH, WEARRELETBE TN ERKBERE I+ B ERHER BN IRE S,

C Nanning Company won the title of "Advanced Unit for Promoting Poverty Alleviation" in
;;Je Liangqging Town of Nanning
—_— MEATRERERER B RB R e B TE5R

On 18 September 2020, Nanning Company participated in the donation ceremony of "Poverty Alleviation Day" and "Decisive
Battle to Win Poverty Alleviation, | am on action!" organized by the Party Committee and government of Liangging Town,
Nanning City, to promote the activities of poverty alleviation in Liangging town. In the event, Nanning Company was awarded
the honorary title of "Advanced Unit for Promoting Poverty Alleviation" in Liangging town.

AZEZEENAT/\B, BEARNSNHEETREHEEES BFESNREE_S_SEHEH I BIRERBRER
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Appendix ik

Content Index #EiZE&351%

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and Key Performance Indicators

TEER EE. —RIFERFARENIEE

A.Environmental EiF

Aspect A1:
Emissions

JEmEAL:
HEmn

General Disclosure

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

—RIRE
BHERNMEEREHR. ARt NS BEREEEEYNEESN:
(a) B ; &

(b)EFH BT ABEARFENERER LR

H&EN,

Note: Air emissions include NOx, SOx, and other pollutants regulated under national laws and regulations.

Greenhouse gases include carbon dioxide, methane, nitrous oxide, hydrofluorocarbons, perfluorocarbons and
sulphur hexafluoride.

Hazardous wastes are those defined by national regulations.

2 BRENeEAaKY. RatyhEMZEIERRRGIRENSEY.
BERBEE_SNK Bl SRR QRRLEY. 2RERRARLHR.
BEEEMEAXRGIFARES.

Corresponding Chapter
TEHFEE

Harmonious Coexistence of
Human and Environment

ANEIRIFHMEH R

Harmonious Coexistence of

KPI'A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Human and Environment

R BT A R B — Key Performance Indicators

$EHEALL i ° A BRI 5 LR
—RASRAENIEIR

KPI A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity Harmonious Coexistence of

RREN (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility). Human and Environment

$E1ZAL2

BERBEHRE (LB ) RER) BE (WU SEBE M. SERMHH).

— Key Performance Indicators

AEIRIFH M EH R
—RAREIER

KPIA1.3

RASRAARN
$EIRAL3

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

FREEAEEREMMAE UEE) & ER) ZE (WUSESSE . BHRE

As relevant disclosure has no
significance in relation to the
Group's business operation, we
did not produce specific report on
this matter

B0 B RN R A M B
BREEKRMR, BRI SR
HEEEHERS
KPI'A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, Harmonious Coexistence of
RIsRERY intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility). Human and Environment
BIRALS | e e (ORHE) R (B B (NS ERRM ST | oo e
‘ﬁ%)o,m% RBe A5 &EM) ZE (30 2B, B N BRIB A R
— R RERIEIR
2.1 Green Construction
KPIA1.5 | Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved. 2.1 EEE
PR | ph R R R B R S AR

FEIRALS

2.2 Green Operation
2.2 EEY

KPI'A1.6

RS
$EIRAL6

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, reduction
initiatives and results achieved.

BREEEENBEEERYNS A HREEBHNEENFTSHR.

2.1 Green Construction
21 BEE

2.2 Green Operation
225 EEE
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Aspect A2: General Disclosure Harmonious Coexistence of
Use of Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw materials. Human and Environment
Resources Note: Resources may be used in production, in storage, transportation, in buildings, electronic o gz iy
equipment, etc. ASURRBIREI R
FEmEA2: — R E
EIRfFEA BERERER (BIERR K REMEMR) B,
2 ARARLEE HEER.BF. EFRES
KPl A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.qg. electricity, gas or oil) in Harmonious Coexistence of
R total (kWh in '000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per Human and Environment
#Q*ﬁfz 1 facility). - Key Performance Indicators
B .
NSRRI AR SRR
BBV ONERER, IEEER (NE./I0h) @2 UTETREHE) & — RRAE e E
TEMUSESEN. 8EREFHE).
KPI'A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per Harmonious Coexistence of
RASRAER facility). Human and Environment
BIRAL2 | kB REmE LS EBEN. SEREHE). - Key Performance Indicators
NI HOR SRR
— AR AEREIR
KPI' A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved. 2.2 Green Operation
MASH | mteREmmEBRAERR, 2288 EE
SR 2.3 Eco-friendly Workplace
23 RIBRFAES
KPIA2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose, 2.3 Eco-friendly Workplace
Eﬁﬁgﬁ;ﬁ water efficiency initiatives and results achieved. 2.3 R A AP A IS
s IR SREVE AR E R BB, URIEF B @ st 8 RS AR,
) ) As relevant disclosure has no
KPI'A2.5 | Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, significance in relation to the
RAsRERY with reference to per unit produced. Group’s business operation, we
288D 5 did not produce specific report on
R Sk @FT A EEMEIGAE UM E) & ER) 8 EEEE. this matter
AR A F RS (E
REERRR, BRI ER
IEEEEHERS
Aspect A3: General Disclosure Harmonious quxistence of
The Policies on minimising the issuer's significant impacts on the environment and natural resources. Human and Environment
. NIRRT E R
Environment
and Natural —RIKE
Resources WRET ABRIBERR AT REMEAR EZNEBE,
[EEA3:
RIE & KPl A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and Harmonious Coexistence of
KREE BRI natural resources and the actions taken to manage them. Human and Environment
7N VaN W i

BIRASL | mrsmEmsEE R R AT RN EAY SR DR EEEHY 2058,

NEIRIBRMEHE




B. Social #t&

Employment and Labour Practices {&f# &% TE#R

Aspect B1: General Disclosure 4.1 Employees' Rights
Employment Information on: 4.1 BT
(a) the policies; and
EmEBI1: (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
(=4 relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare
—RIRE
ERAF I R e B RSB TR R TERE. Sl RERUREMEE R AT
(a)BUE; &%
(b)ETFHETABTEALENEERRRG
KPIB1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and geographical Diversifying Career
BASRAER region. Development Platform
 fmm — Empl ' Break
BIRBLL | g (ROBERL ERARIRIE RIS B R AR, Employees' Breakdown
SEHMERRTE
—BTI#mR
Diversifying C
KPIB1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region. Dglferf(l)gggm aPrI:f;orm
AR | mien. SRR R BN O R AR, - Employees' Breakdown
H1=B1. SEBERRTR
— BT
Aspect B2: General Disclosure 4.1 Employees' Rights
Health and Information on: 4.1 BTHES
Safety (a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
fEEB2: relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees from occupational
REHERS hazards.
—fRiREE
BRRHZ2TERENREREEREELREN:
(a) Bk ; &
(b)EFHETABEATENERERRFG
K&,
KPI'B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities. 4.1 Employees' Rights
RASREN A LERAARMIET AR ELE, 41 8T #H
1E1EB2.1
KPIB2.2 Lost days due to work injury. 4.1 Employees' Rights
;ﬁgiggﬁ;% AT EETIFAH. 4 18T
KPIB2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, and how they 4.1 Employees' Rights
RsRAERY are implemented and monitored. 4.1 8THES
&t .
IRB23 | Rt R B R R 2 I, LURABRIBT RS Z A5k
Aspect B3: General Disclosure 4.2 Employees' Development
Development Policies on improving employees' knowledge and skills for discharging duties at work. 40 ETHE
o Description of training activities. : b
and Trammg Note: Training refers to vocational training. It may include internal and external courses paid by
BEB3: the employer.
x N —RIRE
BERRIE

BRRAEEEITIERENANBRKENEE, BREIES.
5 RIS, T AR R E I BRI PINRZ,

KPI'B3.1

RS
$E18B3.1

The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category (e.g.
senior management, middle management).

U R EEEL WHEEEE. PREEES BONZIMRET D,

4.2 Employees' Development

42BTHRE

KPI B3.2

RASRARRN
$E1%B3.2

The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee
category.

BRI R EEEHNE D, BB RETHRZ I TIIRFH.

4.2 Employees' Development

42BTERE
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Aspect B4:
Labour
Standards
JEEBA4:
& T#ER|

General Disclosure

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labour.

4.1 Employees' Rights
41 8T

—RIKE

BRAR L E T 338555 TH:

(a) B ; R

(b)BFHBITABEARLENAERMERRRG

&K,

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and 4.1 Employees' Rights
R4 forced labour. 4.1 BTHER

181RB4.1 AR BRI H AEHE LB S B T R RIS T,

KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered.
RABAEY RS IE RGN E I RE B RPN S ..

$51%B4.2

4.1 Employees' Rights
41 8T

Operating Practices &5&/&%

Aspect B5: General Disclosure 3.3 Cooperating with Partners
Supply Chain Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain. 33EFSESMY
Management | —#%E
BEMEENIRIENRT SRS o
EBEBS: BIRHAERAVIRIE Rt & RIRER
HAEEEIE
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. 3.3 Cooperating with Partners
PSR Y BMER S BHERHE. 33MFEIEBH
$51%EB5.1
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers 3.3 Cooperating with Partners
spiE where the practices are being implemented, and how they are implemented and & "
Eg;ﬁ; monitored. IIWFEEBMH
HAEREAMRERNEG, nENITEMEGNEEREE, URBRMIBHNHR
TRERTZE.
Aspect B6: General Disclosure 3.4 Offering High-quality
Product Information on: Services
Responsibility (a) the policies; and 3412 REIRE
. (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
JEEBG: relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products and
EmET services provided and methods of redress.

— ARk EE

BRFMRHERMBRBNRRAZ 2 BS RENIAESE URERTTERN:

(a) Bk |

(b)EFHETABEATENERERREG

&K,

KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and 3.4 Offering High-quality
R health reasons. Services

181EB6.1 34 RMERERS

EEREEREMERTETRERERMARKNE DL,

Number of products and service related complaints received and how they are
dealt with.

RN ERRRBNRFHRE UAREHES .

KPI'B6.2

RASRARSN
$51%B6.2

3.4 Offering High-quality
Services
34 RMERERS




KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual property 3.4 Offering High-quality
RARAEN rights. Services

1BIRB6.3 | ke RRIS A A S RIROIR 3.4RMEmERY

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. 3.4 Offering High-quality
RAEN HEREERTBREREMBKRER. Services

$51%B6.4 3.4 RS mE R

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they are 3.4 Offering High-quality
RS 43K implemented and monitored. Services

IRIRBE.S | pAN P E ERMRIE R AAREECE, LURARRI T R BB 3.4 RS RE R

Aspect B7: General Disclosure 1.2 Corporate Governance
Anti- Information on: 120%sn
corruption (a) the policies; and
. (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
@E?j . relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
k&S — RS
BRI L FERR  BhER EREE R R EEAY
(a)BER; &
(b)ETFHETABTEALENEMERERRL
&KL
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the 1.2 Corporate Governance
RA SR 4B issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the outcomes of the 12 0%ER
?5*35'1'37 1 cases. ’ =
B1x .
RERANBETASERESRIT EEENESHRANRMENEE RFNER.
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, how they 1.2 Corporate Governance
RA SR AR are implemented and monitored. 10 pEn
IBIRBT.2 | HRBEARRRIZR, LURERRITRERTT .
Community #t[&
Aspect B8: General Disclosure Contributing to Charity
p
Communit Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the communities where the NERELT BRI
y
Investment issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into consideration the communities' interests.
BEBS: —RIKE
;E':tné BN E2ERTREEMEIHEFTENRGEER EDH LT RULBRFIZEMBEEK.
oo 157

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns, labour
needs, health, culture, sport).

HEERMEE (WA REFE. HTHERBR.XL.EF) .

KPI'B8.1

RS
$E15B8.1

5.1 Promoting the Interactive
Communication of Community
Culture

5.1 YAt EX L E S EE
5.2 Focusing on Targeted Poverty

Alleviation and Improving the
Quality of Poverty Elimination

5.2 RERMERBENRARERE

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area.
BASRAERL EEIHEAMBAER NEBRER) .

$515B8.2

5.1 Promoting the Interactive
Communication of Community
Culture

5.1 Bt EX W EBERE
5.2 Focusing on Targeted Poverty

Alleviation and Improving the
Quality of Poverty Elimination

S2REREHRANREARERE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

IBDO

EEE ¢ +852 2218 8288
{HE : +852 2815 2239

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

38 M % B R

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

HATHER11158
FkZHI2518

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF GLORY SUN LAND GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Glory Sun Land
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”)
set out on pages 138 to 286, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2020,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Valuation of investment properties
Refer to note 4(g), 5 and 21 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group’s investment properties located in the People’s Republic of China
(“the PRC”) and were stated at fair value of approximately HK$6,034,541,000
as at 31 December 2020.

Management has engaged independent professional valuer (the “IP
Management’s Expert”) to assist the management in performing the valuation
of the Group’s investment properties at the end of the reporting period.
Valuations of the Group’s investment properties are dependent on certain key
input and assumptions that require significant management judgement. The
valuation was inherently subjective due to the significant estimates used and
significant changes in these estimates could result in material changes to the
valuation of the properties.

Qur response:
Our key procedures in relation to the valuation of investment properties
included:

- Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation methodologies and the
reasonableness of the key assumptions used in the valuation of the fair
value of the investment properties;

- Evaluating the appropriateness of key input data used in the valuation
of the fair value of the investment properties;

- Involving an auditor’s expert to assist us in evaluating the
appropriateness of the valuation methodologies and the reasonableness
of the key assumptions used in the valuation of the fair value of the
investment properties; and

- Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the IP
Management’s Expert and auditor’s expert.

Glory Sun Land Group Limited Annual Report 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Key audit matters (Continued)

Impairment assessment of other intangible assets (other than

goodwill)
Refer to notes 4(h), 5 and 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group had other intangible assets with carrying amount of approximately
HK$101,348,000 after impairment losses as at 31 December 2020. For the
year ended 31 December 2020, the impairment losses recognised in respect
of the other intangible assets were approximately HK$419,802,000.

For the purpose of impairment testing, other intangible assets are allocated
to its respective cash-generating units (“CGUs”). Those CGUs are tested for
impairment when impairment indicators existed at the end of reporting period.

Management has engaged an independent professional valuer (the “IA
Management’s Expert”) in assisting the assessment of the recoverable
amounts of these CGUs. In carrying out the impairment test, significant
management judgement was used to determine the underlying key
assumptions.

Qur response:
Our key procedures in relation to the management’s impairment assessment
of other intangible assets included:

- Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation methodology in respect
of the assessment of the recoverable amounts;

- Assessing the reasonableness of the underlying key assumptions used;

- Evaluating the appropriateness of key input data used in the assessment
of the recoverable amounts;

- Involving an auditor’s expert to assist our evaluation on the
appropriateness of the valuation methodology and reasonableness of
key assumptions; and

- Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the IA
Management’s Expert and auditor’s expert.

38 M % B R
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Key audit matters (Continued)

Assessment of net realisable value of inventories of properties
under development and properties held for sales
Refer to note 4(l), 5 and 27 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group had inventories of approximately HK$10,875,059,000 located
in the PRC as at 31 December 2020 in relation to the properties under
development and properties held for sales (hereinafter collectively referred to
as the “Property Inventories”) under the real estate and property investment
segment. For the year ended 31 December 2020, the write-down of Property
Inventories recognised was approximately HK$121,729,000 in relation to the
real estate and property investment segment.

Inventories are stated at the lower of their costs and their net realisable values.
The determination of net realisable value involves significant management
judgements and is dependent upon the management’s assessment of
estimated selling prices of these inventories, estimated costs to completion
and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Qur response:
Our key procedures in relation to the management’s assessment of net
realisable value of the Property Inventories included:

- Assessing the appropriateness of the basis of the determination of net
realisable values of properties under development and properties held
for sale, and evaluating the reasonableness of the key assumptions used
by management;

- Assessing the reasonableness of the Group’s estimated selling prices,
by comparing them to, the recently transacted prices and prices of
comparable properties on sample basis; and

- Assessing, on sample basis, the reasonableness of construction costs
to be incurred to complete the properties under development estimated
by management, based on underlying documentation such as budgets
of development project costs and existing construction contracts.

Glory Sun Land Group Limited Annual Report 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Key audit matters (Continued)

Impairment assessment of trade receivables and contract
assets
Refer to notes 4(j), 5, 28 and 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had trade receivables and contract
assets with carrying amounts of approximately HK$112,471,000 and
HK$33,293,000 respectively after loss allowance for expected credit losses
(“ECL") of approximately HK$782,000 and HK$3,963,000 respectively.

Management performed assessment with the assistance of independent
professional valuer (the “ECL Management’s Expert”) on the recoverability
of the trade receivables and contract assets and the sufficiency of loss
allowance for ECL. The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables
and contract assets based on lifetime ECL. In carrying out impairment
assessment of trade receivables and contract assets under the ECL model,
significant management judgement was used to determine the underlying
estimations.

Qur response:
Our key procedures in relation to the management’s impairment assessment
of trade receivables and contract assets included:

- Assessing whether trade receivables and contract assets had been
appropriately grouped by management based on their shared credit
risk characteristics;

- Assessing the appropriateness of the key input data used by
management and the ECL Management’s Expert to develop the
historical loss rates and assessing the reliability and relevance of that
data;

- Involving an auditor’'s expert to assist our assessment on the
appropriateness of methodology in determining the historical loss rates;

- Testing the calculation of ECL provisions applying the ECL rates to
the respective categories of the trade receivables and contract assets
outstanding at the reporting date; and

- Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the ECL
Management’s Expert and auditor’s expert.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

38 M % B R S

Other information in the annual report

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does
not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Directors’ responsibilities for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial

reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging
their responsibility in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

° obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

° evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBENRE

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZHENRE

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those WHREBZBEBNEET  SEBRTEYUARHGAH
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial ~ #S¥REREZ K AEEMNEE - AMIEKEEHEE
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. 1% E1E - EEEZHAIREh ML EE - B
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation — FEEBAR A AT AW EELEE - &
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare  FREMBERT @ & EFEHESTSENRE Fiea
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in ~ FEZIEER N B EE RBBEANDARAZE - 8
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably B ZERE N EERERIRMZEE -

be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited BRI GEREHMEEMERATE
Certified Public Accountants HESIED

Lo Ngai Hang ERHE

Practising Certificate Number P04743 HMEFEERFRPO4ATA3

Hong Kong, 22 March 2021 BB —E-—F=A=+=H
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GEeEERkEMEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

2020 2019
—EC-EF —E-NF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
PEE FExT FAT
Continuing operations HEREER
Revenue EERE 9 6,785,385 9,767,512
Cost of sales SHE A (6,754,188) (8,022,911)
Gross profit EF 31,197 1,744,601
Selling expenses SHERX (94,402) (47,912)
Administrative expenses TERAX (122,095) (107,614)
Gain on bargain purchase HERE RS - 31,485
Fair value loss on investment properties WEMEN QT ERE 21 (52,297) (22,338)
Fair value loss on contingent consideration ~ fEM AR EBE AT EEIE
payable - (605)
Fair value gain on derivative financial assets  $74 & BYEEM A FEUKE 18,291 10,615
Impairment losses on goodwill EEREEE 22 (18,566) (177,347)
Impairment losses on other intangible assets H i #Ef& &REE 18 23 (419,802) (138,873)
Impairment losses on property, M - WE kBRI EEE
plant and equipment 20 (34,687) (54,611)
Impairment losses on financial and SRR ENEERBEEIE—F8
contract assets — net (83,765) (45,664)
Other income, gains/(losses) — net Huplg A~ Uezs/(B518) —F58 10 85,733 40,786
(Loss)/profit from operations K (BE) wR (690,393) 1,232,523
Finance costs BLE AR 11 (120,484) (231,783)
(Loss)/profit before income tax MRETSBIAT (E18) %R 13 (810,877) 1,000,740
Income tax credit/(expense) FrisFiile,(F) 12 20,255 (532,545)
(Loss)/profit for the year from continuing REFESEEBNEAEE(FE),
operations &= F (790,622) 468,195
Discontinued operation BRIEREER
Profit for the year from discontinued REDR I EEE AT E R
operation 17 = 30,830
(Loss)/profit for the year KEE(FHR),=F (790,622) 499,025

Glory Sun Land Group Limited Annual Report 2020



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

= AN
i 3

S R HMERE WG R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

2020 2019
—E-EHF ZT—hF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
P sE FExT FAT
Other comprehensive income, net of tax B ZEM2EkzE
Item that will not be reclassified to TUHEHF S EEE=HEE -
profit or loss:
Fair value changes of equity instruments BRATFERBEMEEREYR
at fair value through other ([EAFEEBEMMEEKET
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) R ZBATANAFEES) (32,822) (131,299
(32,822) (131,299)
Items that may be reclassified HBETEN 7 EZRmHEE -
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translating HMEFINETSHE H =7
foreign operations 249,868 (51,668)
Exchange differences reclassified to profit ~ HEWBRARRNEFHEE
or loss on disposal of subsidiaries BERER =5 - 18,514
249,868 (83,154)
Other comprehensive income AEENRBEHEMEEZEKE
for the year, net of tax 217,046 (164,453)
Total comprehensive income for the year ZNEE2EWRZEE (573,576) 334,572
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to: {5 FEE (EiE) %7 :
Owners of the Company VN/NEIES YN
— Continuing operations — BB ER (735,144) 355,020
— Discontinued operation —BRIEEEETS - 30,830
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to KARFEB ANEIERFE
owners of the Company (E18),/ &7 (735,144) 385,850
Non-controlling interests FEPE 1
— Continuing operations — BB EER (55,478) 113,175
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to FEEHIME RSB AREE
non-controlling interests (B18), &7 - (55,478) 113,175
(790,622) 499,025
Total comprehensive income BAERFEREKRARE
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company VIN/NEIES YN (624,980) 198,339
Non-controlling interests FEPE 1R A 51,404 136,233
(573,576) 334,572
(Loss)/earnings per share - basic and SR(ER) B -EXREE
diluted (HK cents) (784L)
— Continuing operations — BB ETE 19 (16.16) 8.19
— Discontinued operation — BRI ET 19 - 0.71
19 (16.16) 8.90
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Se PRI R

As at 31 December 2020 R=FE-—FF+—-H=+—H

2020 2019
—EC-EF —E-NF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
PEE FE T FAT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BE REE 20 159,448 151,626
Investment properties wEME 21 6,034,541 5,377,641
Goodwill Bl 22 - 18,175
Other intangible assets HitmpEaE 23 101,348 547,465
Financial assets at FVTOCI BAESEBE M ERES R
ZEREE 25 7,477 179,893
Derivative financial assets ITHESREE 26 - 13,753
Deferred tax assets BRI EE 35 36,657 28,146
6,339,471 6,316,699
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 27 10,875,059 7,894,958
Contract assets AREE 28 33,293 214,201
Derivative financial assets PTHETHEE 26 32,044 -
Trade and other receivables B 5 R EAMEYWRIE 29 5,002,498 4,269,533
Tax recoverable BEEEE 30,616 20,260
Pledged and restricted bank deposits IR R RHIRITIFR 30 618,133 825,802
Bank and cash balances IRIT RN ER 30 735,501 634,120
17,327,144 13,858,874
Current liabilities ik =R
Borrowings EEN 31 5,420,474 4,544,953
Trade and other payables B 5 hEAMmEAFRIE 32 4,058,138 4,614,160
Consideration payable JERRAE 34 589 300,620
Contract liabilities AHEE 28 1,923,928 736,885
Lease liabilities HEBRE 43 6,521 1,744
Financial guarantee B HER 33 = 33,180
Current tax liabilities BNEARRIE A (& 206,553 369,464
11,616,203 10,601,006
Net current assets RBEEFE 5,710,941 3,257,868
Total assets less current liabilities EERERRDER 12,050,412 9,574,567
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
a MR

As at 31 December 2020 R=FE-—FF+=-H=+—H

2020 2019
—g=%F —E-hF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
i FHET FET
Non-current liabilities FREAE
Borrowings &3 31 6,943,190 3,924,642
Consideration payable FERHRE 34 163,747 136,019
Lease liabilities HEBE 43 53,430 28,570
Deferred tax liabilities BRI A E 35 812,689 836,781
7,973,056 4,926,012
NET ASSETS BEERE 4,077,356 4,648,555
Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital (&N 36 227,505 227,505
Reserves 5 38 2,055,344 2,680,293
Equity attributable to owners of the RREIFEE AELERE
Company 2,282,849 2,907,798
Non-controlling interests FEVE I M 1,794,507 1,740,757
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 4,077,356 4,648,555
The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for issue iz =i- Atz ngE RN —E— —F=

by the board of directors on 22 March 2021 and were signed on its behalf.

Zhang Xiaodong
REER

Director

BZ

- RHE R TR A T ERREREE

Xia Lingjie
BEtE
Director

BZ
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

SERABBR

 —

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # %

— ==

Ft+_A=+—HIFrFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ROERRE AR
Share Non-
Share Share  redemption Merger Statutory Other  Shareholder's  Translation FVTOCI  Accumulated controling
capital premium reserve reserve resenve reseve  contribution Teserve reserve losses Total interests Total
EATERS
Hfp2E
HhEE et FABIE
fE ROEE B AMBE  iTRE  EMBRE  RRIE EXRR B 2EE Ea) 33 @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL TERL T TAL FAT TE FER Th FhR TEL TERL TR TAT
At1 January 2019 RZZ-NE-A-B 202978 2,998,022 2,269 - - - 4118 22,839 67,030) (402593 2760603 1,229,159 3989762
Proft for he year RERER - - - - - - - - - %0 3880 13175 499,025
Fair value changes of equity BATEABEM2ENE
instruments at FVTOC! SIEZERTENATE
% - - - - - - - - (131209 - (131,209) - (131209
Exchange diferences on ransiating &SN ERMES £8

foreign operations - - - - - - - (74,726) - - (74,726) 23,058 (51,668)
Exchange difierences recassfed ~ WEHBAARENARE

o proft orloss on disposal of ERMELEE

Subsidliaries - - - - - - - 18,514 - - 18514 - 18,514
Total comprehensive income KEE2EURAE

for the year - - - - - - - (66,212) (131,209 385,850 198,339 136,233 334,572
Financial effect aising fomthe ~ WERXRIZHI B AR

acquisiton of subsilaries under B 7 E1KEE

common control - - - 0w 173 - - 6,989 S N96) (1169584 (138350 (1,307,939
Deemed controution from HENBARMEL 2 RR

shareholder arise from disposal of ~ &fEE

Subsidliaries - - - - - 2,043 - - - - 2,043 360 2,408
Acquisiton of aditional nterest ~ WEBHBATHEMER

ina subsidiary - - - - - 1 - - - - 1 1) -
Deemed partia disposal of BESAHENMBARK

subsidiaries without loss of control  SE5KHERIEE (2040

(note 24 - - - - - 900,067 - - - - 900,067 502,226 1,402,293
Capial contributions fomnon-~~ EAFAER B AE

controling equity holders - - - - - - - - - - - 11,130 11,130
Issue of sheres on setemen of REBRETR

contingent consideration payable

(note 365) 5577 A0 - - - - - - - - B - s
Issue of shares on placement REREARA(E60)

(note 36(a) 18,950 151,600 - - - - - - - - 170,550 - 170,560
Transfer to statutory reserve EATERRRE - - - - 74,086 - - - - (74,086) - - -
Changes in equity for the year AEEERSE 24521 191,802 - (940,026) 91,421 902,111 - 63,195) (181,209 71,848 147,1% 511,598 668,793
At 31 December 2019 RZE-1E

TZh=t-R 221,505 3,189,824 2269 (940,026) 91,421 902,111 4118 (40,356) (198,329) (330,745) 2,907,798 1,740,757 4,648,555
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mERAEBHR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #2 —F - FF+_-H=+—HIFZ

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ANRREREARE
Share Non-
Share Share  redemption Merger  Statutory Other Shareholder's  Translation FVTOCI - Accumulated controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve  contribution reserve reserve losses Total interests Total
RATEER
Af62E
RARE Lé:l FaEHf

Bx  RHEE BE  AHER  EREE  AEEE  BREE  ERRR BE  ZHER &5t it &5t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
T TR TR T Tin Tin Tin Tin T T T T T

At1 January 2020 R-B-%%-A-H 27505 3,189,824 2,269 (940,026) 91,427 902,111 4118 (40,356) (198,329) (330,745 2,907,798 1,740,757 4,648,555
Loss for the year TEEER - - - - - - - - - (735,144) (735,144) (55,478) (790,622)
Fair value changes of equity ATEEBEMZENE

ingtruments at FVTOC! 5

29 - - - - - - - - (32,822) - (32,822 - (32822

Exchange differences on translafing hslE R

foreign operations - - - - - - - 142,986 - - 142,986 106,882 249,868
Total comprehensive income ~ AEE2HNHAE

for the year - - - - - - - 142,986 (2822 (735,144)  (624,980) 51,404 (573,576)
Deemed controution from WEHEL

shareholder arise from acquisiion f’ﬁﬁx?, i

of a subsidiary (note 40(a)()) - - - - - - 3 - - - 3 - 3
Capital contributions from non-

controling equity holders - - - - - - - - - - - 2,346 2,346

Transfer of loss on disposal of
equity instruments at FVTOCI to

accumulated losses - - - - - - - - 217,312 (217,312 - - -

Transfer to statutory reserve ;‘21‘*2 mﬂ% - - - - 5,006 - - - - (5,006) - - -
Changes in equity for theyear ~ AEEEHET - - - - 5,006 - 3 142,986 184490  (957,462)  (624,949) 53750 (571,199
At 31 December 2020 RZBZEBE

TZR=t-R 201505 3,189,824 2,269 (940,026) 96,443 902,111 4,149 102,630 (13839)  (1,288207) 2,282,849 1794507 4,077,356
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n\l-\éIEr ﬁﬁ%%

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

2020 2019
—EC-EF —E-NF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
PEE FExT FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM RETHRERE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETSTLAT(E51E) 5
— Continuing operations — B EREER (810,877) 1,000,740
— Discontinued operations —BRIEEEER = 30,830
(810,877) 1,031,570
Adjustments for: AT EIERE -
Interest income FLEMA 10 (30,241) (14,046)
Dividend income A& B A 10 (9,100) (5,370)
Finance costs A AR 11 120,484 231,783
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENB A RRRE 40(c) - (41,411)
Gain on bargain purchase EEREE WS 40(a) - (31,485)
Amortisation of other intangible assets Bt 8 B 23 36,875 46,015
Depreciation e 20 22,833 23,802
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BELRENEIE
plant and equipment 13 123 2
Fair value loss on investment properties & MES A TEEHE 21 52,297 22,338
Fair value loss on contingent ER AR BN AT EBIE
consideration payable - 605
Fair value gain on derivative PTEEBEEN N THERE
financial assets (18,291) (10,615)
Gain from derecognition of financial R FIERI ISR A DR S
guarantee contract 10 (33,419) (27,348)
Impairment losses on goodwill EEREREE 22 18,566 177,347
Impairment losses on other HEtEmpEERERE
intangible assets 23 419,802 138,873
Impairment losses on property, W - BB RERERESE
plant and equipment 20 34,687 54,611
Impairment losses on financial and eRMREHEERERE—FE
contract assets — net 83,765 45,664
Write-down of inventories ERE IV 13 136,826 -
Operating profit before working BIEESEEAI LR
capital changes 24,330 1,642,335
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 M E h FEURGRIBIE AN (508,896) (760,690)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEUEM), SEd (1,970,760) 927,865
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilites & £ & &0, G ) 1,088,653 (3,957,896)
Decrease in trade and other payables Z 5 & EA N FRIER D (579,229) (1,351,287)
Cash used in operations K EENFTREIR® (1,945,902) (3,499,673)
Tax paid [=ERE2E (228,654) (65,014)
Interest received = EIPS) 30,241 14,046
Net cash used in operating activities KRB FTREIR €55 (2,144,315) (3,550,641)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

2020 2019
—EC-EF —E-NF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
PEE FE T FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM RETHRESFRE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Dividend income of financial RATESBEMEEMEETIRZ
asset at FVTOCI TRIEEZREMA 3,135 5,370
Net cash outflow from disposal of HENBARZIRE R F5E
subsidiaries 40(c) - 4)
Disposal of subsidiaries, HEMBAR  HIREHER®
net of cash disposed - (521)
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash WHEB AR - HIREERES
acquired 40(a) 2,937 (56,700)
Acquisition of subsidiaries under U B HEHEH TN HMTE AR
common control, net of cash acquired MBREESERES 40(b) - 16,353
Capital contribution by R AR R R AL E
non-controlling equity holders 2,346 1,418,423
Decrease/(increase) in pledged and BRI R ZRRITEIORD
restricted bank deposits (1%0) 207,669 (572,321)
Payment for consideration in relation to FLUBERT B A Rl AR (E
acquisition of subsidiaries (302,691) (10,000)
Purchases of bond receivable BEREWES - (166,950)
Purchases of property, plant and BEWE  BELRE
equipment (27,231) (15,903)
Payment for investment properties SR EYE (307,512) (677,012)
Payment for intangible assets TREEEE (1,720) 2,264
Proceeds from redemption of bond fE [0 R IR E A R FT 1S 5008
receivable 168,150 -
Proceeds from disposal of financial HERATESBEMEE RS
assets at FVTOCI YR H) & B & EFT1S 50E 135,725 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE  BEEBREHNREZRE
plant and equipment 497 72
Proceeds from disposal of HEREYENTSHIIE
investment properties 11,675 -
Net cash used in investing activities WEEBMREE S F8 (107,020) (61,929)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

2020 2019
—EoEE = — N
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
P sE FE T FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM METHRERE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
(Repayment to)/advance from an SEPEH RS 2 (BI8), 85K
non-controlling interest 40(d) (232) 45,519
Advances from related parties RaH 5 2 B 40(d) 29,896 79,772
Borrowings raised g 40(d) 14,572,149 7,772,395
Proceeds from issue of corporate bonds #4417 Bl f& 5 P15 3508 40(d) 879,000 708,000
Proceeds from issue of shares on Bo & B 351 TRR 1D TS 58
placement - 170,550
Repayment of borrowings BEgER 40(d) (10,883,740) (4,855,488)
Repayment of corporate bonds BEQRES 40(d) (1,210,500) -
Repayment of principal portion BEHEaEZ2ASHY
on lease liabilities 40(d) (2,432) (1,961)
Repayment of interest portion BEEHEEBZNEHD
on lease liabilities 40(d) (3,086) (457)
Interest paid B 40(d) (986,392) (369,843)
Net cash generated from BB RS FEE
financing activities 2,394,663 3,548,487
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN ReRBESSEWEM (D) FE
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 143,328 (64,083)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FHOZHEEeRESEEY
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 634,120 758,316
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE ERgH 8
RATE CHANGES (41,947) (60,113)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FERZESRRESEEY -
END OF YEAR, REPRESENTED BY BUTARERTR 735,501 634,120
Bank and cash balances RIT RIS R 735,501 634,120

Glory Sun Land Group Limited Annual Report 2020



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR R R M R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

General information

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability. The address of its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The
address of its principal place of business in Hong Kong is Unit 2602,
26/F., Lippo Centre, Tower One, No. 89 Queensway, Admiralty, Hong
Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The immediate parent of the Company is Hong Kong Bao Xin Asset
Management Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability and the directors of the Company consider its ultimate
holding company is Glory Sun Financial Group Limited (“GSFG”), a
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability and
with its shares listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 24 to the consolidated
financial statements. “The Group” comprises the Company and its
subsidiaries.

Basis of preparation

(@) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRS”), Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
and Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to as the
“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange.

(b) Basis of measurement
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost basis except for investment properties and
certain financial instruments, which are measured at fair values.

—RER

KRR ARHAESRSTMKRINERA
7] - H 3 R ik & Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands o &7
EENTELEWHURNESECER
895 J1E L — BE261E2602 % © AR A]
BN EBEEXSMAR AR ([HAZAT])
FRET -

AARMBERBRARRBAEEEEEES
BRAB(—RREBZMAINARAR) -
BARFEERRERKERARREN £
BEEERAR(EHRER))  —ER
MERSEMARIINERAR - HERMD IR
ZRERE

ARR B RIREERAT - KHBAT
EBEBBMRGA IS WEN T4 - [ 4%
B aEA AR REHE AT -

CEEE

(a) BAHREH
ZEREAY SRR IVIBEE S QA
Ne([BEQFMAE ) BMHEZAT
BEEBUBMEEN(T YRS
R ) - BB EL(BEBSFE
Al RZE(ATHB A BB HR
SRR ) RBEBRRED 2 HERTE
FLAREL o AN - ZELREMIERE
BIEBRAEAS EMRAEE ZEA
WEIE ©

(b) FHEEXE
HAEMBRRERBELRAELET
RE - RN TEREZREDE
KETHBITARI -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

2. Basis of preparation (Continued)

(c) Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“‘HK$”), which is the Company’s
presentation and functional currency.

3. Adoption of HKFRSs

(@) Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs - effective 1
January 2020

The HKICPA has issued a number of new or amended HKFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting period of the

Group:

° Amendments to HKFRS 3, Definition of a Business

° Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8, Definition of Material

° Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9,
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

° Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting

The adoption of the amendments to standards and framework
has no significant impact on the Group’s results and financial
position or any substantial changes in Group’s accounting
policies.

In addition, the Group has early adopted amendments to HKFRS

16 “COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions” ahead of the effective
date and applied the amendments from 1 January 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

3. Adoption of HKFRSs (Continued)

(@

Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs - effective 1
January 2020 (Continued)

Amendment to HKFRS 16, COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions

HKFRS 16 was amended to provide a practical expedient to
lessees in accounting for rent concessions arising as a result
of the COVID-19 pandemic, by including an additional practical
expedient in HKFRS 16 that permits entities to elect not to
account for rent concessions as modifications. The practical
expedient applies only to rent concessions occurring as a direct
consequence of COVID-19 pandemic and only if all of the
following criteria are satisfied:

(@ the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the same as,
or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately
preceding the change;

(b)  the reduction in lease payments affects only payments

originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and

(c) there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

3. RHABFEBMBREEN @
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BRANETE] RIS T B BB SR
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B4 (&)

BB IR E2ERE 165952 (25T
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

3. Adoption of HKFRSs (Continued)

(@

Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs - effective 1
January 2020 (Continued)

Amendment to HKFRS 16, COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions (Continued)

Rent concessions that satisfy these criteria may be accounted
for in accordance with this practical expedient, which means the
lessee does not need to assess whether the rent concession
meets the definition of lease modification. Lessees shall apply
other requirements of HKFRS 16 in accounting for the rent
concession.

Accounting for rent concessions as lease modifications would
have resulted in the Group remeasuring the lease liability to
reflect the revised consideration using a revised discount rate,
with the effect of the change in the lease liability recorded against
the right-of-use asset. By applying the practical expedient, the
Group is not required to determine a revised discount rate and
the effect of the change in the lease liability is reflected in profit or
loss in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the
rent concession occurs.

The Group has early adopted the amendment ahead of its
effective date and applied the amendment from 1 January 2020.
The adoption of this amendment does not have a material impact
to the Group’s results and financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

3. Adoption of HKFRSSs (Continued) 3. EMEBMBEHREEDN @

(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued (b) EEMEEKRERZHFITRE
but are not yet effective CHEEE ]
The following new or amended HKFRSs, potentially relevant to VAR B 7N 52 [ B 5 3R 3% ] B AR RS 2 3
R BAEET BB M IS RS 2R B M
EEARAER - BIAREAREEIRATHE
W AEEE Eﬁﬁﬁ%%%ﬁ@jiﬂ

the Group’s financial statements, have been issued, but are not
yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Group. The
Group’s current intention is to apply these changes on the date

they become effective. 2 AERAZEE
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as BAESIEN  BEMRENIERE
Current or Non-current F15H2 DR
CHEN
Amendments to HK Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial éf%%%“MS?F RN ZF]—1ER
(2020) Statements - Classification by (ZZZFF) AHBEREREN
the Borrower of a Term Loan pACHIEN BREEIERD
that Contains a Repayment on e
Demand Clause*
Amendments to HKAS 16 Proceeds before Intended Use? AR (ERTERERNAG
F16552 HIE?
EHEN
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of AL BREAN-ETEHNN
Fulfiling a Contract? FI7H 2 P AR
CHIEN
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts® AR B®mE  RReK
AR 75
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual EEBBHmE  HHSREnRERe
Framework® ZERIE3R
pACHIEN
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets BAEVKRE REFEEBENAN
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its ZERIZE10%% EEPEIENEE
Associate or Joint Venture® & HESFE®

Amendments to HKAS 39,
HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 16

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 cycle?

R %285
pACHEN
BAGFER
395K - BB
B TSRS 2R
F45E - BB
B TSR 2
B BB
B TR SR
FOHRRERE
B TSRS
16552
EHEN
E-N\FE-Z-TFERYEEHH
REER R FE

FIREENE — HoH

EHBEMEBARLR 2020F K




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

3. Adoption of HKFRSs (Continued)

(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued

but are not yet effective (Continued)
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

8 Effective for business combinations for which the date of
acquisition is on or after the beginning of the first annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

5 The amendments shall be applied prospectively to the sale or
contribution of assets occurring in annual periods beginning on or
after a date to be determined.

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and HK Interpretation 5 (2020),
Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by the
Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause

The amendments clarify that the classification of liabilities as
current or non-current is based on rights that are in existence
at the end of the reporting period, specify that classification is
unaffected by expectations about whether an entity will exercise
its right to defer settlement of a liability and explain that rights
are in existence if covenants are complied with at the end of the
reporting period. The amendments also introduce a definition of
‘settlement’ to make clear that settlement refers to the transfer
to the counterparty of cash, equity instruments, other assets or
services.

HK Int 5 (2020) was revised as a consequence of the
Amendments to HKAS 1 issued in August 2020. The revision to
HK Int 5 (2020) updates the wordings in the interpretation to align
with the Amendments to HKAS 1 with no change in conclusion
and do not change the existing requirements.

Amendments to HKAS 16, Proceeds before Intended Use

The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment any proceeds from selling items
produced while bringing that asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management. Instead, the proceeds from selling
such items, and the cost of producing those items, is recognised
in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

3. Adoption of HKFRSs (Continued)

(b)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that the ‘cost of fulfilling’” a contract
comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs
that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs
of fulfiling that contract (e.g. direct labour and materials) or an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts
(e.g. the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of
property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract).

HKFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts

The new standard establishes the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of insurance
contracts and supersedes HKFRS 4, Insurance Contracts.
The standard outlines a ‘General Model’, which is modified for
insurance contracts with direct participation features, described
as the ‘Variable Fee Approach’. The General Model is simplified
if certain criteria are met by measuring the liability for remaining
coverage using the Premium Allocation Approach.

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

The amendments update HKFRS 3 so that it refers to the revised
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 instead of
the version issued in 2010. The amendments add to HKFRS 3 a
requirement that, for obligations within the scope of HKAS 37, an
acquirer applies HKAS 37 to determine whether at the acquisition
date a present obligation exists as a result of past events. For a
levy that would be within the scope of HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies,
the acquirer applies HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 to determine whether the
obligating event that gives rise to a liability to pay the levy has
occurred by the acquisition date. The amendments also add an
explicit statement that an acquirer does not recognise contingent
assets acquired in a business combination.
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3. Adoption of HKFRSs (Continued)

(b)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify with situations where there is a sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or
joint venture. When the transaction with an associate or joint
venture that is accounted for using the equity method, any gains
or losses resulting from the loss of control of a subsidiary that
does not contain a business are recognised in the profit or loss
only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in that
associate or joint venture. Similarly, any gains or losses resulting
from the remeasurement of retained interest in any former
subsidiary (that has become an associate or a joint venture) to
fair value are recognised in the profit or loss only to the extent
of the unrelated investors’ interests in the new associate or joint
venture.

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 16, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

The amendments address issues that might affect financial
reporting when a company replaces the old interest rate
benchmark with an alternative benchmark rate as a result of the
interest rate benchmark reform (the “Reform”). The amendments
complement those issued in November 2019 and relate to (a)
changes to contractual cash flows in which an entity will not
have to derecognise or adjust the carrying amount of financial
instruments for changes required by the Reform, but will instead
update the effective interest rate to reflect the change to the
alternative benchmark rate; (b) hedge accounting in which an
entity will not have to discontinue its hedge accounting solely
because it makes changes required by the Reform, if the hedge
meets other hedge accounting criteria; and (c) disclosures in
which an entity will be required to disclose information about new
risks arising from the Reform and how it manages the transition
to alternative benchmark rates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

3. Adoption of HKFRSs (Continued)

(b)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued

but are not yet effective (Continued)
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020

The annual improvements amends a number of standards,
including:

. HKFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, which permit a subsidiary that
applies paragraph D16(a) of HKFRS 1 to measure
cumulative translation differences using the amounts
reported by its parent, based on the parent’s date of
transition to HKFRSs.

° HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments, which clarify the fees
included in the ‘10 per cent’ test in paragraph B3.3.6 of
HKFRS 9 in assessing whether to derecognise a financial
liability, explaining that only fees paid or received between
the entity and the lender, including fees paid or received
by either the entity or the lender on other’s behalf are
included.

° HKFRS 16, Leases, which amend lllustrative Example 13
to remove the illustration of reimbursement of leasehold
improvements by the lessor in order to resolve any
potential confusion regarding the treatment of lease
incentives that might arise because of how lease incentives
are illustrated in that example.

° HKAS 41, Agriculture, which remove the requirement to
exclude taxation cash flows when measuring the fair value
of a biological asset using a present value technique.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these amendments and new standards is expected
to be in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

4.

Significant accounting policies

(@

Basis of consolidation

Business combination

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Group. Inter-company transactions and
balances between group companies together with unrealised
profits are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on the asset
transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the dates of acquisition or up to the
dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments
are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by other members
of the Group.

The Group accounts for business combination using the
acquisition method when the acquired set of activities and assets
meets the definition of a business and control is transferred to
the Group. In determining whether a particular set of activities
and assets is a business, the Group assesses whether the set of
assets and activities acquired includes, at a minimum, an input
and substantive processes and whether the acquired set has the
ability to produce outputs.

The cost of an acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred, liabilities incurred
and equity interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are principally
measured at acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured at acquisition-
date fair value and the resulting gains or losses are recognised
in profit or loss. The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-
transaction basis, to measure the non-controlling interests that
represent present ownership interests in the subsidiary either
at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value unless another measurement basis is
required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs incurred are
expensed unless they are incurred in issuing equity instruments
in which case the costs are deducted from equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(@

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Business combination (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at acquisition-date fair value. Subsequent
adjustments to consideration are recognised against goodwill
only to the extent that they arise from new information obtained
within the measurement period (a maximum of 12 months from
the acquisition date) about the fair value at the acquisition date.
All other subsequent adjustments to contingent consideration
classified as an asset or a liability are recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling
interests that represent present ownership interests in the
subsidiary is the amount of those interests at initial recognition
plus such non-controlling interest’s share of subsequent
changes in equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in
the consolidated statement of financial position within equity,
separately from equity attributable to owners of the Company.
Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income is
attributed to such non-controlling interests even if this results in
those non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result
in a loss of control of the subsidiary are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amount of the Group’s interests and
the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interests and
any consideration paid or received is recognised in a separate
reserve within equity attributable to owners of the Group.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the
fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interest. Amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the
subsidiary are accounted for in the same manner as would be
required if the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of.

4.

FESHEER®
(@) HEEXEw@m
ES ENide )

WehE 77 % T o8 2 (E R S A RE IR
BHBMZ ATERER - EHEREZ
HEERRAERERFER(EER
WEE BB T @A) APTESE
BARKE RSz AT EZHERNE -
TAEEER - AR BREE
FRBEZIARBZERFARHNE

mAER o

WEE 1% - IR SR s (BRI 2 B
BAREAEERD) REBERZS
T2 A 1) 2 RERR B 2 R B DN L FF 4%
SRR ERESH A - F
RSN AR A AR R AR
RTEY  BEARRARE AEL#ELS
PHZY - BREEEMEEKESEHE
DN =) S NNCIES Y P& 2 2at il
1R - AE S SO R T
BB 2EREEENEBR
FERE IR -

WAEERHEARNEZESH TG
BHRELZIMB ARG - Bl
FIR AR S - NEE R NIFE
B MRS AR E B S (AR R
HRHBARMREERES - JFE
HltE R 2 BEEBEED M H IR
BZEZHAZERARRIFHE AR
i 2 BIBRHE AR -

BEAREERAMBARZEE  HE
BERUTMEZERE  ()BWRRE
RFEEEAREEGZATFEZE
B REE(RERE)BEREE
BB AR KRG EREE
AR o AERE A 2 s TR A
MEAREREZERRIIABRIT A
B BAREEXRBCDRHE -

EHBEMEBARLR 2020F K

157




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

4.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Merger accounting for business combination involving entities
or businesses under common control

A business combination involving entities or businesses under
common control is a business combination in which all of the
combining entities or businesses are ultimately controlled by
the same party or parties both before and after the business
combination, and that control is not transitory. The Group adopts
merger accounting in accordance with Accounting Guideline 5
Merger Accounting for Common Control Combinations issued by
HKICPA for common control combinations.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the combining entities or businesses in which
the common control combination occurs as if they had been
combined from the date when the combining entities first came
under the control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses are
combined using their carrying amounts prior to the business
combinations. No amount is recognised in respect of goodwill
or excess of acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over cost
at the time of common control combination, to the extent of the
continuation of the controlling party’s interest.

The consolidated statement of comprehensive income includes
the results of each of the combining entities or businesses from
the earliest date presented or since the date when the combining
entities first came under the common control, where this is a
shorter period, regardless of the date of the common control
combination.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able to
exercise control. The Company controls an investee if all three
of the following elements are present: power over the investee,
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from the investee, and the
ability to use its power to affect those variable returns. Control
is reassessed whenever facts and circumstances indicate that
there may be a change in any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment loss, if any. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividend received and receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

()

(d)

Goodwill

Where the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities exceed
the aggregate of the fair value of consideration paid, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition
date fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree, the excess is recognised in profit or loss on the
acquisition date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising from an
acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition. A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable
group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups
of assets. A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, by comparing its
carrying amount with its recoverable amount (see note 4(r)), and
whenever there is an indication that the unit may be impaired.

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year, the cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that financial year. When the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the
carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
first, and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis
of the carrying amount to each asset in the unit. However, the
loss allocated to each asset will not reduce the individual asset’s
carrying amount to below its fair value less cost of disposal (if
measurable) or its value in use (if determinable), whichever is the
higher. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or
loss and is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including buildings, held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its purchase
price and the costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

4.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised
as an expense in profit or loss during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to write
off their cost or valuation net of expected residual value over
their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The useful
lives, residual value and depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. The
useful lives are as follows:

Office equipment
Motor vehicles
Yacht

Buildings

3to 10 years

4 to 5 years

4 to 10 years

Over the shorter of the term of the
lease, and 20-30 years

Leasehold improvements Over the lease term

Other land and properties

leased for own use

Over the lease term

carried at cost

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less impairment
losses. Cost comprises direct costs of construction as well as
borrowing costs capitalised during the periods of construction
and installation. Capitalisation of these costs ceases and the
construction in progress is transferred to the appropriate class
of property, plant and equipment when substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the assets for their intended use
are completed. No depreciation is provided for in respect of
construction in progress until it is completed and ready for its
intended use.

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable amount
if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s estimated
recoverable amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sale proceeds
and its carrying amount, and is recognised in profit or loss on
disposal.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held either to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation or for both, but not held for sale in the
ordinary course of business, use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes.

Investment properties are measured at cost on initial recognition
and subsequently at fair value with any change therein
recognised in profit or loss.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of the
investment properties under construction.

Investment properties are derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment properties are permanently withdrawn from use
and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property,
calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset is included in profit or loss
in the period in which the property is derecognised.

Leases

The Group as a lessee

All leases are required to be capitalised in the statement of
financial position as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, but
accounting policy choices exist for an entity to choose not to
capitalise (i) leases which are short-term leases and/or (i) leases
for which the underlying asset is of low-value. The Group has
elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
for low-value assets and leases for which at the commencement
date have a lease term less than 12 months. The lease payments
associated with those leases have been expensed on straight-
line basis over the lease term.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

4. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(f)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost and would
comprise: (i) the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability (see below for the accounting policy to account for
lease liability); (i) any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives received; (i) any
initial direct costs incurred by the lessee and (iv) an estimate of
costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing
the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease, unless those costs are incurred to
produce inventories.

Except for right-of-use asset that meets the definition of an
investment property or leasehold land where the interest in
the land is held as inventory, the Group measures the right-of-
use assets applying a cost model. Under the cost model, the
Group measures the right-to-use at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liability.

The Group accounts for leasehold land and buildings that are
held for rental or capital appreciation purpose under HKAS
40 and are carried at fair value. The Group accounts for right-
of-use assets related to interests in leasehold land where the
interest in the land is held as inventory are carried at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Other than the above right-of-use
assets, the Group also has leased a number of properties under
tenancy agreements which the Group exercises it judgement
and determines that it is a separate class of asset apart from
the leasehold buildings which is held for own use. As a result,
the right-of-use asset arising from the properties under tenancy
agreements are carried at depreciated cost.

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value of the lease
payments that are not paid at the date of commencement of the
lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that
rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(f)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liability (Continued)

The following payments for the right-to-use the underlying asset
during the lease term that are not paid at the commencement
date of the lease are considered to be lease payments: (i) fixed
payments less any lease incentives receivable; (i) variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured
using the index or rate as at commencement date; (i) amounts
expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value
guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of a purchase option if the
lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option and (v)
payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term
reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group measures
the lease liability by: (i) increasing the carrying amount to reflect
interest on the lease liability; (ii) reducing the carrying amount
to reflect the lease payments made; and (iii) remeasuring
the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease
modifications, or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease
payments.

When the Group revises its estimate of the term of any lease
(because, for example, it re-assesses the probability of a lessee
extension or termination option being exercised), it adjusts the
carrying amount of the lease liability to reflect the payments to
make over the revised term, which are discounted using a revised
discount rate. The carrying value of lease liabilities is similarly
revised when the variable element of future lease payments
dependent on a rate or index is revised, except the discount rate
remains unchanged. In both cases, an equivalent adjustment
is made to the carrying value of the right-of-use asset, with the
revised carrying amount being amortised over the remaining
(revised) lease term. If the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset is adjusted to zero, any further reduction is recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

4.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(f)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liability (Continued)

When the Group renegotiates the contractual terms of a lease
with the lessor, if the renegotiation results in one or more
additional assets being leased for an amount commensurate with
the standalone price for the additional rights-of-use obtained,
the modification is accounted for as a separate lease, in all other
cases, where the renegotiated increases the scope of the lease
(whether that is an extension to the lease term, or one or more
additional assets being leased), the lease liability is remeasured
using the discount rate applicable on the modification date, with
the right-of-use asset being adjusted by the same amount. With
the exception to which the practical expedient for COVID-19-
Related Rent Concessions applies (see note 3(a)), if the
renegotiation results in a decrease in the scope of the lease,
both the carrying amount of the lease liability and right-of-use
asset are reduced by the same proportion to reflect the partial
or full termination of the lease with any difference recognised in
profit or loss. The lease liability is then further adjusted to ensure
its carrying amount reflects the amount of the renegotiated
payments over the renegotiated term, with the modified lease
payments discounted at the rate applicable on the modification
date and the right-of-use asset is adjusted by the same amount.

The Group as a lessor

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the leased assets to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group has leased out its investment property to a number
of tenants. Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised as an expense on the straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Any changes in the scope of the consideration for a lease that
was not part of the original terms and conditions of the lease
are accounted for as lease modifications. The Group accounts
for a modification to an operating lease as a new lease from the
effective date of the modification, recognising the remaining lease
payments as income on a either a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the remaining lease term.
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4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(9)

Service concession arrangements
Service concession arrangements are accounted for as follows if:

(i) the grantor controls or regulates what services the
operator must provide with the infrastructure, to whom it
must provide them, and at what price; and

(i)  the grantor controls through ownership, beneficial
entitlement or otherwise any significant residual interest
in the infrastructure at the end of the term of the
arrangement.

The Group’s rights over the infrastructure

Infrastructure constructed by the Group under service
concession arrangements is not recognised as property, plant
and equipment of the Group because the contractual service
arrangement does not convey the right to control the use of the
infrastructure to the Group. The operator has access to operate
the infrastructure to provide the public service on behalf of the
grantor in accordance with the terms specified in the contract.

Consideration received or receivable by the Group for the
construction services

Consideration received or receivable by the Group for the
construction services rendered under service concession
arrangement is recognised at its fair value as a financial asset or
an intangible asset.

An intangible asset (other intangible assets) is recognised to the
extent that the Group receives a right to charge users of the
public service, which is not an unconditional right to receive cash
because the amounts are contingent on the extent that the public
uses the service. The intangible asset (other intangible assets) is
accounted for in accordance with note 4(h).

Construction or upgrade services
Revenue and costs relating to construction or upgrade services
are accounted for in accordance with note 4(m)(iv).

Operating services
Revenue relating to operating services are accounted for in
accordance with note 4(m).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

4. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(h) Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognised
at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business
combination is fair value at the date of acquisition. Subsequently,
intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over their useful
lives as follows. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are
carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

(i) Operating right for operation of a marine sports base
and a sailing school arising from a service concession
arrangement
Shenzhen Yuejin Sports Company Limited (“Yuejin Sports”)
entered into an agreement dated 27 August 2014 (the
“Operation Entrustment Agreement”) with Shenzhen
Dapeng New District Management Committee, pursuant
to which the operation of Shenzhen marine sports base
and sailing school would be entrusted to Yuejin Sports
for a period of 20 years (the “Operating Right”). Under
the Operating right, Yuejin Sports has developed the
operations of a yacht club and a training centre in provision
of training services.

The Operating Right is initially measured at fair value
upon acquisition of Yue Jin Asia Limited (“Yue Jin Asia”)
and subsequently less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated on a straight-
line basis over an initial period of 20 years.

(i) Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it
increases the future economic benefits embodied in the
specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure,
including expenditure on internally generated goodwill and
brands, is recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

4. Significant accounting policies (Continued) 4. FESTBER @
(h) Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued) (h) J|EEEGEERIM) (E

(i) Derecognition of intangible assets (i) A IEREEEE
An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when BEEERNLEREEHER
no future economic benefits are expected from use or o B B N A 2R R 2R 4 F
disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of R IETER - RIEEREL
an intangible asset, measured as the difference between BEEENBERBRELE
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the FriS I8 SRR A ERE E M
asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is R ERERTHE - W R IETERS
derecognised. ERNBREEENER

(iv)  Impairment (iv) JAE

Intangible assets with finite lives are tested for impairment
when there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
Intangible assets are tested for impairment by comparing
their carrying amounts with their recoverable amounts.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested
for impairment annually either individually or at the cash-
generating unit level. Such intangible assets are not
amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset with an
indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether
indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If
not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite
to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss
is treated as revaluation decrease to the extent of its
revaluation surplus.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

4.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(i

Financial instruments

(i)

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a
significant financing component) is initially measured at fair
value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant
financing component is initially measured at the transaction
price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered
in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows
are solely payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on
the Group’s business model for managing the asset and
the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group classifies its
debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. Financial assets at amortised cost are
subsequently measured using the effective interest rate
method. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any
gain on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.
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4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR E

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(i

Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

FVTOCI: Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the
assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest, are measured at FVTOCI. Debt investments
at FVTOCI are subsequently measured at fair value.
Interest income calculated using the effective interest
rate method, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains
and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income.
On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”): Financial assets
at FVTPL include financial assets held for trading, financial
assets designated upon initial recognition at FVTPL, or
financial assets mandatorily required to be measured at fair
value. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing
in the near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Financial assets with cash flows that are not
solely payments of principal and interest are classified and
measured at FVTPL, irrespective of the business model.
Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to be
classified at amortised cost or at FVTOCI, as described
above, debt instruments may be designated at FVTPL
on initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or significantly
reduces, an accounting mismatch.

4.

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

FESHHE@)

0

ERMITA@
() SHEEME
EHTA ()

BAFEEBEMEEKED
R BEREAHNRERER
HESREECEE  MZE
BERTREERINETEZR
ME - ARATESBEME
R EIIRAE - RAFEEB
BEMEEKEN R EHR
BHRRATEANE - HER
MEERFFREZFEWA - HME
U 25 K 5 1B A KR (B 18 5 T
R B M ERFRNE
e miER - —B& I
B REMEEREERZR
AtEkBESENHDRER
BATEEBERIIKR(EZA
FEEBBSEIIR])  BRF
BERREIRZERNEER
EREEEZEREE 1Y
MERRIEERAFEEBE
BIRZ EBEEIRHEK
BAVEFEZEREE -
AT ERB L MKES
BMEE  AZFeREENE
REEEE - TTATA(BHEB
TRAPTETR) Ry RFEHE
BE  EZFITETEWIEE
RBEBEHTARIRS - R
RENIFERINAE RHE
ZEMEE  THEXBERN
WA AR AT EE BIERTD
ROBENEE - BEW LR
MBS T AR # R AN iR
NP EBBEME KGRI
D BERATERE - fHEE
MERRBE R DGR EAL
AEFTAREERRAYE
BEBBEIIR

EHBEMEBARLR 2020F K




170

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

4.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(i

Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not
held for trading, the Group could irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value
in other comprehensive income. This election is made on
an investment-by-investment basis. Equity investments at
FVTOCI are measured at fair value. Dividend income are
recognised in profit or loss unless the dividend income
clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the
investments. Other net gains and losses are recognised
in other comprehensive income and are not reclassified
to profit or loss. All other equity instruments are classified
as FVTPL, whereby changes in fair value, dividends and
interest income are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for ECL on trade
receivables, contract assets, financial assets measured
at amortised cost and debt investments measured at
FVTOCI. ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases: (1) 12 months ECLs: these are the ECLs that result
from possible default events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; and (2) lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that
result from all possible default events over the expected life
of a financial instrument. The maximum period considered
when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period
over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

4. Significant accounting policies (Continued) 4. FESTBER @
() Financial instruments (Continued) () =@MTE@
(i) Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued) (i) EEEEZEESEE)

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
Credit losses are measured as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation to the assets’ original
effective interest rate.

The Group measured loss allowances for trade receivables
and contract assets using HKFRS 9 simplified approach
and has calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The
Group has established a provision matrix that is based on
the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are based on
the 12-month ECLs. However, when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since origination, the
allowance will be based on the lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECL, the Group considers reasonable
and supportable information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative
and qualitative information analysis, based on the Group’s
historical experience and informed credit assessment and
including forward-looking information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

4.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(i

Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset
has increased significantly if it is more than 30 days past
due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when
the debtor is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Group in full, without recourse by the Group to action such
as realising security (if any is held); or the financial asset is
more than 90 days past due.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

° failure to make payments of principal or interest on
their contractually due dates;

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in a
financial instrument’s external or internal credit rating
(if available);

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

° existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-
impaired when: (1) significant financial difficulty of the
issuer or the counterparty; (2) a breach of contract, such
as a default or past due event; (3) the lender(s) of the
counterparty, for economic or contractual reasons relating
to the counterparty’s financial difficulty, having granted to
the counterparty a concession(s) that the lender(s) would
not otherwise consider; (4) it is becoming probable that
the counterparty will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or (5) the disappearance of an active market
for that financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B R B L

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

4. Significant accounting policies (Continued) 4. FESTBER @
() Financial instruments (Continued) () =@MTE@
(i) Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued) (i) EEEEZEESEE)

(i)

(iv)

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset or contract
asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is
generally the case when the Group determines that the
debtor does not have assets or sources of income that
could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts
subject to the write-off. Subsequent recoveries of an asset
that was previously written off are recognised as a reversal
of impairment in profit or loss in the period in which the
recovery Occurs.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial asset.
For non credit-impaired financial assets interest income is
calculated based on the gross carrying amount.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending on
the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred. Financial
liabilities at amortised costs are initially measured at fair
value, net of directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade and
other payables, borrowings and consideration payable
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method. The related interest expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income or interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial asset or
liability, or where appropriate, a shorter period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

4.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payment when due in accordance with
the original or modified terms of a debt instrument. A
financial guarantee contract issued by the Group and not
designated as at FVTPL is recognised initially at its fair
value less transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the issue of the financial guarantee contract. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial
guarantee contact at the higher of: (i) the amount of the
loss allowance, being the ECL provision measured in
accordance with principles of the accounting policy set
out in 4(i)(ii); and (i) the amount initially recognised less,
when appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in
accordance with the principles of HKFRS 15.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation to
the financial asset expire or when the financial asset has
been transferred and the transfer meets the criteria for
derecognition in accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments to a
creditor to settle a financial liability in whole or in part as a
result of renegotiating the terms of that liability, the equity
instruments issued are the consideration paid and are
recognised initially and measured at their fair value on the
date the financial liability or part thereof is extinguished. If
the fair value of the equity instruments issued cannot be
reliably measured, the equity instruments are measured
to reflect the fair value of the financial liability extinguished.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability or part thereof extinguished and the consideration
paid is recognised in profit or loss for the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B R B L

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

4. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

0)

(k)

U]

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks
and other financial institutions, and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group (i.e. the
operations and cash flows of which can be clearly distinguished
from the rest of the Group) that either has been disposed of, or is
classified as held for sale, and which represents a separate major
line of business or geographical area of operations, or is part of
a single coordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations, or is a subsidiary
acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon disposal
or when the component meets the criteria to be classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5, earlier. It also occurs if the
operation is abandoned.

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, which comprises the post-tax profit or
loss of the discontinued operation; and post-tax gain or loss
recognised on the measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or
on the disposal, of the assets or disposal group constituting the
discontinued operation.

Properties under development and properties held
for sale

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Development costs include acquisition costs,
construction costs, borrowing costs capitalised and other direct
costs attributable to such properties during the construction
period. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

On completion, the properties are reclassified to properties held
for sale at the carrying amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e E

R e

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

4. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

U]

(m)

Properties under development and properties held
for sale (Continued)

Properties under development (Continued)

Properties under development are classified as current assets
when the construction of the relevant properties commences
unless the construction period of the relevant property
development project is expected to complete beyond normal
operating cycle.

Properties held for sale

Completed properties remaining unsold at the end of each
relevant year are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost comprises development costs attributable to the unsold
properties.

Net realisable value is determined by reference to the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
cost necessary to make the sale.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that
apply to the contract, control of the goods or service may be
transferred over time or at a point in time. Control of the goods or
service is transferred over time if the Group’s performance:

° provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

° creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as
the Group performs; or

o does not create an asset with an alternative use to the
Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.
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4.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(m) Revenue recognition (Continued)

If control of the goods or services transfers over time, revenue
is recognised over the period of the contract by reference to
the progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the goods or service.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amounts
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception.

Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the Group, revenue
recognised under that contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method.

For contracts where the period between the payment and the
transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or less,
the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant
financing component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

(i) Yacht club services
Revenue from yacht club services comprise mainly income
from members and other customers.

Revenue from provision of yacht club services to
membership holders are recognised over the membership
period in which the yacht club services are performed.
Payment for the membership therefore is recognised as a
contract liability over the membership period.

Revenue from yacht parking services is recognised over
the time of the services performed to customers.

Revenue from provision of yacht club services to other
customers is recognised when services rendered to the
customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

4.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(m) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

Training service
Revenue from training services is recognised over the time
of the service performed to customers.

Sales of properties

The Group develops and sells commercial and residential
properties in the PRC. Revenue is recognised when
control over the property has been transferred to the
customer. The properties have generally no alternative use
for the group due to contractual restrictions. However,
an enforceable right to payment does not arise until legal
title has passed to the customer. Therefore, revenue
is recognised at a point in time when the legal title has
passed to the customer.

The revenue is measured at the transaction price agreed
under the contract. In most cases, the consideration is
due when legal title has been transferred. While deferred
payment terms may be agreed in rare circumstances, the
deferral never exceeds twelve months. The transaction
price is therefore not adjusted for the effects of a significant
financing component.

Revenue from construction contracts

When the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably, revenue and costs are recognised
when or as the construction projects are transferred to the
customer. Depending on the terms of the contracts and
the laws that are applicable to the contracts, control of the
construction projects may transfer over time or at a point
in time. If the Group creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced, in
accordance with the input method for measuring progress.
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4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(m) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(x)

*)

Trading of commodities

Revenue from the sale of commodities is recognised when
control of the commodities have transferred, being when
the commodities have been shipped to the customer’s
specific location (delivery). The Group is primarily
responsible for fulfilling the promise to provide the specified
good or service, has inventory risk before the specified
good or service has been transferred to a customer and
has discretion in establishing the price for the specified
good or service. A receivable is recognised by the Group
when the commodities are delivered to the customer
as this represents the point in time at which the right to
consideration becomes unconditional, as only the passage
of time is required before payment is due.

Trading of seafood

Revenue from sales of seafood is recognised point in time
when the goods are delivered to customers and title has
passed.

Trading of home appliances
Revenue from home appliances is recognised point in time
as those services are rendered.

Rental income
Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Dividend income

Dividend income from financial assets at FVTOCI is
recognised in profit or loss when the shareholder’s right to
receive payment is established.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method. Interest income is
recognised as it accrues using the effective interest
method. For financial assets measured at amortised
cost or FVTOCI (recycling) that are not credit-impaired,
the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset. For credit impaired financial assets,
the effective interest rate is applied to the amortised cost
(i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the
asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

4.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(m) Revenue recognition (Continued)

Contract assets and liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration
in exchange for services that the Group has transferred to a
customer that is not yet unconditional. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’s unconditional right to consideration,
i.e. only the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer.

Contract asset is recognised when (i) the Group completes
the construction works under such services contracts but
yet certified by architects, surveyors or other representatives
appointed by customers, or (i) the customers retain retention
money to secure the due performance of the contracts. Any
amount previously recognised as a contract asset is reclassified
to trade receivables at the point at which it is invoiced to the
customer. If the considerations (including advances received
from customers) exceeds the revenue recognised to date under
the output method then the Group recognises a contract liability
for the difference.

Contract costs
The Group recognises an asset from the costs incurred to fulfil a
contract when those costs meet all of the following criteria:

(@  the costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated
contract that the entity can specifically identify;

(b)  the costs generate or enhance resources of the entity
that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy)
performance obligations in the future; and

(c)  the costs are expected to be recovered.

The asset recognised is subsequently amortised to profit or loss
on a systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to the
customer of the goods or services to which the cost relate. The
asset is subject to impairment review.
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4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(n)

Income taxes
Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary activities
adjusted for items that are non-assessable or disallowable for
income tax purposes and is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of reporting
period. The amount of current tax payable or receivable is the
best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received
that reflects any uncertainty related to income tax.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for tax
purposes. Except for goodwill not deductible for tax purposes
and initial recognition of assets and liabilities that are not part
of the business combination which affect neither accounting
nor taxable profits, taxable temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future, deferred tax liabilities are
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised, provided that the deductible
temporary differences are not arises from initial recognition of
assets and liabilities in a transaction other than in a business
combination that affects neither taxable profit nor the accounting
profit. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate to
the expected manner in which the carrying amount of the asset
or liability is realised or settled and that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting period, and reflects
any uncertainty related to income taxes.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income tax levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax
assets and liabilities on a net basis.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all
or part of the assets to be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

4.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(n)

()

Income taxes (Continued)

An exception to the general requirement in determining the
appropriate tax rate used in measuring deferred tax amount is
when an investment property is carried at fair value under HKAS
40 “Investment Property”. Unless the presumption is rebutted,
the deferred tax amounts on these investment properties are
measured using the tax rates that would apply on sale of these
investment properties at their carrying amounts at the reporting
date. The presumption is rebutted when the investment property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the property over time, rather than through sale.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income in
which case the taxes are also recognised in other comprehensive
income or when they relate to items recognised directly in equity
in which case the taxes are also recognised directly in equity.

Foreign currency

Transactions entered into by the group entities in currencies
other than the functional currency are recorded at the rates
ruling when the transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary
assets and liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at the end
of reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at
fair value are included in profit or loss for the period except for
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items
in respect of which gains and losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income, in which case, the exchange differences
are also recognised in other comprehensive income.
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4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B R B L

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(0)

(P)

Foreign currency (Continued)

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. HK$) at the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the rates approximating to those ruling when
the transactions took place are used. All assets and liabilities
of foreign operations are translated at the rate ruling at the end
of reporting period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity as foreign exchange reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate). Exchange differences recognised in
profit or loss of group entities’ separate financial statements on
the translation of long-term monetary items forming part of the
Group’s net investment in the foreign operation concerned are
reclassified to other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity as foreign exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative exchange
differences recognised in the foreign exchange reserve relating to
that operation up to the date of disposal are reclassified to profit
or loss as part of the profit or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on
or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of
that foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of reporting period. Exchange differences
arising are recognised in the foreign exchange reserve.

Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits
Short term employee benefits are employee benefits (other
than termination benefits) that are expected to be settled
wholly before twelve months after the end of the annual
reporting period in which the employees render the related
service. Short term employee benefits are recognised in
the year when the employees render the related service.

(i) Defined contribution retirement plan
Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss when the
services are rendered by the employees.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

4.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(P)

(a)

(r

Employee benefits (Continued)

(i) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier of when
the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits and when the Group recognises restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination benefits.

Share-based payments

Where share options are awarded to employees and others
providing similar services, the fair value of the services received
is measured by reference to the fair value of the options at the
date of grant. Such fair value is recognised in profit or loss over
the vesting period with a corresponding increase in the share
option reserve within equity. Non-market vesting conditions are
taken into account by adjusting the number of equity instruments
expected to vest at the end of each reporting period so that,
ultimately, the cumulative amount recognised over the vesting
period is based on the number of options that eventually vest.
Market vesting conditions are factored into the fair value of the
options granted. As long as all non-market vesting conditions are
satisfied, a charge is made irrespective of whether the market
vesting conditions are satisfied. The cumulative expense is not
adjusted for failure to achieve a market vesting condition.

Where the terms and conditions of options are modified before
they vest, the increase in the fair value of the options, measured
immediately before and after the modification, is also recognised
in profit or loss over the remaining vesting period.

Impairment of assets (other than financial assets)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of assets (other than financial assets) to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use) of an asset is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expense immediately, unless the relevant asset
is carried at a revalued amount under another HKFRS, in which
case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease
under that HKFRS.
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4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(r)

(s)

(t)

Impairment of assets (other than financial assets)
(Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, to the extent that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately, unless the relevant asset
is carried at a revalued amount under another HKFRS, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase under that HKFRS.

Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows
expected to be derived from the asset or cash generating unit
(see note 4(c)), discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or cash
generating unit.

Capitalisation of borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which require a
substantial period of time to be ready for their intended use or
sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. Income
earned on temporary investments of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on those assets is deducted from borrowing
costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, which it is probable will result
in an outflow of economic benefits that can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events, are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

4.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(u)

(v)

(w)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group recognises
as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended
to compensate. Specifically, government grants whose primary
condition is that the Group should purchase, construct or
otherwise acquire non-current assets (including property, plant
and equipment) are recognised as deferred income in the
statement of financial position and transferred to profit or loss on
a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the related
assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable and are recognised as other revenue, rather
than reducing the related expense.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the executive directors of the
Company that make strategic decisions.

Related parties
(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i)  is a member of key management personnel of the
Group or the Company’s parent.
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4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B R B L

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(w) Related parties (Continued)
An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply:

)

)

(i)

(i)

(v)

(viil)

The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of the employees of the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the group or to the group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity
and include:

)

(i)

(iii)

that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

dependents of that person or that person’s spouse
or domestic partner.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

5. Critical accounting judgments and key sources
of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the directors are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

(i) Deferred tax for investment properties
For the purposes of measuring deferred taxation arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the directors of the Company have reviewed the Group’s
investment property portfolios and concluded that the Group’s
investment properties are held under a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time, rather than
through sale. Therefore, in determining the Group’s deferred
taxation on investment properties, the directors of the Company
have determined that the presumption of investment properties
measured using the fair value model are recovered entirely
through sale is rebutted. As a result, the Group has recognised
deferred taxation on changes in fair value of investment
properties as the Group is subject to PRC Enterprise Income Tax
(“EIT).

(i) Principal versus agent consideration

Significant judgments include determining whether the Group is
acting as the principal in a transaction. The Group is a principal
in a transaction if the Group obtains control of the products sold
or services provided before they are transferred to customers.
If control is unclear, when the Group is primarily obligated
in a transaction, is subject to inventory risk, has latitude in
establishing prices and selecting suppliers, or has several but not
all of these indicators, the Group records revenues on a gross
basis. Otherwise, the Group records the net amount earned as
commissions from products sold or services provided.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR R R M R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

Critical accounting judgments and key sources
of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In addition to information disclosed elsewhere in these financial
statements, other key sources of estimation uncertainty that have
a significant risk of resulting a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within next financial year are as follows:

(i)

Income taxes and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income tax in the PRC. Significant
estimates are required in determining the provision for income
tax. There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions
in the period in which such determination is made.

Moreover, The Group is subject to land appreciation tax (“LAT”)
in the PRC. The PRC LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging
from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value, being the
proceeds of the sales of properties less the estimated deductible
expenditures, the cost of land use rights and all relevant property
development expenditures. Significant judgment is required in
estimating the amounts of land appreciation and the applicable
LAT rate due to the uncertainty of proceeds of sales of properties
and deductible expenditures. However, the implementation and
settlement of the tax varies amongst different tax jurisdictions in
various cities of the PRC and certain projects of the Group have
not finalised their LAT calculations and payments with any local
tax authorities in the PRC. The amount of the land appreciation is
determined with reference to proceeds of the sales of properties
less the estimated deductible expenditures, including the
cost of land use rights and all relevant property development
expenditures. The Group recognised the LAT based on the
management’s best estimates. The final tax outcome could be
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, and these
differences will impact the income tax expense and the related
income tax provisions in the periods in which such tax is finalised
with local tax authorities.
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5. Critical accounting judgments and key sources
of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(i)

(i)

(i)

Income taxes and deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences and
tax losses are recognised when management considers to be
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised. The
outcome of their actual utilisation may be different.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated. For the purposes of impairment
testing, goodwill is allocated to its respective cash-generating
units. Management judgement is required in the area of goodwiill
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether the carrying
amount of an cash-generating unit can be supported by the
recoverable amount, being the higher of fair value less cost of
disposal or value in use; and (i) the appropriate key assumptions
to be applied in preparing cash flow projections including whether
these cash flow projections are discounted using an appropriate
rate.

Impairment of other intangible assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for other intangible asset with finite useful life at
the end of the reporting period. The other intangible assets
are tested for impairment when there are indicators that the
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purposes of
impairment testing, assets are allocated to its respective cash-
generating units. Management judgement is required in the
area of asset impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether
the carrying amount of an asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount, being the higher of fair value less cost of
disposal or value in use; and (i) the appropriate key assumptions
to be applied in preparing cash flow projections including
whether these cash flow projections are discounted using an
appropriate rate. The cash flow projections used are consistent
with management’s estimated long-term projections, against
which various sensitivity analyses were performed. These cash
flow projections would face a challenge due to the COVID-19
pandemic, therefore management’s estimated cash flows factor
in a number of underlying variables and ranges of possible
cash flow scenarios. Actual results may materially differ from
management’s estimates, especially due to the uncertainties
associated with the COVID-19 pandemic.
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Critical accounting judgments and key sources
of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for property, plant and equipment at the end
of the reporting period. The property, plant and equipment
are tested for impairment when there are indicators that the
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purposes of
impairment testing, assets are allocated to its respective cash-
generating units. Management judgement is required in the
area of asset impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether
the carrying amount of an asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount, being the higher of fair value less cost of
disposal or value in use; and (i) the appropriate key assumptions
to be applied in preparing cash flow projections including
whether these cash flow projections are discounted using an
appropriate rate. The cash flow projections used are consistent
with management’s estimated long-term projections, against
which various sensitivity analyses were performed. These cash
flow projections would face a challenge due to the COVID-19
pandemic, therefore management’s estimated cash flows factor
in a number of underlying variables and ranges of possible
cash flow scenarios. Actual results may materially differ from
management’s estimates, especially due to the uncertainties
associated with the COVID-19 pandemic.

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on the
valuation performed by independent professional valuer. In
determining the fair value, the valuer have based on a method of
valuation which involves certain estimates of market condition. In
relying on the valuation report, the directors of the Company have
exercised their judgement and are satisfied that the valuation
method, input used and the assumptions used in the valuation
are reflective of the current market conditions. Changes to these
input and assumptions would result in changes in the fair values
of the Group’s investment properties and the corresponding
adjustments to the amount of gain or loss reported in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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5. Critical accounting judgments and key sources
of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(vi)

(vii)

Impairment of trade receivables and contract assets

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables and
contract assets based on lifetime ECL. For trade receivables
and contract assets which are individually significant and credit-
impaired, the management assesses credit losses individually
by estimating the contractual cash flow expected to receive,
based on the evidence of credit-impairment and forward-
looking information. Except for trade receivables and contract
assets which are individually significant and credit-impaired,
the management uses provision matrix to assess ECL, which
is based on collective credit risk characteristics. The ECL rates
are based on the Group’s historical loss rates, taking into
consideration forward-looking information. The impairment of
trade receivables and contract assets involves management’s
accounting estimations and judgements.

Provision for net realisable value on properties under
development and properties held for sale

Properties under development and properties held for sale are
stated at the lower of the cost and net realisable value. Based on
the experience of the directors of the Company and the nature of
the subject properties, the directors of the Company determine
the net realisable value of properties under development and
properties held for sale by reference to the estimated market
prices of the properties under development and properties held
for sale, which takes into account a number of factors including
the recent prices of similar property types in the same project
or by similar properties, and the prevailing real estate market
conditions in the PRC. The directors of the Company estimate
the costs to completion and costs necessary to make the sale
by reference to the actual development cost of other similar
completed projects of the Group.

Glory Sun Land Group Limited Annual Report 2020
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Financial risk management

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: foreign
currency risk, price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk.
The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(@

Foreign currency risk

The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency risk as
most of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are
principally denominated in the functional currencies of the Group
entities, Renminbi (“RMB”). The Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group monitors its foreign
currency exposure closely and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group’s bank and cash
balances and pledged and restricted bank deposits are mainly
denominated in HK$, RMB and US dollar (“US$”). Since HK$ is
pegged to US$, the Group believes the exposure of transactions
denominated in US$ which are entered into the Group to be
insignificant.

At 31 December 2020, if the HK$ had weakened 5 per cent
against RMB with all other variables held constant, consolidated
loss after tax for the year (2019: consolidated profit after tax for
the year) would have been approximately HK$12,000 (2019:
approximately HK$8,500,000) lower (2019: higher), arising mainly
as a result of the foreign exchange gain on bank balances and
deposits denominated in RMB. The same % increase in the
foreign currency exchange rate on RMB against HK$ would have
the same magnitude on the Group’s consolidated loss after tax
for the year (2019: consolidated profit after tax for the year) as
shown above but of opposite effect, on the basis all variances
held constant.

These are the same method and assumption used in preparing
the sensitivity analysis included in the financial statements for the
years ended 31 December 2019 and 2020.

The policies to manage foreign currency risk have been followed
by the Group since prior years and are considered to be effective.
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6.

Financial risk management (Continued)

(b)

()

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk mainly through its
investment in equity securities. The management manages this
exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments with different
risk and return profiles. The Group’s equity price risk is mainly
concentrated on equity securities quoted on the Stock Exchange
and Nasdaqg Stock Exchange.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to equity price risk at the end of the reporting
period.

If equity prices had been 10% higher/lower (2019: 10% higher/
lower):

- other comprehensive income for the year ended
31 December 2020 would decrease/increase by
approximately HK$748,000 (2019: increase/decrease by
approximately HK$17,989,000) as a result of the changes
in fair value of financial assets at FVTOCI.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its
obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk
from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from
its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial
institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other financial
instruments.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from cash and
cash equivalents is limited because the counterparties are
banks and financial institutions with high credit-rating assigned
by international credit-rating agencies, for which the Group
considers to have low credit risk.

Except for the financial guarantee given by the Group as set out
in note 33, the Group does not provide any other guarantees
which would expose the Group to credit risk. The maximum
exposure to credit risk in respect of these financial guarantees at
the end of the reporting period is disclosed in note 33.
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Financial risk management (Continued)

()

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets

Customer credit risk is managed by the Group’s established
policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk
management. Individual credit evaluations are performed on
all customers requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customer as well as pertaining
to the economic environment in which the customer operates.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables and
contract assets at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, which is
calculated using the probability of default, loss given default and
the exposure at default with reference to the historical data of the
market of the debtors’ and the industry.

ECL rate of contract assets with carrying amount of
approximately HK$37,256,000 is assessed to be 10.64% (2019:
24.22%). As at 31 December 2020, the loss allowance provision
for contract assets was HK$3,963,000 (2019: HK$68,471,000).

The following tables provide information about the Group’s
exposure to credit risk and ECL for trade receivables as at 31

6.

B ERERE

(c) FEHF‘*(%‘E)
B SN IE R AHEE
EEEERR B& B £ @EE A RR

EEFEERBREERNEE BFKE
EERE T UV - AEEY AT Z kiR
B-EEESENEPETEMNEE
FHE - ZETAEPREFPBANE
TE B BB 0038 FURC 8% & B AT A9 I8 SRR
71 WEEREFPHFTEERURERP
BEBAMECERE - —MWME A%
ENEREFRME R -

REERESHBHEEHESEN
FETEESENFERENEEY
E B ETNEREOME - B
BEREREHRR  K2EEHAR
TEZMHBEEETE -

BRI{E#737,256,0008 T2 A & E
ZHEHEEBBEAR A10.64% (=
T—NF 12422%) - R_ZE_ZTF
+ZA=+—RH ANBEZEBIE
4% 453,963,000/8 o ( ZF — N 4F -
68,471,000/ 7T) °

TREHREEAEER _Z-NFR
“ECRF+_A=t— El,dtféf%ﬁ

December 2019 and 2020: WHIAFERSEERR RIEMEE
BiEz &R

Gross carrying Loss
ECL rate (%) amount allowance
2020 —ToTE BHEERIREE(%) #BERE(E EERERE
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET THET

Current (not past due) to BREf(R@E) =
30 days past due #HA30H 0.04%-23.54% 41,485 128
31-90 days past due #HI31290H 0.02%-23.54% 34,756 46
More than 90 days past due #HI00H MA 0.20%-23.59% 37,012 608
113,253 782
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6. Financial risk management (Continued) 6. HKEEEE@m
(c) Credit risk (Continued) (c) FERRG@E

Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued) ESEWNFBERSEE (&)
Gross carrying Loss
ECL rate (%) amount allowance
2019 —ET—hF FEEMEEEIEE(%) HERHEE B
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FAT

Current (not past due) to BNEg(R@E) =

30 days past due #HAS0H 0.02%-1.85% 87,249 318
31-90 days past due #HA31290H 0.11%-0.26% 10,926 12
More than 90 days past due #EAQOH M 0.11%-1.00% 96,602 205
194,777 535

ECL rates are based on the probability of default, loss given
default and the exposure at default with reference to the historical
data of the market of the debtors’ and the industry. The loss
allowance based on past due status is further distinguished
between the Group’s different customer bases.

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of trade
receivables during the year is as follows:

EMEEBEXDENEOME 2
HEBEBRENRR - A2REBAR
TEMSNELBIRETAHE - AR
B EHRN B RREEARET
REZFPER 2 AMGE—FED -

ARIE 2 EAGHRIA 2 B IREERNF
NESHIT

2020 2019

—EoEE —E-NEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FAT

At 1 January n—A—H8 535 3,117

Amounts reversed during the year FREESFE (471) (4,904)
Impairment losses recognised FRERRR(EEE

during the year 677 547

Exchange differences bE H ZERE 4 1,775

At 31 December R+=RA=+—AH 782 535

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of contract
assets during the year is as follows:

BHAHBEZBBREBERRERNE
N

2020 2019

—EC-EF —E-NEF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FE T FAT

At 1 January A—A—H 68,471 96
Write-off HhsH (125,013) -

Impairment losses recognised FAERNRERE

during the year 59,822 69,948
Exchange differences PEH Z%E 683 (1,573)
At 31 December R+=A=+—H 3,963 68,471
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Financial risk management (Continued) 6. HMKEEEE@m
(c) Credit risk (Continued) (c) FEREG@E
Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued) EZENFIEREEE (&)
The following significant changes in the gross carrying amounts B I RBFIER G NEENEREE
of trade receivables and contract assets contributed to the BENTEREHEHEBRBER
decrease in the loss allowance: A
- Write-off of contract assets resulted in a a decrease in loss - BRHEEMBEZREERER
allowance of approximately HK$125,013,000 (2019: Nil); A 47125,013,0008 T (= &
and —NF:F): Rk
- origination of new trade receivables and contract assets net - EEXFMEZEWFIEREL
of those settled resulted in an increase in loss allowance of BE(IKREEES) S35
approximately HK$60,028,000 (2019: HK$67,559,000). JE %8 £ 12 10 4960,028,0007% 7T
—ZE—NF : 67,559,000%
7T) e
Other receivables H b fEYIE
In respect of other receivables, the Group monitors the Eiﬁf@ﬁﬂﬂlmlﬁﬁ’ﬁ% C REBERE
exposures and manages them based on historical settlement EHS AT - RN NTEH
records and past experience, current conditions and forecasts RARAE AR S ESFE [ S P T B R o
of future economic conditions. At the reporting date, the credit RS BH - BREARKEIENE
risk on other receivable has not increased significantly since initial 5k B #0461 5 DA SR I & K g 18
recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance for other me REBZESERTZ@EABRE
receivable at an amount equal to 12-month ECL. EEBBz o EE AmEKEIENE
BREdE -
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of other B RAE A EWGRIE 2 BB BB RN
receivables during the year is as follows: WE T -
2020 2019
et St 523 —hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FATT
At 1 January H—BA—H 5,572 19,548
Acquisition of subsidiaries under U B RS N BT B A R
common control (note 40(b)) (MF7E40(b)) = 25,877
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 40(c)) & E A B (BF3E40(c) - (16,601)
Amounts reversed during the year FERE O %58 (3,882) (27,954)
Impairment losses recognised FARRREERE
during the year 27,619 6,059
Exchange differences PE 5 =% 1,914 (1,357)
At 31 December W+=—BA=+—H 31,223 5,572
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6.

Financial risk management (Continued)

(©)

(d)

6. HEERERE@m

Credit risk (Continued) (c) FERRG@E

Other receivables (Continued) E Y TE ()

The following significant changes in the gross carrying amounts HEMERRIEERAEZEAENUTERXR

of other receivables contributed to the increase in the loss FEEWE BB AN

allowance:

- origination of new other receivables net of those settled - FREEIAEMERRIE
resulted in an increase (2019: a decrease) in loss allowance (IMKREHEEE)  BEUFHER
of approximately HK$23,737,000 (2019: HK$21,895,000) BEN(ZE—NF : Bd)
during the year. 23,737,000 T(ZE— N4 :

21,895,000/ 7T) °

Liquidity risk (d) REBESERE

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected 7N E2 B /9 B 2 TE HRBE 15 IR IRy 1% 7B BR

liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient RHESTE  URRESEZHRS

reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short HiE - mMEEBERBCRDESR

and longer term. 2o

The maturity analysis based on contractual undiscounted cash BEAEEETESCHBENT AR

flows of the Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities is as AR SR EETHI A S TET

follows: T

Less than Between Between
1 year or 1 and 2 and Over
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
1FLRAR
RER 1822 2E5F 5EHE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FAEL FET FAEL FAEL FAT
At 31 December 2020 R-BZEF
+=A=+-H

Borrowings &k 6,216,800 3,332,163 4,716,140 - 14,265,103

Trade payables P ENTE 2,978,021 - - - 2,978,021

Wages and salaries payables, ERNTEKFHE -

interest payable, accruals ERFIE - At B
and other payables K EA 500 1,077,174 - - - 1,077,174

Consideration payable ERRE 589 - 46,236 416,129 462,954

Lease liabilities HEGE 12,557 10,481 36,997 37,327 97,362

At 31 December 2019 R=-ZB-hE

+=BA=+-8

Borrowings 3 4833564 1206613 3,826,762 - 9871989

Trade payables B ZENFIE 3,387,530 - - - 3,387,530

Wages and salaries payables, ENTERHE

interest payable, accruals ERHME - BB
and other payables R E A e FRIR 1,210,526 - - - 1,210,526

Consideration payable ERRE 300,620 - - 436,853 737,473

Lease liabilities HEaE 3,798 5,167 7,576 37,637 54,178

Financial guarantees issued: 2% B8R :

Maximum amount guaranteed &R 2 RE £ 278,250 - - - 278,250
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Financial risk management (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The amounts included above for financial guarantee contracts
are the maximum amounts the Group could be required to
settle under the arrangement for the full guaranteed amounts if
that amounts are claimed by the counterparty to the guarantee.
Based on expectations at the end of the reporting period,
the Group considers that it is more likely that no amount will
be payable under the arrangement. However, this estimate
is subjected to change depending on the probability of the
counterparty claiming under the guarantee that the guaranteed
financial receivables held by the counterparty suffers credit
losses.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to interest-rate risk arises from its bank
deposits which bear interests at variable rates that vary with the
then prevailing market condition.

The Group’s bank and other borrowings, corporate bonds, PRC
corporate bonds and loans from related parties bear interests at
fixed interest rates and therefore are subject to fair value interest
rate risks.

At 31 December 2020, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would decrease/increase the Group’s
loss for the year and increase/decrease the Group’s accumulated
losses by approximately HK$92,727,000 (2019: approximately
HK$63,522,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at the end of
reporting period and had been applied to the exposure to
interest rate risk for the borrowings in existence at that date. The
100 basis point increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest rates
over the period until the next annual reporting date.

The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2019.

6.
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6. Financial risk management (Continued) 6.

() Categories of financial instruments at 31 December )

(9)

R EEE E)

Rt-ZA=+—HBzE&MIA
B

2020 2019
—E-EF ZE-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Financial assets SREE
Measured at fair value: BATFERE -
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEBEBERVEZEMEE
— Derivative financial assets —PTESREE 32,044 13,753
Financial assets at FVTOCI EATESBEMEEEESR
ZEMEE
— Equity instruments ~BRATIE 7,477 179,893
Measured at amortised cost: RESHK ARG E
— Financial assets included in trade —FTAB S K E M ERFIER
and other receivables TREE 2,335,652 2,307,150
— Pledged and restricted bank — B R ZR AR TIER
deposits 618,133 825,802
- Bank and cash balances —IRIT IR B AEER 735,501 634,120
3,689,286 3,767,072
Financial liabilities SREE
Measured at amortised cost: REH ARG &
- Borrowings — &R 12,363,664 8,469,595
— Financial liabilities included in trade — it AE S R HAMENMZTER
and other payables ca =L 4,055,195 4,598,056
— Consideration payable —ERRE 164,336 436,639
— Lease liabilities —HEaE 59,951 30,314
16,643,146 13,534,604
Financial guarantees ISR = 33,180

Fair values

(9)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement of
financial position approximate their respective fair values.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

Fair value measurements

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The following disclosures of fair value
measurements use a fair value hierarchy that categorises into three
levels the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the Group can access at the measurement
date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out
of any of the three levels as of the date of the event or change in
circumstances that caused the transfer.

Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 December:

DNVEFE
NFERTH2EENTERRETZERF
RPPHEEEMPIERAERNZ
Bf - UTREZ A VEFERERATES
M) BEAKEIEAAGEATEZGE
Btz ABURD R=/

F—HRBARE  ARERFERHAES
HREERBBERERT S MECREH
) -

E-HHARE | B BEHBEA)
AT A T (R B S )
HABE -

F=RBARE  BEXBENTUBRRH
ABE -

AEBZBRINEMHEELERER B
MEREE 2 H - BREANEH=EFK
Ez—-

Wt-A=+-AZATEZR
i

2020
Description it Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
—E-EHF
£ Lt E= et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FHET FHET FHET
Recurring fair value KEMQALEFE
measurements:
Financial assets SRIEE
Derivative financial assets TESHEE
Put option R - - 32,044 32,044
Financial assets at FVTOCI BRATERBEMEE
Wadlfke @ BB E
Listed equity securities TR AES 7,477 - - 7,477
Investment properties REYHE
Properties in the PRC iNaalElE ks ES - 1,069,035 4,965,506 6,034,541
Total 5t 7,477 1,069,035 4,997,550 6,074,062
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

Fair value measurements (Continued) ATEFTE @
2019
Description F Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
—E-NF
F—H FM F= 4aEt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FT FHTT FHETT
Recurring fair value KEMQALEFE
measurements:
Financial assets SRIEE
Derivative financial assets TESHEE
Put option Rk B - - 13,753 13,753
Financial assets at FVTOCI BRATEBBEMEE
Wasdlfke @ BB E
Listed equity securities IR AES 179,893 - 179,893
Investment properties REYHE
Properties in the PRC iNaalElEokyES - 1,055,973 4,321,668 5,377,641
Total HEr 179,893 1,055,973 4,335,421 5,571,287

Reconciliation of assets/liabilities measured at fair value

REE=REQAVPEFEZEE

based on level 3 BEHE
2020
—E-EHF
Assets
BE
Investment
Description i Put option properties Total
ok HARE REYE et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FE T THERT
At 1 January A—BA—H 13,753 4,321,668 4,335,421
Total gains or losses recognised RIE R R
in profit or loss E R 18,291 (17,563) 728
Additions NE - 390,071 390,071
Exchange difference MEH %R - 271,330 271,330
At 31 December Wt+=—BA=+—H 32,044 4,965,506 4,997,550
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

Fair value measurements (Continued) 7. AFEFE@
Reconciliation of assets/liabilities measured at fair value BEF=REAFETEZEE &
based on level 3 (Continued) B IR ()
2019
—E-NEF
Assets Liabilities
Contingent
Investment consideration
Description it Put option properties Total payable
Rk Bt wEME e ENSARE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FET FAET
At 1 January W—A—8 3,138 2,103,049 2,106,187 (56,855)
Total gains or losses recognised FA I8z FER R UL S 31 JES
in profit or loss ikt 10,615 33,830 44,445 (605)
Acquisition of subsidiaries under Ut #E L EEH1 T RIFTE
common control NS - 1,647,004 1,647,004 -
Additions NE - 677,012 677,012 -
Issues of retained shares BITRERHN - - - 57,460
Exchange difference MEH =% - (139,227) (139,227) -
At 31 December R+=—A=+-—8 13,753 4,321,668 4,335,421 -

Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group

and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value
measurements:

The Group’s chief financial officer is responsible for the fair value
measurements of assets and liabilities required for financial reporting
purposes, including level 3 fair value measurements. The chief financial
officer reports directly to the Board of Directors for these fair value
measurements. Discussions of valuation processes and results are held
between the chief financial officer and the Board of Directors at least
twice a year.

For level 3 fair value measurements, the Group will normally engage
external valuation experts with the recognised professional qualifications
and recent experience to perform the valuations.

TEEETAFEFAERFEANMGE
BF  fEERTREASEREEX
T
AEENERVBEARETVBREME
KMBEERBEATERNE  BEE=ZHL
FEFE - BEEMBEEZERNESQERZ
ENTEAE - ERMBEHESFSEER
DETRMRERGEERY RERTEAS

A
Af ©

RE=QATEIEME  ARE KGR
PR A A 1 R I 1T (AR
SMEMEE R -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

7. Fair value measurements (Continued)

Level 2 fair value measurements

Description

Valuation technique

fEEEM

7. AVEFTEu@m
FE-RALETE

Inputs

BAHE

Fair value as at
31 December
2020
R-ZB-ZHF
+=H=+—H
2 AV
HK$’000
THERT

Investment properties

REME

Direct comparison approach

BHELBUE

Market price of comparable
AELLE TS ER

1,069,035

Description

P

Valuation technique

B E R

Inputs

BWABUR

Fair value as at
31 December
2019
R-B—H&F
t=-A=+—~
ZAHE
HK$’000
FAET

Investment properties

REME

Direct comparison approach

BELEOR

Market price of comparable
AELLE T IHER

1,055,973
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

Fair value measurements (Continued) 7. AFEFE@
Level 3 fair value measurements F=H/ATEFE
Effect on Fair value as at
fair value for 31 December
Observable/ increase 2020
Description Valuation technique unobservable inputs Range of inputs Assets
WABBLA St 23
HAVE +=A=+-H
it fRER TERE /THBRGAHE &HE 0fZ ZEENYE
HK$’000
TR
Investment properties Direct comparison Price per square meter, taking Approximately  Increase 4,965,506
under development approach into account the differences  HK$26,387-
in time, location, condition, HK$42,212 per
size, age and other square meter
individual factors between
the comparables and the
property
ERREME HELERE Y ORER - &EHRAIE BFK b=yl
BMERZYEBER  #026,387HTLE
SRR - MR R E 4221287
18~ Bl E M E R E &
mER
Put option Income approach The Company’s share price  HK$0.01 Increase 32,044
o EE W% RRAIR(E 0.0187T b=yl
Fair value of Yue Jin Asia 1% Decrease
BERDMNNATE b
Effect on Fair value as at
fair value for 31 December
Observable/ increase 2019
Description Valuation technique unobservable inputs Range of inputs Assets
N
BABE LA —E-NF
HRTE +=A=+—H
it B R AER/TARREAZE  #@E ojZ ZRNTHE
HK$'000
TAT
Investment properties Direct comparison Price per square meter, taking Approximately  Increase 4,321,668
under development approach into account the differences  HK$29,304-
in time, location, condition, HK$60,640 per
size, age and other square meter
individual factors between
the comparables and the
property
ERRAME BERELEE Y ORER - &5 &AL BFIK 0
BENEZMEZBER 49293048
SR R R B 60,64087T
18~ B A E M E R E =
HEE
Put option Income approach The Company’s share price  HK$0.01 Increase 13,753
Rk HE W& RRAIR(E 0.0187T 0
Fair value of Yue Jin Asia 1% Decrease
ERDMOATE D
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

8. Segment reporting

The Group determines its operating segments based on the reports
reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker that are used to make
strategic decisions.

The Group has several operating segments as follows:

Yacht club —  operation of a yacht club

Training —  provision of training services

Real estate and property -  property development and
investment property investment

Trading of commodities — trading of commodities

Construction —  provision of construction works

Others —  operation of golf practising court;

— operation of children playroom;
—  operation of fitness room;

— trading of seafood; and

— trading of home appliances

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business units that offer
different products and services. They are managed separately because
each business requires different technology and marketing strategies.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the operating segment of
provision of online game services was discontinued.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, others included operation of
golf practising court, operation of children playroom and fitness room
and trading of seafood and home appliances while operation of children
playroom and fitness room and trading of home appliances are new
business components for the year (for the year ended 31 December
2019, others included only operation of golf practising court and trading
of seafood).

Glory Sun Land Group Limited Annual Report 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

Segment reporting (Continued) 8.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as
those described in note 4(v) to the consolidated financial statements.

Segment result represents the profit/(loss) of each segment without
allocation of following items:

Central administration costs;

- Directors’ emoluments;

- Gain on bargain purchase;

- Fair value loss on investment properties;

- Fair value loss on contingent consideration payable;

- Fair value gain on derivative financial assets;

- Other income, gains/(losses) — net; and

- Finance costs.

This is the measure reported to the chief operating decision maker for
the purpose of resource allocation and performance assessment.

e IR R R M R

D EERE ()

G D BN G IR R A B REN
AR EFER -

SHEEIE SN TRR 2N E DB
#/ B ¢

- PRI

- EEME:

-  EEBEkE:

- REVEZRATHERRE:

- ENIRREZAFEEE:

- TEEmEEZATERES

- HtpA - HE S (BR) %8 R
- BERAE-

W RERSERKRRFGEEOMAETES
BEAREZWOEIE

207
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

8. Segment reporting (Continued) 8.

Segment revenue and results
Revenue reported below represents revenue generated from external
customers. There were no inter-segment sales in both years.

The following is an analysis of revenue and results by operating
segment of the Group:

For the year ended 31 December 2020

2 EBER £ (@)

TEERBERER
TXE2MZEEBIRIMRFSELEL &
B o REFE LS HRHE -

AEEREED BB EERREEDT
w

BE-_E_ZF+-A=1+—HLEE

Continuing operations
BELEER
Real estate
Year ended “ECEE+CR and property  Trading of
31 December 2020 =t-HLEE Yacht club Training  investment commodities ~ Construction Others Total
BiER
Fid =400 E] NERE ARR% B Ht @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEn FiEn FiEn

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEn FiEn FiEn FiEn

Revenue 2 10,000 8,915 532,724 6,129,006 - 104,740 6,785,385
Segment results PEEE (249,314) (197,113) (222,056) (8,354) (59,830) 18,544 (718,123)
Fairvalugloss oninvestment A MEMATE

properties B (62,297)
Fair value gain on derivative ITEERERER

financial assets AHEYE 18,291
Other income, gains/(losses) - EftIRA + Wi/

net (B&)-%8 85,733
Finance costs BEKA (120,484)
Unallocated corporate expenses P AEAICEHT (23,997)
Loss before income tax BRETSHAEE (810,877)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

Segment reporting (Continued) 8. DEBFHE @)
Segment revenue and results (Continued) PTHEEBERESHE)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z-NEF+-A=1+—HLEE
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
B
RELesH ek
Real estate Provision of
Year ended ZENETZAZT-R andproperty  Tracing of online game
31 December 2019 ER Yacht club Traning  ivestment  commocities  Construction Others  Sub-total senices Total
BIHER RIER
e O OnERE ARRG & () N ERRE &
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS'000 HKS1000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HKS'000
T Thn Thn Thn Thn ThnL Thn TinL Thn
Revenue 58 68,820 49089 4380350 5231085 12,280 26388 9767512 305 9,767,867
Segment resuits D% 200,058) (130,146) 1,583,151 1 (67,668) 488 119,944 30830 1226774
(Gain on bargain purchase HEEENA 31488
Fair value loss on investment properties ~ RENENATESE 22,339
Fai value oss on contingent ERSARENATESE
consideration payable (605)
Fairvalue g on dervative financil assets 17 $BEENATENE 10615
Other income, gains/{osses) - net EHA - W5/ (BB)- 58 40,786
Finance costs R (231783)
Unallocated corporate expenses FFARNAERR (23,364
Profit before income tax REEHART 1,031,570
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

8.

Segment reporting (Continued)

8. OEHE@m

Segment assets and liabilities PHEEREE
As at 31 December 2020 N-EBE-ZEBE+=-A=+—H
Continuing operation
BESELK
Real estate
and property Trading of
Yacht club Training  investment commodities Others Total
EER
EREH E] NERE RRRS Ht by
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#n T#n T#n T#n T#n Tin
Segment asssts PEEE 62,066 54,693 22,987,632 25,057 185,366 23,382,055
Unallocated assets RFHEMEE
- Bank and cash balance - RTRREEH 205,834
- Others —Efth 78,726
284,560
Consolidated total Gagst 23,666,615
Segment liabilities AYEE 117,181 119,150 16,579,955 199,486 65,725 17,206,035
Unallocated liabilties TFHEMEE
- Borrowings —f&3 2,297,745
- Others —Efth 85,479
2,383,224
Consolidated total Gagst 19,589,259
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR R R M R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

8. Segment reporting (Continued) 8.

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)
As at 31 December 2019

D EERE ()

THEEREE#)
R-B-AF+=A=t—H

Continuing operations
S RS
Real estate
and property Trading of
Yacht club Training investment  commodities  Construction Others Total
BHER
iz a4 s NxRE REZ5 ik Afts &t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL THL TEL

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TEL TEL

Segment assets PHEE 324,241 266,464 18,023,932 73,148 290,760 174,026 19,152,571

Unallocated assets FFARMEE
- Pledged and restricted bank  — B IR R R

deposits TR 556,000

- Bank and cash balance —RITRR SRR 264,059

- Others —-Hft 202,943

1,023,002

Consolidated total A 20,175,573

Segment liabilities HEHaR 128,538 143,799 12,790,001 502,401 107,540 16,304 13,688,583
Unallocated liabilties TFAEMER

- Borrowings —f3 1,499,500

- Others —-Hft 338,935

1,838,435

Consolidated total SRE 15,527,018

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and allocating
resources between segments:

° all assets are allocated to operating segments other than
unallocated bank and cash balances, financial assets at FVTOCI,
derivative financial assets and corporate assets.

° bank and cash balances are allocated to operating segments
based on the location of bank and cash balances.

° all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than
consideration payable arising from acquisitions, corporate bonds,
corporate borrowings and corporate liabilities.

° liabilities payable to the government department such as tax
bureau and social security department are allocated to operating
segments based on the location of the tax bureau and social
security department.

MREESBRRRDED BEERME

BATHRNRITIREER - BA
FazaHEtrraREIREzSRE
E TESREERAREEI AT
BEEANEERZEDHS -

RITEREBEHDIRIBRITRIASE
BREPEI D EEE LD HE ©

BRKEEHRELNENRE  2FE
% REfERRAREEN AR

ERDEELELEDHE -

J& S A T B BB P (AT TS # 4 Jo At
SREHPWEEDREHEEE
Rt g REIFINMELD LS

5 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

8. EEHmE @
HivpEHER
BE-_E_ZF+-A=1+—HLEE

8. Segment reporting (Continued)

Other segment information
Year ended 31 December 2020

Continuing operations
BEGEXY
Real estate
and property Trading of
Yacht club Training  investment commodities  Construction Others Total
EHER
BREEH 83l NERE ARRG £ At st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TARL TARL TARL TARL TARL TARL TARL
Additions to non-current assets REFAEEE ni 1,024 405,720 - - 40,648 448,109
Depreciation and amortisation ~ #7& J %4 20,584 17,673 9,986 - - 8,021 56,264
Impairment losses on other ~ HAt &R/ EE
intangible assets HEEE 231,314 188,488 - - - - 419,802
Impairment losses on property, 1%~ BER
plant and equipment REREEE - - = = = 34,687 34,687
Impairment losses on financial B R AN EERE
and contract assets - net BE-F8 91 (49) 23,548 121 59,830 153 83,694
Year ended 31 December 2019 BE-ZE-NAF+-A=+—HLEFE
Discontinued
Continuing operations Operation
BRI
BELLEH HEE
Real estate Provision of
andproperty  Tradling of onling game
Yacht club Training ~ Investment ~ commodlties ~ Construction Others Sub-total senices Total
BHER RIER
el Bl WERR ARRE B4 i Nt R it
HKGO00  HKS0OO  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO000  HKBOO0  HKS00O  HKS000  HK$000
Thn TER Thn TR Thn ThER Thn TR Thn
Addifons to non-curent assefs FEFRIRE 28% - 7500 - - 66 2777906 SR
Depreciation and amortisation fEREH 059 2% 8,050 - - 6470 67854 12 67486
Impaiment losses on goodil BENEEE 7419 109928 - - - - AT - AT
Impaiment losses on other HEhEpEERERE
infangiole assets 134,323 4550 - - - - 138673 - 138,873
Impaiment losses on property, 0% BERREAESE
plant and equipment 31870 2,14 - - - - 54611 - 54,611
Impament losses on fivancial and SHRENEERESE-5E
contract assefs - net K28 9% (24,710) 1 69,048 4 45,664 - 45,664
Note: Non-current assets included property, plant and equipment, investment MiET : SERBEEBEME - BFERE&E  RE

properties and other intangible assets. YIZEA R E B EE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

Segment reporting (Continued)

Geographical information
The PRC is the country of domicile of the Group.

No separate analysis of segment information by geographical segment is
presented as the operations of the Group, its revenue and non-current
assets are principally attributable to a single geographical region, which
is the PRC.

Information about major customers
Revenue attributed from customers that accounted for 10% or more of
the Group’s total revenues during the year, are as follows:

D EERE ()

M 19 3
AEEREERARE -

W25 D A8 D 2 D BER 2 BB
DI WTIHRAREEEE RERER
FRBEETERANE @R - AIPE -

IREFEN
FA - HAREEAEEFRI0%HIALNES
BRIZEEBWT ¢

Year ended 31 December

BEt+t-A=+t—-BLFE

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

Real estate and property investment EERYERE
Customer A EPA - 3,855,601

Trading of commodities RERS

Customer B ®FB - 1,755,238
Customer C EFC - 1,118,447
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

9. Revenue 9. EEH
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by major FA - REZEMIRGE D 2BEFPENE
products or service line for the year is as follows: E 5ok iy (N
2020 2019
—BCEF —T-hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FET
Continuing operations: FREREER
Revenue from contracts with customers FHB I BHEED E155BE R 2
within the scope of HKFRS 15 BEFEAHNEXEE
Sales of properties MEHE 519,541 4,365,965
Revenue from construction contracts BEANCEER - 12,280
Trading of commodities KRR 5 6,129,006 5,231,585
Training services =3 AR 8,915 49,089
Yacht club services PR FT RS 1,612 60,055
Others A 104,740 25,388
6,763,814 9,744,362
Revenue from other sources REHMRRZEEEE
Rental income HelA 21,571 23,150
6,785,385 9,767,512
Discontinued operation: BRIEREEL
Revenue from contracts with customers FHEBFEHREERFE15FEBRNZ
within the scope of HKFRS 15 BEEAHNEEEE
Online game operation TR EE - 355
- 355
6,785,385 9,767,867
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

9. Revenue (Continued) 9. EEEm@m

In the following table, revenue is disaggregated by primary geographical MTR - EEBREEMETIGNEEBRE
market and timing of revenue recognition. The table also includes a REEDH o TRANAEEDIFEFHERE
reconciliation of the disaggregated revenue with the Group’s reportable B ] 230 LR -
segment:

Continuing operations

BELEER
Real estate
and property Trading of
Yacht club Training investment  commodities  Construction Others Total

For the year ended BE-5-ZF BHER
31 December 2020 TZR=T-ALEE EREH 3 NERE RFRS Bg Eff &3t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn ThR ThRL ThR T Tz Tz

Primary geographical market ~ ¥EE5

PRC A 10,000 8,915 532,724 6,129,006 - 104,740 6,785,385
Timing of revenue recognition & ¥3EREARH

- Atapoint in time ~RE-EEE - - 519,541 6,129,006 - 104,740 6,753,287
- Transferred over time R —BERERES 1,612 8,915 - - = = 10,527
1,612 8,915 519,541 6,129,006 - 104,740 6,763,814
Revenue from other sources ~ REEAMRIFZ &£ 8,388 - 13,183 - - - 21,571
10,000 8,915 532,724 6,129,006 - 104,740 6,785,385

Discontinued

Continuing operations operation

BRI

BETEEH A=%K

Real estate Provision of

andproperty  Trading of onling game
Yacht club Traning ~ investment ~ commodities ~ Construction Others ~ Subtofal services Total

For the year ended EETE-NE FHER RS
31 December 2019 tZA=T-BLLEE izt Bl NERE ARG B4 At I i1 &t

HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKBOOD  HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKSOO0
Thn  TEm  TEm TR TEr TR T TEn TR

Primary geographical market IEHETS
PRC hE 68,820 49089 4380350 5231585 12,280 2,388 9767512 36 9767867
Timing of revenue recognition ELBRINY
- Atapoint in fime -RE-RES - - 436595 5281585 - 2,38 9622938 - 962938
- Transtened over fme -R-BERRED 60,055 49,089 - - 12280 - 14 51279
60,095 49089 4365965 523158 12,280 2,388 9744302 36 9447
Revenue from other sources REEMRE2 228 8,765 - 1438 - - - 23,150 - 23,150
68,820 49089 4380350 5231585 12,280 25,388 9767512 36 9767867
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e E

R e

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

10. Other income, gains/(losses) — net

10. HAiBA - drss (E18) F8

2020 2019
—EoEE —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FAT
Continuing operations: BEREER
Interest income from bank balances IRITHERRIF BULA 18,106 13,530
Interest income from bond receivable FEURME 0 F B UA 12,135 516
Gain from derecognition of financial TR IEEREG HM s
guarantee contract 33,419 27,348
Recovery of bad debt written off AR SE e - 6,212
Government grants (note (a)) BB (H5E@) 2,221 1,063
Dividend income Rz B U A 9,100 5,370
Foreign exchange loss — net HNE ETIE — FER (1,278) (31,903)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - BFEREEBE
equipment (123) @)
Others Al 12,153 18,652
85,733 40,786
Discontinued operation: BRIEREER
Others (note 17) HAt (B EE17) = (22)
85,733 40,764

Note:

Included in government grants of approximately HK$1,423,000 (2019:
approximately HK$1,063,000) represented subsidies from PRC local
government for the encouragement of development of culture and
creative companies. The Group recognises the government subsidies
when it fulfills all the conditions specified in the subsidy notice or relevant
law and regulations.

Included in government grants of approximately HK$798,000 (2019:
Nil) represented subsidies obtained from Employment Support Scheme
(“ESS”) under the Anti-epidemic Fund launched by the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region Government supporting the payroll of the
Group’s employees. Under the ESS, the Group has to commit to spend
these grants on payroll expenses, and not to reduce employee headcount
below prescribed levels for a specified period of time. The Group does not
have other unfulfiled obligations relating to the ESS.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B R B L

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

11. Finance costs 11. BERA
2020 2019
—EoEE —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Continuing operations: EREER
Interest on bank borrowings HRITIEREFE 278,928 150,092
Interest on other borrowings EMERAFE 267,247 288,214
Interest on note payables J,'éfﬁfr%)%ﬂm 6,331 -
Interest on corporate bonds NEEHFNFE 96,737 86,753
Interest on PRC corporate bonds FEIAFIEHFRNFE 19,356 2,598
Interest on loans from related parties BE B R RS (FsT44()
(note 44(a)) 72,740 22,462
Imputed interest on consideration payable JET Bk E F) 5 (H3E34)
(note 34) 18,826 18,688
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENTE 3,086 1,600
763,251 570,407
Amount capitalised (note (a)) KENME 2T (@) (642,767) (338,624)
120,484 231,783
Note: MaE -
(@  The weighted average capitalisation rate for the year on fund’s borrowed is @ AFEEAESHMETIERNLFRE
at a rate of 6.51% (2019: 7.11%) per annum. 76.51% (=T —NF : 7.11%) ©
12. Income tax (credit)/expense 12. Fifs T% (&) BxX
The amount of taxation in the consolidated statement of comprehensive FEE2ERAEFTANRIBSREE
income represents:
2020 2019
—EC-EF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FE T FAT
Continuing operations: FEREER
Current tax: BNERFRIE -
-PRCEIT — B EMEN 7,592 153,070
- PRC LAT — B T B E R 47,795 408,299
55,387 561,369
Deferred tax (note 35): FEIER A (MI5E35) -
— Current year —REE (75,642) (28,824)
Income tax (credit)/expense T8 (%), FxX (20,255) 532,645
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

12. Income tax (credit)/expense (Continued) 12. FIBHRGER) BX@
(a) Corporate income tax () TEMEH
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is required since the RAEREFE - BRAEBERES
Group has no assessable profits for both years. WERERT AT - HBAREBFE
L B o
PRC EIT has been provided at a rate of 25% (2019: 25%). PR RS IRIZ25%(ZE— 14 -
25%) KT R GHR B -
(b) PRC withholding Income tax (b) HEIFEHAEH
PRC withholding income tax of 10% shall be levied on the RABEKTHARIBERZZZENF
dividends declared by the companies established in the PRC to —A— B ZEREAEF P RIEINE
their foreign investors out of their profits earned after 1 January B EIRAT HY A% B 32 10% A B 2= 25 4
2008. A lower 5% withholding tax rate may be applied when FEAEH - ERBEMBAFTRES
the immediate holding companies of the PRC subsidiaries PR S & R B B A B R L Y
are incorporated or operated in Hong Kong and fulfill the ISR T HER E N B EER A B
requirements to the tax treaty arrangements between the PRC T AIERAS%MEETEIIRE -

and Hong Kong.

() PRCLAT (c) "HELitIZER

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on A IR E R B iR (E (B &
the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales of YIZEMSFENBRITIRIESRX
properties less deductible expenditures including lease charges (BREBENHEEFIECHEER KT
of prepaid lease payments and all property development BYEERRAI) ) IZZEREIONE
expenditures, which is included in the consolidated statement of B0% L - WRkRE 2 E KRN
comprehensive income as income tax. The Group has estimated VEFTIS L - AEEIREH EE AT 5
the tax provision for LAT according to the requirements set forth AR ROER AR E RT3 LI E R
in the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations. The actual LAT TE MBI IE R - B E L IEE
liabilities are subject to the determination by the tax authorities MEERBHEIPIRYERRIER
upon completion of the property development projects and STAEETE - MBI TRE
the tax authorities might disagree with the basis on which the REBEETERN T HIGER TR
provision for LAT is calculated. 1o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B R B L

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

12.

Income tax (credit)/expense (Continued)

The income tax (credit)/expense for the year can be reconciled to
the (loss)/profit before income tax in the consolidated statement of

12. FiIBHLGER), B )

AEEMFH(ESR) MXEFE 2R
FAZBAEHAT(ER), e e HiRm

comprehensive income as follows: N
2020 2019
-t 33 —NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FAT
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETS B AT (F518), % F
- Continuing operations R S (810,877) 1,000,740
Tax calculated at: BRAT T RETERRIE
the domestic tax rate 25% (2019: 25%) B AT R25%(—ZF—4F : 25%) (202,719) 250,185
Tax effect of revenue not taxable BEZRHIRANTRISHE
for tax purposes (17,472) (27,606)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible TR MBS RS E
for tax purposes 46,192 9,680
Tax effect of temporary differences not RER R EENTGTE
recognised 29,489 (46,238)
Utilisation of tax losses previously not A Z A AERNFEEEE
recognised (7,756) (3,386)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERNHIESEEN S 2 83,569 43,686
LAT T HBIBERL 47,795 408,299
Tax effect of EIT on LAT ERERE L EERNT G E (11,949) (102,079)
Others HAh 12,596 -
Income tax (credit)/expense 158 (%), X (20,255) 532,545
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

13. BRATISBIBAZ AT (B5R) 5E R

13. (Loss)/profit before income tax

(Loss)/profit before income tax is arrived at after charging:

BRPTSEAT(B1R), (aFIE R T 5IEE

2020 2019
—E-EF —E—NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FAT
Continuing operations: HEREEK .
Cost of inventories FERAK 6,469,228 5,633,180
Write-down of inventories FERR 136,826 -
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses TR 55 X #9717 &AL 2 6,606,054 5,633,180
Acquisition-related costs (included W ABRAR AR (RF ATT IR SZ )
in administrative expenses) - 518
Auditor’s remuneration ZEEB &
— Annual audit —FEFZ 3,000 3,680
— Other audit and non-audit services — H b2z I EE IR 470 2,095
Amortisation of other intangible assets HE bR E EE S (GEASEERA)
(included in cost of sales) 36,875 46,015
Depreciation e
— Owned property, plant and equipment —BEME - BEMEE 10,992 12,666
— Leasehold land for own use —BEREE L 6,342 6,433
— Properties leased for own use —HEEBANmE 5,499 4,671
22,833 23,670
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME - BEMEHEEE
equipment 123 2
Impairment losses on goodwill EEREEE 18,566 177,347
Impairment losses on other HibmpEEREEE
intangible assets 419,802 138,873
Impairment losses on property, plant Y% - BB RERERERE
and equipment 34,687 54,611
Impairment losses on financial and TRRANEERERE—F58
contract assets — net 83,765 45,664
Short-term leases expenses RHRERY 2,111 79
Direct operating expenses arising from BOESWAZIREYEMEEZ
investment properties that generated HELERY
rental income 1,621 2,855
Discontinued operation: RIS .
Depreciation e
— Owned property, plant and equipment —BEaYE - BEMERE - 132
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

14. Employee costs and five highest paid individuals 14. EERARANVESHFA L

2020 2019
—E-FHE —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHTT
Continuing operations: BEREER
Employee costs (including directors) EENAN(BEES)BHE
comprise:
Wages, salaries and other benefits ITE - HeREMER 123,591 117,213
Contributions on defined contribution FUE HBORIRET SR
retirement plans 808 6,570
124,399 123,783
Discontinued operation: BRIEREEK
Employee costs (including directors) EBENAR(BREES)RIE
comprise:
Wages, salaries and other benefits IE - FiekEMER = 4,051
Contributions on defined contribution A EHEFER IR SIH R
retirement plans - 586
- 4,637
124,399 128,420
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, one AEEREEEFREET  —AZZE—N
(2019: none) was director of the Company whose emoluments are FEB)RAREIESE  BEZMEERT
included in the disclosures in note 15 below. The emoluments of the XHFE1SHERRE - R TR (ZF—N
remaining four (2019: five) individuals were as follows: F:RB)ALTZBIENT
2020 2019
—E-EF —T-hHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHTT
Salaries and other benefits e MHEAMRER 5,260 7,879
Contributions on defined contribution FEHFURRETSIH R
retirement plans 53 146
53113 8,025
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

14. Employee costs and five highest paid individuals

(Continued)

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

14. EERARANVESHALT @

BRAMSNATEE

Number of individuals

AH
2020 2019
—E-TF —T-hF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
THET T
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7C £ 1,500,000/ 7T 4 3
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7C 22,000,000/ 7T - 2

15. Directors’ emoluments

(a) Directors’ emoluments

The remuneration of every director of the Company paid/payable
by the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out

15. EEME
(@) EEMS

ARERBE-T-BET-A
=t -BLFEEN/ BHAARE

below: HEFZMEeFHIIOT
Employer’s
contribution
to retirement
Salaries and benefit  Discretionary
Name of director g Fees allowances scheme bonus Total
EEEHK
e HeREY  BAEMHER A @t
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
THER TR THER TR TR
Executive Directors Y17ES
Mr. Yao Jianhui (“JH Yao”) ke A ([ ) - - - - -
Mr. Zhang Xiaodong REEREE 600 - - 50 650
Ms. Xia Lingjie iRzt 240 721 6 205 1,172
Non-executive Director FHTES
Ms. Zhan Yushan R T 240 360 18 50 668
Independent Non-executive
Directors BYFHTES
Ms. He Suying CEI S:a 240 - 12 20 272
Dr. Tang Lai Wah HBEET 240 - 12 20 272
Mr. Wong Chun Bong FiRA%AE 240 - - 20 260
1,800 1,081 48 365 3,294
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR R R M R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

15. Directors’ emoluments (Continued) 15. EEME @
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (@ E=E#M<=@)
The remuneration of every director of the Company paid/payable rEEREBEEZE_ZT—NLF+=ZA
by the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 is set out =t+—BLEFEENERRRARAE
below: BEZZMeEINAT
Employer’s
contribution
to retirement
Salaries and benefit  Discretionary
Name of director EEpE Fees allowances scheme bonus Total
EEXRRK
e  BelEM  BAEEIET Bigiea st
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL THR THEL TR THL
Executive Directors HiTEE
Mr. JH Yao HhEEL - - - - -
Mr. Li Minbin (note (€)) ZEUR LA E) - - - - -
Mr. Zhang Xiaodong RERLE 800 - - - 800
Ms. Xia Lingjie (note (g)) BB L(MEQ) 203 701 35 109 1,048
Non-executive Directors FHUTES
Mr. Lau Wan Po (note (i) =R A ) 125 - 6 - 131
Mr. Wu Teng (note (d)) REEEE () - 250 8 - 258
Ms. Zhan Yushan LT 260 362 17 - 639
Mr. Chen Kaiben (note (f) BRS04 (BN EE() - - - - -

Independent Non-executive

Directors BUKHITES
Mr. Chen Zetong (note (n)) BOEMR S A (B EE(h) 100 - 5 - 105
Ms. He Suying MFERLT 260 - 13 - 273
Dr. Tang Lai Wah HBERL 260 - 13 - 273
Mr. Wong Chun Bong FiRFAEAE 260 - - - 260
2,268 1,313 97 109 3,787
Notes: F3E
(@  No arrangements under which a director waived or agreed to @ BEZE_EFR-T-NF+=A
waive any emoluments during the years ended 31 December 2020 =+—BIFE - UEEEHREXR
and 2019. No inducement for joining the Group or compensation EMETAME 2 THE - FA - K&
for loss of office was paid or payable to any directors during the BB S5 E T E
year (2019: Same). FERMANREE 2 S8k Ve R Bt
WECZ-AE RL)-
(o)  Bonus is determined by the Salary Review Committee with ) TARHFHRIZESLELE
reference to the performance of the Group. BEREEMET
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

%A

B 7S R R Y

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

15. Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

(@

(b)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(c) The remuneration shown represented remuneration received from
the Group by these directors in their capacity as employee to the
Group and/or in their capacity as directors of the Company.

(d) Mr. Wu Teng was resigned as the non-executive director of the
Company on 30 May 2019.

(e) Mr. Li Minbin was resigned as the executive director of the
Company on 30 May 2019.

() Mr. Chen Kaiben was resigned as the non-executive director of the
Company on 30 May 2019.

Q) Ms. Xia Lingjie was re-appointed as the executive director of the
Company on 27 March 2019.

(h) Mr. Chen Zetong resigned as the independent non-executive
director of the Company on 30 May 2019.

(i) Mr. Lau Wan Po resigned as the non-executive director of the
Company on 30 May 2019.

) During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group does
not pay consideration to any third parties for making available
directors’ services (2019: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

As at 31 December 2020, there is no loans, quasi-loans and
other dealing arrangements in favour of directors, controlled
bodies corporate by and connected entities with such directors
(2019: Nil).

Save as disclosed in elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, no significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group’s business to which the Group
was a party and in which a director of the Group had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year (2019: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR R R M R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

16. Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The Group’s
contributions to the MPF Scheme are calculated at 5% of the salaries
and wages subject to a monthly maximum amount of contribution
of HK$1,500 per employee and vest fully with employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries established in the PRC are
members of a central pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute certain
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and wages to the central
pension scheme to fund the retirement benefits. The local municipal
government undertakes to assume the retirement benefits obligations
of all existing and future retired employees of these subsidiaries. The
only obligation of these subsidiaries with respect to the central pension
scheme is to meet the required contributions under the scheme.

16. RKBRIGHE

AREERIBEFBRTIERTESETEUEDIAH
BRERZBBRERLANIELTESTE
(MafEEstal]) - AEENSES S EIE
ZHARBEEFHERTEZS%  WAEE
BEEA&ZS1,5008TTRIE - MAEZ R
EERAEEETEERR 2 EESM
5o

AEERFEK A B A R EE B8 A H
BB SR RIRKR S EIMKE -
ZEMBRRARREEAFHFERTENS
THO AR REARSEABIHK  UXNE
BRKEA o BHMBUFAEZSHE QR
PrERA RARRENES 2 RIKEFRE -
ZENBRRH T RER S EINE—RE
EVERETBIPFR Z K -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

17. Discontinued operation in prior year 17. LFECRIEREEK

On 29 June 2019, the Company entered into a sale and purchase RZZE—NFARAZTHIAB  KRFEIL

agreement to dispose of the entire equity interest of Kingworld Holdings BE W& - LIRS RE1ETE EKingworld

Limited (“Kingworld Holdings”) which carried out the Group’s provision Holdings Limited ([ Kingworld Holdings ) &

of online game services at a cash consideration of HK$1. The disposal EBIEAE - R AR ANEEIREEREER

was completed on 29 June 2019. %o HEFER - NFAZTARE

B o

The revenue, results and cash flows of Kingworld Holdings were as Kingworld Holdings A& 388 « 2@ KR &
follows: mEWT

1 January to

29 June

2019

—E-hF

—HA—H=ZE

NAZTARE

Note HK$'000

BiaE FAT

Revenue SR 355

Cost of sales SHEE R A (6,157)

Selling expenses HEMX ©)

Administrative expenses TR (4,748)

Other income, gains/(losses) HaUe A - Wezs(E1E) (22)

Loss before operation 4R RIS 1E (10,581)

Finance costs [EE= NN -

Loss before income tax expense BrET1S TR B > BB 18 (10,581)

Income tax expense FrSHER -

Loss after tax from discontinued operation REBERIEEEEERBRTIZERE (10,581)

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERT B A B 40(c)(i) 41,411

Profit for the year from REDRIEEE X AFEE &
discontinued operation 30,830
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

17. Discontinued operation in prior year (Continued) 17. LFECARLEREER @
2019
—E-hF
HK$’000
FAT
Cash flows from discontinued operation: ERILECEERNESRE :
Net cash outflows from operating activities TR FTEA ISR FRE (528)
Details of the assets and liabilities disposed of, and the calculation of BEHEEEMABBMATERE G EEZ
the profit or loss on disposal, are disclosed in note 40(c). IR EE40(C)HEE -
A profit of approximately HK$41,411,000 arose on the disposal of ! & Kingworld Holdings FIT E 4 89 & %1l )
Kingworld Holdings, being the proceeds of disposal less the carrying 41,411,000 7T (Bl i & S5 18 P45 SRE RT
amount of the subsidiary’s net liabilities and attributable goodwill. No BARABEFELEGEEZREAE) - &
tax charge or credit arose from the disposal. EREWEEATARIBRSZHER
On 29 June 2019, the Company completed the disposal of its entire RZZF—NFRNAZ+TNA  KARTKE
equity interest in Kingworld Holdings. & H Kingworld Holdings &) 2 S i »
18. Dividends 18. RE
The directors of the Company did not recommend payment of any final AAREBEETEEMNBE_ZE-_TF+=
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil). A=+t —BIFERNEARARE (=R
—NEF &)
19. (Loss)/earnings per share 19. BR(ER) BRI
The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share NARIEBRERRE ABGERERRE
attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the Company is based on SEUER)/BRREATEUETE ¢
the following data:
2020 2019
ki 323 ZE-NF
’000 000
T A% T
Number of shares R
Weighted average number of ordinary STESREAREE(ER), BFr e
shares for the purposes of basic and T mARE R
diluted (loss)/earnings per share 4,550,105 4,333,369
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

19.

(Loss)/earnings per share (Continued)

(@

(b)

()

For continuing and discontinued operations

19. SR(EE) B @)

(a) FFECERCKRIEEEXR

ms
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FAT
(Loss)/profit for the purpose of STEEREAR(EE) BRI
calculating basic (loss)/earnings (518),/ %7
per share (735,144) 385,850
For continuing operations (b) RFEKLEBMES
2020 2019
—E-TF —T-hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FAT
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to "R &G A B AREE
owners of the Company (B18),/ %7 (735,144) 385,850
Less: Profit for the year from B RBERIEEEEBT
discontinued operation AN S5 A - (30,830)
(Loss)/profit for the purpose of TERAFELCEEBHNFRER
calculating basic (loss)/earnings (BB, /B (ER), &5
per share from continuing operations (735,144) 355,020
From discontinued operation (c) REEKRILEEEK
2020 2019
—BCEHE —F-hEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FAT
Profit for the purpose of calculating STERB R R R EBNTRER
basic earnings per share from B 895 A
discontinued operation - 30,830

There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares outstanding for
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

20. Property, plant and equipment 20. V1% - BMERRZRE
Land and
properties
leased for
own use
carried Office Motor Leasehold Construction
at cost equipment vehicles  improvements Yacht Buildings in progress Total
REATIR 2
HEEBAD HE
TRIE WAERE RE NEEE it BT ERIR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T TR ThL Thr T T
Cost BA&
At 1 January 2019 RZF-hF-F—-H 121,647 6,740 2,819 41,322 3,744 5,352 32,764 214,388
Additions RE 23,19 2,005 311 13,587 - - - 39,099
Acquisition of subsidlaries WM BAE

(note 40(a)) (MiEE40(8)) - 3B 13 - - - - 51
Acauisition of subsidiaries Y& FLFHEH TR B

under common control A (FifE40(0))

(note 40(0) - 382 303 3,046 - - - 3821
Disposals e (7,266) (289) - - - - - (7,554)
Disposals of subsidiaries &M BAT)

(note 40(c)) (PizE40()) - (2,380) - (869) - - - (8,243)
Exchange difference BN EHE (2,386) (631) (204) (849) (285) (122) (748) (5,125)
At 31 December 2019and  H=E—NF

1 January 2020 +ZA=+-8k

“T-%F5-A-H 135,191 5,966 3332 56,243 3,459 5,230 32,016 241,437
Additions AE 29,135 1,915 556 19,119 - - 5,641 56,366
Disposals e - (56) (281) (587) - - - (924)
Exchange difference EREH 8,051 499 182 5,747 414 305 2157 18,255
At 31 December 2020 KRBT

+ZA=1+-H 173,217 8,324 3,789 80,522 3873 5,535 39,814 315,134
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z —Z - F

20. Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Ft+_A=+—HIFrFE

20. ¥ - MENRRE@

Land and
properties
leased for Office Motor Leasehold Construction
own use equipment vehicles  improvements Yacht Buildings in progress Total
HEk
BAK BE
THRNE WAERE RE WELE i 4 £ EEIR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT TFaT TFET TAT TAT TART FERT TFaT
Accumulated depreciation EitHiERAEFE

and impairment losses
At 1 January 2019 RZZF-hF-F-H - 3475 653 10,981 861 106 - 16,076
Depreciation & 11,004 1,415 559 10,215 428 181 - 23,802
Disposals e (386) (214) - - - - - (600)
Impairment losses HERE - 202 31 20,817 868 - 32,693 54,611
Disposals of subsidiaries ~ HEHBAA]

(note 40(c) (Fitzkd0(0)) - 2,116) - (409) - - - (2,525)
Exchange difference ExEE (177) (448) (55) (142) (48 6) 677) (1569)
At 31 December 2019and  H=F-NF

1 January 2020 +ZA=+-8k

—“ZT-%5-8-H 10,441 2,314 1,188 41,462 2,109 281 32,016 89,811
Depreciation & 11,841 1,612 668 8,197 336 179 - 22,833
Disposals st - (50) (158) %) - - - (304)
Impairment losses HEES 34,687 - - - - - - 34,687
Exchange difference BHER 2732 80 413 3,398 14 25 1,870 8,659
At 31 December 2020 i e

TZA=1-H 59,701 3,956 2,111 52,961 2,586 485 33,886 155,686
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2020 WZZZTF

+ZA=1-H 113,576 4,368 1,678 27,561 1,287 5,050 5,928 159,448
At 31 December 2019 R-E-hE

+-A=+-H 124,750 3,652 2,144 14,781 1,350 4,949 - 151,626
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR R R M R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

20. Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the outbreak of COVID-19
pandemic and the subsequent quarantine measures as well as the
travel restrictions imposed by many countries have had negative
impacts to the global economy, business environment and directly and
indirectly affect the operations of the Group. The Group suspended
its operation of golf practising court under other segment for a certain
period during the year due to the mandatory government quarantine
measures in an effort to contain the spread of the pandemic. As such,
the financial performance of the operation of golf practising court was
affected in certain aspects, including reduction in revenue and results.
The global health emergency resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic
has led to a significant decline in the demand for the services from the
operation of golf practising court, primarily due to the Group suffering
from enforced golf practising court closure. The operation of golf
practising court continues to be impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic
even after the golf practising court is reopened. The timing and
extent of a recovery of consumer behaviour and willingness to spend
discretionary income on golf practising court may delay the Group’s
ability to generate significant revenue until such time as consumer
behaviour normalises and consumer spending recovers.

Accordingly, the Group assesses the recoverable amount of the
leasehold land for own use allocated to its respective cash-generating
unit (“CGU(s)”) and as a result the carrying amount of the leasehold
land for own use was written down to its recoverable amount of
approximately HK$59,144,000. An impairment loss of approximately
HK$34,687,000 was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income for continuing operations.

As at 31 December 2020, the recoverable amount of the CGU related
to operation of golf practising court have been determined based on
value in use calculations, which is arrived at on the basis of valuation
carried out by an independent professional valuer. The calculation
uses cash flow projections based on the most recent financial budgets
approved by the directors of the Company covering a five-year period.
The key assumptions for the cash flow projections are those regarding
the annual projected revenue over five-year period, growth rate and
discount rate. The annual projected revenue over five-year period
ranged from approximately HK$13,708,000 to 16,037,000. Cash
flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using an estimated
weighted average growth rate of 3%. The growth rate does not exceed
the long-term average growth rate for the business in which the CGU
operates. The pre-tax discount rate used is 15.88%.

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment amounting to approximately HK$5,050,000 was pledged as
security for the Group’s bank loan (note 31(a)).

0. V% BMERRE@

HEZZZZF+A=+—RHLEFE -
COVID-19% 1B 18 8 MB B E B A K %
ERREEMHLDITRAIE2IEE - SRR
BERAEYE  THERHEFETAS
BREIE o HABUTERENE Bl 14 AR 1 e A
BHEBNELR  AEERFR—ERFER
FEBREAMD NS B RKRE S
o Al mRKERBISEENIFRE
EETHESINFE  pPRESEBERER
B o FICOVID-195& 15 5] #E /) 2 Bk Ze B {3
FEMFERYHRBMAIRE S IEE MRS
EXEETR  EXEZRAALAEESH
KRR B 5B FIBAE o BN = R IRER
BEER aRXEREEnEENeRE
COVID-19 EMEEZ R E - HBETT
A IER R RIRE SHE S B RS RE 5
EENBERANEREA S HEAEERES
EAXSAEEENEN  EEHBETAMR
BIEFERHEBEBEKFEIRIEAL -

Eit - AEEFEOEEESARSELS
([ ReEEEN])MBEES AL
WEe%E - WHALBHEES AL rRE
BB 2 B A U Bl & 58 4959,144,00078 7T °
RiraiEm kEMEERERANERZIFE
KL EE TSR E 1B 4 534,687,000/ 7T ©

N-ZE-_TFE+-_A=+—H BEHEKK
REIZEEBENRSEELEMMNATRES
HOERNFAEERNEET  WRELEE
(HERMETT 2 HEEESE - ZeTERAE
AR RIE B HEME 2 R 2 L B Sl HRE
FEEMRSREEAEL - B RESTB A
FrRARNBEREBR BB FTHEEEA
EERE BRERREZRE - AFH
FETER & FEFEN T 413,708,000 7T =
16,037,000/8 7 c B AFH 2 HERE
FE ARG INE T E R EINHEY - ZIER
ENBBB MRS EE BN ETTEERD
FHREPERE - FIRANRTAIIREA
15.88% °

MN-Z-TE+-A=+—0  REEAD
5,050,000 T Y% « RE R&ED TH&
A UEAAREBIRTERZ RS (M
31(@a)) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

The Group has obtained the right to use a parcel of land in the PRC for its
operation of golf practising court. The lease term is 17 years. Lump sum
payments were made upfront to lease the land, and there are no ongoing
payments to be made under the terms of the land lease.

(b) Properties leased for own use

The Group has obtained the right to use properties as its various offices
through tenancy agreements with independent third parties and a related
party, a company in which Mr. JH Yao has significant influence over the
related party. The leases with independent third parties typically run for an
initial period of 2 to 5 years while the lease with the related party runs for
an initial period of 20 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.

Glory Sun Land Group Limited Annual Report 2020

20. Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 20. Y% - BERRZRE®
For the year ended 31 December 2019, management identified (E_E-NF+A=T—BILLEFE -
impairment indicator of certain office equipment, motor vehicles, PR RENDBNREE TS BEER
leasehold improvements, yacht and construction in progress due to EETHAZRM - 98 - HEMERE -
decline in performance in the segments of yacht club as well as training. PR RARTRREIRREDRR - AEBFE
The Group assessed the recoverable amounts of those property, plant PRESERESEEENNZEDE - BE
and equipment allocated to their respective CGUs and as a result the MEEERRIRE S5 - Bt - ZEWE - W
carrying amount of these property, plant and equipment was written B REFEREEBRZEE TS 5 &S
down to their recoverable amount of approximately HK$1,914,000 5> HB & AT Y [B] 5 58 53 B 40 /51,914,00078
in the segment of yacht club and approximately HK$272,000 TCRK#9272,0008 70 c RirEERELEME
in the segment of training. An impairment loss of approximately NS R AER IR B I B E E I HBER B
HK$54,611,000 was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit #9/354,611,0008 7T - HAR S o 20 R%
or loss and other comprehensive income for continuing operations = 315> 58 Bl EE A #931,870,0007 7T K %)
of which the amount of approximately HK$31,870,000 arose in the 22,741,000 7T ° %5 & E A BB
segment of yacht club and approximately HK$22,741,000 arose in the 2 B AU KRR IR S Bk
segment of training respectively. The key input and assumptions of the MosEooF R i o
impairment assessment of these CGUs are summarised in note 22 to
the financial statements.
The analysis of carrying amount of right-of-use assets by class of RABEEESI SN AREEREED
underlying asset is as follows: T
2020 2019
—ECEF —Z-NF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
P s FExT FAT
Land and properties leased for own IR ERAFIER 2 A EEE A
used, carried at depreciated cost ) EES
— Leasehold land for own use —BAEETH (@) 59,144 96,618
— Properties leased for own use —HEEE A= (b) 54,432 28,132
113,576 124,750
Notes: fsE
(@)  Leasehold land for own use (@) BAEELH

AEECESTE R mOERE - A
RIELRRRIRES - BRRI7TF - B
RAS N —RUERBARE L - BIRE
T EERR - T SRES ERFR -

(b) HEFEBRANYE
RIBFEBE=H REES (B LEY
ZRERAEEAYENZ AR 2
Etpeg - AEBECESEZSWERER
WA ZHER - BT E=F 2 HERTE
M BE2E5% o HEEJEH 2 HEVH A
H20%F - MERR TR EREERE - B
B 5 TR R AEF -



21. Investment properties

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

21. REYE

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Fair value A¥E
Completed properties held for BEAEENR REREEZ
rental purpose and/or for capital WIYE
appreciation:
At 1 January Bn—A—H 1,055,973 727,024
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 40(a)) U B BT 8 2 7] (Bt aE40(a)) - 408,672
Disposal k= (11,675) -
Fair value loss N EEE (34,734) (56,168)
Exchange differences EH %R 59,471 (23,555)
At 31 December ®w+—-—A=+—8 1,069,035 1,055,973
Investment properties under ERREWE :
development:
At 1 January R—H—H 4,321,668 2,103,049
Additions NE 390,071 677,012
Acquisition of subsidiaries under U i KR T E A A
common control (note 40(b)) (FzE40(b)) - 1,647,004
Fair value (loss)/gain AFE(ER), W (17,563) 33,830
Exchange differences EH =58 271,330 (139,227)
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 4,965,506 4,321,668
Total #aEt 6,034,541 5,377,641
Unrealised loss on properties revaluation T AMRFEESOVESHATIR
included in profit or loss for the financial &8 — B E5%
year — continuing operations (52,297) (22,338)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

21.

Investment properties (Continued)

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31 December
2020 and 2019 have been carried out by Valtech Valuation Advisory
Limited, an independent professional valuer who holds a recognised
and relevant professional qualification and has recent experience in the
location and category of the investment property being valued.

The valuation for completed properties was derived using the direct
comparison approach based on recent market prices without any
significant adjustment being made to the market observable data.

The valuation for investment properties under development was
derived using the direct comparison approach by making reference to
comparable sales evidence as available in the property market. The
construction cost incurred and estimated construction cost to complete
the development as at the date of valuation are also taken into account.

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during the year.

The fair value measurement is based on the above properties’ highest
and best use, which does not differ from their actual use.

During the year, there were no transfers into or out of level 3 or any
other level (2019: Nil).

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of investment properties
amounting to approximately HK$2,395,811,000 (2019: approximately
HK$332,787,000) was pledged as security for the Group’s bank loans
(note 31(a)) and approximately HK$1,126,955,000 (2019: approximately
HK$1,732,941,000) for the Group’s other borrowings (note 31(b)).
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21.

BEWE @)
N-B-—BER-T-AE+-A=+—
A AEEREMEOATE Y RB TS

HEMDIEFEERRREL - ZAERR
BERAMBENEREL - BITHRGRE
BEREMENOHI LR T EEHELR

RITYEZGEIREBINHERAERL
ROEAERSE - BWEHAEBRENTISEUE
TEHEMEREE -

FRIRENMEZMENSEYETS LTS
ZABLBHERBIRAERLLEESE
BEMAERYCEEAZEKA N K%
HETEERATEE EENA

FRN - HEDALESE -
@$@ﬂ%ﬂ%#ii%%2?ﬁ&?gm
& ZERERERARTETR -

FA - WEE AL E = R E S
F2BER(ZT—NEF &) -

RZEZEF+ZA=+—H0 EHEHE

492,395,811,000 8 L (Z T — N F : 4

332,787,000 8 7t ) M EMELC T &

B LMEAREERITER(H E31a)

N #91,126,955,0008 c(ZZE—NF : 4

17&9M0%%nﬁ$%lﬁ@%ﬁ(ﬁ}
(o)) HIEHR M -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B R B L

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

22. Goodwill 22. &
HK$’000
FET

Cost 2%
At 1 January 2019 RZE—NF—HA—H 664,589
Derecognised on disposal of subsidiaries (note 40(c)) # |- #E3 H & B A 7 (M 5E40(c)) (355,729)
Exchange differences P& =78 (7,050)
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 —NFF+—A=+—HE=ZE=-ZFTF—HF—H 301,810
Exchange differences ER%%E 17,625
At 31 December 2020 N_ZE_TF+_A=+—H 319,435
Accumulated impairment losses EiPRERE
At 1 January 2019 RZZ-NF—-H—H 468,331
Impairment losses REEE 177,347
Derecognised on disposal of subsidiaries (note 40(c)) # |- #Es2 L & B A 7 (F5E40(c)) (355,729)
Exchange differences PE W =58 (6,314)
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 —NWFF+ZA=+—HE=ZE=_FF—HF—H 283,635
Impairment losses /)WEEEETE\ 18,566
Exchange differences X ZER 17,234
At 31 December 2020 RZZEZZEF+=A=+—H 319,435
Carrying amount SREE
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-ZTF+-A=+—8 -
At 31 December 2019 RZZE-NF+HA=+—H 18,175
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

22. Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at acquisition,
to the CGUs that are expected to benefit from that business
combination. The carrying amount of goodwill (net of accumulated
impairment losses) had been allocated according to operating segment

22.

BHE W

REBAHTRENAEENRBERESIES
MRS EREBA M CREELEN - 7
BIREE MR RERERR) DREKED
AR BT

as follows:
2020 2019
et St 553 —ZT-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FAT
Operation of a yacht club K —EEREEAT
Shenzhen Dapeng Yacht Club Company  Z&YIIKBEEE & HR A 7
Limited (“Dapeng Yacht Club”) (TR S 1) = -
Provision of training services R4 HI RS
Shenzhen Dapeng International Education Z#IIIABSBIFE B B R A F)
Company Limited (“Dapeng International ([ KESEIFEZE |)
Education”) = -
Real estate and property investment EERYERE
Yunfu Baoneng Property Limited EHFBREFEBRA
(“Yunfu Baoneng”) (IEFE]) = 18,175
- 18,175

The recoverable amounts of CGUs are determined based on the higher
of fair values less cost to disposal and value in use calculation.

As at 31 December 2020, the recoverable amount of the CGU related
to Yunfu Baoneng have been determined based on value in use
calculation, which is arrived at on the basis of valuation carried out by
an independent professional valuer. The calculation uses cash flow
projections based on the most recent financial budget approved by the
directors of the Company covering a seven-year period.

The key assumptions for the cash flow projections are those regarding
the discount rate, annual projected revenue over seven-year period
and growth rate. The Group estimates discount rate using pre-tax rates
that reflect current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the CGUs. The annual projected revenue over
seven-year period and growth rate are based on past performance and
expectation of market development.

Glory Sun Land Group Limited Annual Report 2020

ReEL SN KRESEERRFER
HERAREHEELRSEET °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B R B L

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

22. Goodwill (continued) 22. @j%(%)

The key assumptions for the cash flow projections used in 2020 and RZBZTFER - NFRERETERA
2019 are as follows: %A E’]E;cfﬁ’*mqu—l—

Dapeng Yunfu

Yacht Club Baoneng

PN s = EFERE

Discount rate BRER & N/A T A 17.23%

(2019: 20%) (2019: 38%)

(ZZF—NF : 20%) (ZZ—%F : 38%)

TEMFERER SRR
(F7#&7T)

N/A @A
(2019: Ranged from
51,236 to 109,063)
(ZE—NF :NTF

Annual projected revenue over
seven-year period (HK$’000)

Ranged from

28,870 to 348,693
1128,870%348,693
(2019: Ranged from

As at 31 December 2019, the recoverable amount of the CGU
related to Dapeng Yacht Club was determined based on value in use
calculation, which was arrived at on the basis of valuation carried out
by an independent professional valuer. The calculation used cash flow
projections based on the most recent financial budget approved by
the directors of the Company covering a five-year period. Cash flows
beyond the five-year period were extrapolated using an estimated
weighted average growth rate of 1%. The growth rate did not exceed
the long-term average growth rate for the business in which the CGU
operated.

As at 31 December 2019, the recoverable amount of the CGU related
to Dapeng International Education had been determined based on
fair value less costs of disposal, which was arrived at on the basis of
valuation carried out by an independent professional valuer. The fair
value less cost of disposal of the CGU was level 3 recurring fair value
measurement. The key assumptions to determine the fair value less
cost of disposal under income approach using present value technique
were discount rate and annual projected revenue over five-year period.
The pre-tax discount rate used was 18%.

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of goodwill of
approximately HK$67,419,000 and HK$109,928,000 was allocated to
Dapeng Yacht Club and Dapeng International Education respectively.
Due to the decline in performance in the segment of yacht club and the
segment of training, the CGUs had been reduced to their recoverable
amounts of approximately HK$298,987,000 and HK$250,664,000
respectively and an impairment loss of approximately HK$67,419,000
and HK$109,928,000 was recognised on goodwill in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for
continuing operations within the segment of yacht club and the
segment of training respectively.

51,236%109,063)

180,601 to 661,795)
(ZE—NF : NTF
180,601%£661,795)

E-NAF+-A=1T—H - EXIEEHE
Aﬁf’%ﬁ’ﬁﬁi%i 507 B AT U B & KR T AR B
B EERMGEMETOREFEEREERR
B - AR ETVRIBA R R ESFTHLER
ENFHNEMVBEECRRSRER
Al - RAFHMRIOIRSIRETHEBEF N
BT ER T ML - ZIBRXTEBH
TELBULERBORPFHERE -

RZE—NF+ZA=+—H  BEAWEEE
ﬁﬁﬁ@%ﬁi%i SR AT E S REE &

AEERLEXLETE - MEEDHERE
I%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ”ZﬁﬁEﬁ°ﬁ%E$“
M2 ATHEREERABE = RIEEERT
B2 - REBERNAERBRELETAFE
BEHERARZ FERDABRER AFHF
ETERAEEE - MIEANKRBARIERA
18% °

—NWF+-A=1+—8 " 5EEXE
S MRS B E N B REED B4
#67,419,0005% 7T }.109,928,00078 7T © H
RERE OB RIFIDBEETE - %R
CELEME TRZ2ETRESESFINA
298 987,000 7T & 250,664,000 7T © &

RERE B R E M 2 E RS R ARER 2 P
AT BRI SR B B A E B
2R E B 1B o Al 49 A 67,419,0007% 7T &
109,928,000/ 7T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

23. Other intangible assets

23. HittE\EEE

Exclusive
rights for Non-
operation of competition Operating
sport apps right  Copyrights right Total
®E
BEER
BEa% FHFRE I AE BiER et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FET FAET FAT
Cost KA
At 1 January 2019 RZZE—NF
—H—H 26,564 14,272 6,565 835,512 882,913
Additions NE - - - 2,264 2,264
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHTE A A
(note 40(c)) (Fff5E£40(c)) (26,564) (14,272) (6,565) - (47,401)
Exchange differences &R ZERE - - - (19,120) (19,120)
At 31 December 2019 and T—NF
1 January 2020 +=—A=+—H
MZT=TF
—H—H - - - 818,656 818,656
Additions NE - - - 1,720 1,720
Exchange differences PEHZRE - - - 47,898 47,898
At 31 December 2020 RIZEZTF
+ZA=+—H - - - 868,274 868,274
Accumulated amortisation Z&T#EEH KR
and impairment losses REEE
At 1 January 2019 R-ZB—NF
—H—H 26,564 14,272 6,565 92,312 139,713
Amortisation B - - - 46,015 46,015
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAR
(note 40(c)) (Ft5E40(c)) (26,564) (14,272) (6,565) - (47,401)
Impairment losses BEREIE - - - 138,873 138,873
Exchange differences PEHZ%8 - - - (6,009) (6,009)
At 31 December 2019 and R -—Z— A4
1 January 2020 +ZA=+—H
;EZ_ZTZZF
—H—H - - - 271,191 271,191
Amortisation B - - - 36,875 36,875
Impairment losses BEEIE - - - 419,802 419,802
Exchange differences MEH =5 - - - 39,058 39,058
At 31 December 2020 RIZZEZTF
+ZA=+—H - - - 766,926 766,926
Carrying amount SREE
At 31 December 2020 N BT
+=—A=+—8 - - - 101,348 101,348
At 31 December 2019 RZZE—NEF
+ZA=t—H - - - 547,465 547,465
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —F - FF+ A =+—HIFFZE

23. Other intangible assets (Continued)

On 27 August 2014, Yuejin Sports entered into an Operation
Entrustment Agreement with Shenzhen Dapeng New District
Management Committee, pursuant to which the operation of Shenzhen
marine sports base and sailing school would be entrusted to Yuejin
Sports for a period of 20 years for a total cash consideration of
RMB785,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$924,730,000),
50% of which amounting to RMB392,500,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$462,365,000) was paid in 2014 and the balance
of RMB392,500,000 will be settled by 10 equal annual instalments
of RMB39,250,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$46,237,000)
each from the eleventh year of the date on which the assets were
transferred. The transfer of assets was completed on 11 March 2015.

The Operating Right is used in the Group’s operation of a yacht club
and provision of training service (formerly, the education and training
services). As at 31 December 2020, the average remaining amortisation
period of other intangible assets was 14 years (2019: 15 years).

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the outbreak of COVID-19
pandemic and the subsequent quarantine measures as well as the
travel restrictions imposed by many countries have had negative
impacts to the global economy, business environment and directly and
indirectly affect the operations of the Group. The Group suspended
its operation of yacht club as well as training services for a certain
period during the year due to the mandatory government quarantine
measures in an effort to contain the spread of the pandemic. As such,
the financial performance of the segment of yacht club as well as
training were affected in certain aspects, including reduction in revenue
and results. The global health emergency resulting from the COVID-19
pandemic has led to a significant decline in the demand for the services
from the segment of yacht club and training respectively, primarily due
to the Group suffering from enforced marine sports base and sailing
school closures. The operation of yacht club as well as training services
continues to be significantly impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic
even after the marine sports base and the sailing school under the
segment of yacht club and training are reopened. The timing and
extent of a recovery of consumer behaviour and willingness to spend
discretionary income on yacht club as well as training services may
delay the Group’s ability to generate significant revenue until such time
as consumer behaviour normalises and consumer spending recovers.
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23. Other intangible assets (Continued)

Accordingly, the Group assesses the recoverable amount of the other
intangible assets allocated to its respective CGUs and as a result
the carrying amount of the other intangible assets was written down
to their recoverable amounts of approximately HK$51,089,000 in
the segment of yacht club and approximately HK$50,259,000 in the
segment of training respectively. An impairment loss of approximately
HK$419,802,000 (2019: HK$138,873,000) was recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of which the amount of approximately HK$231,314,000
(2019: HK$134,323,000) arose in the segment of yacht club and
approximately HK$188,488,000 (2019: HK$4,550,000) arose in the
segment of training respectively.

As at 31 December 2020, the recoverable amounts of the CGUs
related to Dapeng Yacht Club and Dapeng International Education have
been determined based on value in use calculations, which is arrived
at on the basis of valuation carried out by an independent professional
valuer. These calculations use cash flow projections based on the most
recent financial budgets approved by the directors of the Company
covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using an estimated weighted average growth rates of 1%.
The growth rates do not exceed the long-term average growth rates for
the business in which the CGUs operate. The pre-tax discount rate used
is 17.86% for Dapeng Yacht Club and 14.27% for Dapeng International
Education respectively.

As at 31 December 2019, the key input and assumptions of the
impairment assessment of the CGUs related to Dapeng Yacht Club and
Dapeng International Education of which the other intangible asset was
allocated to were summarised in note 22 to these financial statements.

The exclusive rights for operation of sport apps, non-competition right
and copyrights assets were used in the Group’s operation of provision
of online game services. In prior year, the Group disposed of these
assets through the disposal of subsidiaries disclosed in note 40(c).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Investments in subsidiaries

The following are the particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31
December 2020 and 2019 which, in the opinion of the directors of
the Company, principally affect the results, assets or liabilities of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

Place of incorporation/
registration and

Particular of

24. RBARANKRE
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Percentage of ownership

operation/kind of issued share capital/ interest/voting
Name legal entity registered capital power/profit sharing  Principal activities
Hl e
BRREghy BRTRAHE/ REERERREE/
s ERERER &R MEBEFNEAE FEEH
Direct Indirect
i M
Glory Sun Investment Holdings Limited  British Virgin Islands, Ordinary share US$1 100% - Investment holding
(formerly known as New Sports limited liability company
Investment Ho\ding Limited)
EREERERA RBRAHS EBERIET 100% - REER
(RITENew Sports Investment BREMLA
Holding Limited )
Baoxin International Development British Virgin Islands, Ordinary share US$1 - 100% Investment holding
Limited limited liability company
ENERERERAA ERRUHE TRR1ET - 100% REER
BREFAR
Yue Jin Asia British Virgin Islands, Ordinary share US$1 - 100% Investment holding
limited liability company
BHRM RERAHS EERIET - 100% REER
BREEAR
Karsen International Limited (‘Karsen  British Virgin Islands, Ordinary shares - 85% Property investment
International”) limited liability company US$50,000
SABRARAR(EABER]) EBRUHS E3RR50,000% 7T - 85% MERE
BREERAA
Micron Capital Limited British Virgin Islands, Ordinary shares = 85% Investment holding
limited liability company ~ US$50,000
FRETBRAR RERUEES E4RAR50,000% 70 - 85% REER
BREARTA
Micron Technology Limited British Virgin Islands, Ordinary shares US$1 - 85% Investment holding
limited liability company
ERMBBERAT KBRS - ERRIET - 85% EER
AREERTA

EHBEMEBARLR 2020F K
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24.

Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of incorporation/

24. RMIBRATINIKRE @)

registration and Particular of Percentage of ownership
operation/kind of issued share capital/ interest/voting
Name legal entity registered capital power/profit sharing  Principal activities
Hal e
BEREEhy BRTRAHE/ REREREREE/
i ERERER &R HMERFNEIL TEER
Direct Indirect
i CE3
Baoxin Development (Hong Kong) Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Ordinary share HK$1 - 100% Inactive
Limited company
EREMBERERDA %5 BEREARA LRRET - 100% EEET
Baoxin Group (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Ordinary share HK$1 - 100% Investment holding
company
EREMEEERLA B AREERA LRRET - 100% REER
Glory Sun Land Management Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Ordinary share HK$1 - 100% Administrative for the group
company
EMEHERER A B BAREERA TRRUET - 100% EE{TH
Nayuan Development Limited Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Ordinary shares - 100% Investment holding
company HK$10,000,000
WTBERARAR B BREERA L33%10,000,0007 7T - 100% REER
Qianhai Glory Sun Group Limited Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Ordinary share HK$1 - 100% Investment holding
company
AEEMEEER AR B BAREERA TRRIET - 100% REER
Baoxin Technology (Hong Kong) Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Ordinary share - 85% Investment holding
Limited company HK$100,000
EREMMBARRA B BREERA Zi3i%100,0007T - 85% AR
Micron Technology Development Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Ordlinary shares - 85% Investment holding
Limited company HK$80,000,000
EXRBERERAR &5 EREARA &3 %80,000,0007 7T - 85% REMEK
Rich Wealth Investment (Holdings) Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Ordinary shares - 85% Investment holding
Limited company HK$203,700,000
BRIRAER)ERAR BE - BREERF ZiAAR203,700,000/5 7 - 85% REER
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24.

Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of incorporation/

Ft_A=+—HIFFE

24. RMIBRATINKRE @)

registration and Particular of Percentage of ownership
operation/kind of issued share capital/ interest/voting
Name legal entity registered capital power/profit sharing  Principal activities
Hal e
BEREEhy BRTRAHE/ REREREREE/
i ERERER &R HMERFNEIL TEER
Direct Indirect
i CE3
Baoxin Holdings Company Limited The PRC, limited liability Registered capital - 100% Trading of commodities and
company (wholly-foreign ~ RMB1,000,000,000 property investment
owned enterprise)
EERARAA e AREAAR FMERARS - 100% RRRHROERE
GIEBELE) 1,000,000,0007T
Shenzhen Baoxin Logistics Company ~ The PRC, limited liability ~ Registered capital - 100% Trading of commodities and
Limited company RMB300,000,000 home appliances
ANEFDRBRLF e AREAAH HMERARE - 100% RERHRXER®
300,000,0007T
Shenzhen Baoxin Industrial Company ~ The PRC, limited liability ~ Registered capital - 85% Trading of commodities and
Limited company RMB1,764,800,000 property investment
AEHEXEEFRAR HE - AREEAF FMERARE - 85% ARRHRNERE
1,764,800,0007T
Shenzhen Jitong Industrial Company  The PRC, limited liability Registered capital - 85% Real estate development
Limited company RMB1,200,000,000
RIEBREFEBRAF HE - AREEAH HMERARY - 85% [EihERE
1,200,000,0007T
Changchun City Baoxin Property The PRG, limited liability ~ Registered capital - 59.86% Real estate development
Development Company Limited company RMB426,000,000
REMEMEHEREERAT ME - 